DNA 1 FHs
DNA 1 kits:

18272
Robert Bolling 1646-1709, Thomas Tabb Bolling, Fh480, 
12, 25, 14, 11, 11, 14, 11, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  

5168
Robert Bolling 1646-1709 Red, Fh480, 


12, 25, 14, 11, 11, 14, 11, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  

1548
Robert Bolling 1646-1709 Red, Fh480, 


12, 25, 14, 11, 11, 14, 11, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  

959
Robert Bolling 1646-1709, Fh480, 


12, 25, 14, 11, 11, 14, 11, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  

540
Robert Bolling 1646-1709, Fh480, 


12, 25, 14, 11, 11, 14, 11, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  

971
Robert Bolling 1646-1709, Fh480, 


12, 25, 14, 11, 11, 14, 11, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  

94968 
W. Blaker Bolling



12, 25, 14, 11, 11, 14, 11, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  
255432 
John Allen Bolling



12, 25, 14, 11, 11, 14, 11, 12, 12, 13, 13, 29  
ALEXANDER
1W 10. 
Alexander 1721-1767/m1745/7 Susanna Bolling 1720/8->1766--His father was Stith #650, Her father 


was Robert #490


a
Elizabeth 1747-1776/m1769 Peter Jones (d1771) & m1771 Christopher Manlove


a
Robert b1751/m1772 Francis "Franky" Green & m1779 Widow Clara Bland--See Family Group 



#520


a
Stith b1753/m1776 Charlotte Edmunds--See Family Group #660



Ann b1755


a
John 1756-1759


a
Alexander Jr. b1761/m1782 Mary Pryor--See Family #011


a
Susanna b1764


a
Sally 1766-1773


a
Children per Source #368

1W  
Fh010  
Alexander Bolling was born 1721 in Culpeper County, Virginia, to Stith and Elizabeth Ann (Meriwither) Bolling. (30)(814) Henry Browne's will dated 23 Sept 1734 (Surry Co., VA Wills and Administrations, 1671-1750) states that his wife, Elizabeth, was the widow of Stith Bolling (Fh650). Henry Browne names Elizabeth’s children: Jane, Ann, Alexander (Fh010), John. (1414)  Alex Alexander Bolling was born 1721 (old style). (258) Alexander Bolling married Susannah Bolling in 1760 in Culpeper County, Virginia. (30)(814)  Susanna Bolling was the daughter of Robert and Anne (Cocke) Bolling. (61)(62)  Alexander Bolling was born prior to 1727 when his father Stith Bolling probably died. Alexander's mother Elizabeth (Rogers) Bolling remarried in 1727 probably in Surry County, Virginia.  Alexander had a brother John and sisters Jane and Ann. (36)  Alexander and John Bolling, sons of Stith Bolling, of Surry County, Virginia were involved in a 1728 land transaction in Brunswick County, Virginia. (41)(725) Alexander Bolling was involved in a 1730 land transaction in Surry County, Virginia. (41)(264) If Alexander Bolling (Fh010) were born 1721 as most records suggest then he would have been too young to be involved in land transactions in 1729 or 1730.  Colonial laws were very strict on the buying or selling of real estate to or from children.  (7)  Alexander Bolling was born 1721 (O.S.-old style) the son of Stith and Elizabeth (Hartwell) Bolling.  Alexander Bolling married 1745, his first cousin, Susanna Bolling, daughter of Robert and Anne (Cocke) Bolling.  They had children: 


Elizabeth born 1747, Elizabeth Bolling born 1747 at "Mitchells", Prince George County, Virginia, was the daughter of Alexander and Susannah Bolling.  Elizabeth Bolling married second 1771, Christopher Barthalomew Manlove.  Elizabeth Bolling died 1776. (193) 


Robert (Fh520) born 1751 (O.S.) who married first Francis "Franky" Green and second Widow Clara Bland, 


Stith (Fh660) born 1753 who married Charlotte Edmunds, 


Ann born 1755, 


John born 1756 died 1759, 


Alexander Jr. (Fh011) born 1761, 


Susanna born 1764


Sally born 1766 died 1773.  

Surry County Virginia Deed, 5 Nov. 1742. William Wilkie appoints Capt. William Brown, Jr. and James Balfour as his attorneys.  Wit:  Alexander Bolling (Fh010) and Henry Browne. (1527)(1551) Alexander Sr. Bolling died 1767. (61)(62) Alexander Bolling was witnessed an 1760 indenture in Prince George County, Virginia.  Record Book 1759-60. (47)(979) Col. Alexander Bolling is listed in a Prince George County, Virginia, deed 1763. (1835) Alexander Bolling in 1766 was appointed trustee for sale of 350 acres in Bristol parish, Prince George County, Virginia.  (970) Col.  Alexander Bolling, a representative for Prince George County, Virginia, died in his home 1767.  (61)(970) Alexander Bolling married Susanna -----1745. (258) Alexander Bolling died 1767.  (258) Alexander Bolling of "Mitchell's", Prince George County, Virginia, was born 1721 the son of Stith and widow Elizabeth Hartwell Bolling. Alexander Bolling married his first cousin Susanna Bolling. (368)  Alexander Bolling (1721-1761) was the son of Stith and Elizabeth Bolling.  Alexander Bolling married 1747, his first cousin Susanna Bolling who was born 1720. (392) To this union was born 1753, Stith Bolling (Fh660).  (392) Alexander Bolling was alive when his father's will was probated August 16, 1727, in Prince George County, Virginia.  (675) Alexander Bolling was of "Mitchell's". (713)  Son Alexander Bolling married Mary Pryor 1782 in Amelia County, Virginia. (814)(1213) Susanah Boling had a will 1790 in Amelia County, Virginia. (7) Alexander Bolling was granted 1000 acres of land on the south side of Buckskin Creek in Prince George County, Virginia, by the Virginia Council held 5 November 1729 in the Capitol. (1231) Alexander Bolling was involved in a 1730 land transaction in Surry County, Virginia. (41)(264) If Alexander Bolling (Fh010) were born 1721 as most records suggest then he would have been too young to be involved in land transactions in 1729 or 1730.  Colonial laws were very strict on the buying or selling of real estate to or from children. (7) Who is this Alexander Bolling who must have been born prior to 1708 to be of legal age? (7) Alexander Bolling (12 Mar 1721-11 June 1767) was the son of Stith Bolling and the grandson of the immigrant, Robert Bolling (1646-1709) and his second wife, Anne Stith. Alexander married his cousin, Susannah Bolling (daughter of Robert Bolling II), and the couple became the significant ancestors of many prominent and successful people (whom I call my Lunenburg Cousins), to include the Civil War General Stith Bolling. When Robert Bolling died in 1749, his only son was too young (19) to take over his father's duties both in the church vestry and at the House of Burgesses. Consequently, the son-in-law/nephew took over and was quite successful. It is apparent from all I read that Robert II and Alexander were very close to one another, and since Robert had no sons until his Robert III was born in 1730, it does not surprise me that Robert II worked "deals" to insure that the then oldest surviving male Bolling in the "white" Bolling line was taken care of. I know of no other Alexander Bollings around that time. If the Virginia laws could have been "bent" to authorize the union between Pocahontas and John  Rolfe, I would certainly imagine that an influential man like Robert Bolling could have been able to get some transactions done in the name of his nephew, Alexander. I would therefore bet that Robert Bolling II (who was a member of the House of Burgesses) handled the transactions but in his nephew's name. That's the only way I can figure it out. (739) 

BOLLING FAMILY BIBLE - Prince George County, Virginia 1721-1767 

Family of Alexander Bolling 

Alexander Bolling b. 3/12/1721 Old Stile

Susanna Bolling b. 6/16/1728 Old Stile

Alexander & Susanna Bolling were m. 12/23/1745

Elizabeth Bolling, dau of Alex & Susanna b. 6/24/1747

Robert Bolling, son of A & S b. 3/24/1751 O.S.

Stith Bolling s of A & S b. 5/11/1753 N.S.

Ann Bolling dau of A & S b. 3/31/1755

John  Bolling b. 10/13/1756 d. 11/9/1759

Alex Bolling Jr b. 12/2/1761

Susanna Bolling b. 12/5/1764

Sally Bolling b. 3/25/1766

Alex Bolling Sr d. 6/11/1767

Eliz Bolling m Peter Jones 4/6/1769

Peter Jones d. 1/18/1771

Eliz Jones dau of Alex & Susan Bolling m Christopher Manlove 1/24/1771

Jane Manlove dau Chris & Eliz Manlov b. 10/8/1772

Robert Bolling m Franky Green 5/10/1772

John Bolling s of Robt & Franky b. 3/10/1773

Frances w of Robert Bolling d 3/15/1773

Sally Bolling d 6/17/1773

John Bolling s of Robt & Franky d 5/1/1773or74?? 

Rebecca Bolling Manlove b. 4/24/1774 d. 7/8/1774 to 1776 (notice dates on this page are in order)

Tho Bolling Manlove b. 11/4/1776

Elizabeth Manlove d. 11/23/1776

Stith Bolling m Charlotte Edmunds 10/10/1776

Rebecca B. Bolling d of Stith & Charlotte b. 2/16/1778 m Melchijah Spragins s of Lieut

Thomas Spragins of Halifax Co VA

>From this marriage were 2 children: Stith Bolling Spragins & Melchijah Spragins who settled with their mother in Alabama near Huntsville about 1820. 

Robert Bolling m Clara Bland widow 12/18/1779

Elizabeth Yates Bolling d of Robert & Clara

Alex Bolling s of Stith & Charlotte (1390)

The will of Stith Bolling (Fh650,W), of Surry County; not dated; but probated Surry County Court, Virginia, August 16, 1727, names sons Stith Bolling (650a), Alexander Bolling (650b,Fh010), John Bolling (650c) and Robert Bolling (650d); makes provision for two daughters ( though does not give their names); wife Elizabeth Bolling and brother Robert Bolling (Fh490,Fh495), executors (Surry County records, Wills and Deeds 1715-30,  page 75I). (1494) During the past two or three years quite a few fragments of Prince George County records which were carried away during the War Between the States have come into possession of the Virginia State Library, Richmond.  Among these fragments is the original of the will of John Bolling (650c), of Bath Parish, Prince George County, dated November I3, 1744, proved Prince George County Court March 13, (1744/5), bearing the endorsement, "Exhibited into  Court by his brother Alexander Bolling (650b,Fh010) one of the Executors named in the Will."  The will bequeaths "To my Sister Anne Edloe (650f)" four negroes Phillis, Ned, Sipeo and Daniels; "To my brother Alexander Bolling three negroes Grinnidge, Charles and Harry, and all the rest of testator's personal estate he paying my sister Anne Edloe"  £70 currency. Executors "My brother in law John Edloe and my said brother Alexander Bolling."  Witnesses: David Walker, John Thornton, John Clack. The will is further endorsed: "The Last Will and Testament of John Bolling" (this evidently in the handwriting or the party who wrote the will for the testator and Mr. John Bolling, Junr. deced. his will proved March 1744. Rec: G pa:  355 & Exed" [this in handwriting of William Hamlin, clerk of the Court] The record book in which this will was recorded is missing. This will of John Bolling, of  Bath Parish, Prince George, taken with the will of Stith Bolling (Fh650), of Surry County. (The original will of John Bolling is now on file in the Division of Archives, Virginia State Library, Richmond.) (1494)
Death

Col.  Alexander Bolling of Prince George County, Virginia, died 1767. (7)(381)(970) Col. Alexander Bolling, a rep. for Prince George County, Virginia, died there last Thurs. (VG 18 Jun 67) (381)
1W 11.  
Alexander b1761/m1782 Mary Pryor--His father was Alexander #010



Samuel Pryor bc1782/5-d<1837/m1807 Nancy Willis Elliott-See Family #625

1W  
Fh011  
Alexander Bolling Jr. was born 1761. (61)(62) Alexander Bolling married Mary Pryor in 1782 in Amelia County, Virginia. (30)(34)(891)(1213)  Mary Pryor had to have consent. Surity was Bolling Hall. (891)  Alexander Bolling, son of Alexander Bolling of "Mitchells", Prince George County and Susannah Bolling, married Mary Pryor 1782 in Amelia County, Virginia.  She was the daughter of John Pryor. (109) Alexander Bolling was born about 1757.  Alexander Bolling married Mary Pryor.  They had a son Samuel Pryor Bolling (Fh625) born about 1782 who married Nancy Willis Elliott. (885) Alex Bolling married 1782 Mary Pryor, daughter of John Pryor. (970)

1W

Alexander Bolling was granted 1000 acres of land on the south side of Buckshin Creek in Prince George County, Virginia, by the Virginia Council held 5 November 1729 in the Capitol. (1231) Alexander Bolling was involved in a 1730 land transaction in Surry County, Virginia. (41)(264) If Alexander Bolling (Fh010) were born 1721 as most records suggest then he would have been too young to be involved in land transactions in 1729 or 1730. Colonial laws were very strict on the buying or selling of real estate to or from children. (7) Who is this Alexander Bolling who must have been born prior to 1708 to be of legal age? (7) Alexander Bolling (12 Mar 1721-11 June 1767) was the son of Stith Bolling (Fh650, 1W) and the grandson of the immigrant, Robert Bolling (1646-1709) and his second wife, Anne Stith. Alexander married his cousin, Susannah Bolling (daughter of Robert Bolling II), and the couple became the significant ancestors of many prominent and successful people (whom I call my Lunenburg Cousins), to include the Civil War General Stith Bolling. When Robert Bolling died in 1749, his only son was too young (19) to take over his father's duties both in the church vestry and at the House of Burgesses. Consequently, the son-in-law/nephew took over and was quite successful. It is apparent from all I read that Robert II and Alexander were very close to one another, and since Robert had no sons until his Robert III was born in 1730, it does not surprise me that Robert II worked "deals" to insure that the then oldest surviving male Bolling in the "white" Bolling line was taken care of. I know of no other Alexander Bollings around that time. If the Virginia laws could have been "bent" to authorize the union between Pocahontas and John  Rolfe, I would certainly imagine that an influential man like Robert Bolling could have been able to get some transactions done in the name of his nephew, Alexander. I would therefore bet that Robert Bolling II (who was a member of the House of Burgesses) handled the transactions but in his nephew's name. That's the only way I can figure it out. (739)

1W

Alexander Bolon was head of household in Prince George County, Virginia, in 1810, household 281 with 30010- 02010-00. (9)

ARCHIBALD

1R 50.  
Archibald 1750-1827 or 1749-1827/1/w m1770 Sarah Cary d1773--His father was John #380


*a 
Archibald Cary bc1770-d1795--Could be Fh051 who died 1825


*a 
Sarah Cary 1773-1774



2/w  m1774 Jane R. Randolph


a
Sarah 1775-d>1829/m1792 Joseph Cabell Megginson


*a 
Anne Everard 1775-1834/1/h m1797 Samuel Sheppard Duval, 2/h m1804 Joseph Cabell Jr. 



(1762-1831)


*a 
Elizabeth Meade 1777-1823/m1801 Archibald Robertson


*a 
John Randolph 1784-1851/m1823 Elizabeth Powell of "Centre Hill", Powhatan Co., Va


*a 
Blair 1791-1839/1/w m1824 Margaret Ann Webster, 2/w m1827 Penelope Storrs--See Family 



Group #155


* 
Edward


* 
Alexander--father of John who married Naomi Ray (?)



3/w  m1797 Mrs. Mary "Molly" (Page) Byrd b1765



4/w  m1802 Mrs. Sarah (Woodson) Clark



2. Son



3. Son



4. Son



5. Son



6. Son



7. Son



4. Daughter



5. Daughter



6. Daughter


* 
Children found by Vera Hutton at the "new library" in Lunchberg, Virginia.


a
Childred per Source #1106



Cumberland Co., VA 1784, Archibald had 6 boys and 7 girls. (886) 

1R 
Fh050  
Archibald Bolling was born in 1730 (sic). (30)(45)  Archibald Bolling was born in 1749. (64)(219)  Archibald Bolling was born in 1750. (313)(320)  Archibald Bolling was born in Chesterfield County, Virginia, 3-29-1750. (340) Archibald Bolling was born in Dinwiddie County, Virginia, to John and Elizabeth (Blair) Bolling. (30)  Archibald Bolling was not named in his father's John (Fh380), will in 1749 but was named in John's 1757 codicil. This suggests Archibald Bolling was born later than 1749.  Some sources list Archibald as born 1750 others 1752. (7) On August 3, 1770 Archibald Bolling chose Thomas Bolling (Fh700) as his guardian in Chesterfield County, Virginia. So he was a minor then. (7) John Bolling (Fh380) in his will provided Archibald Bolling part of "Buffalo Lick" track which is situated on the south side of the Flevanna River now in Bedford County late in Albemarle, together with the "Rock Island" tract, 40,000 acres in all.  (62) Archibald Bolling (1749-1829) was the son of Major Bolling and Elizabeth Blair. (64) Archibald Bolling was the son of John and Elizabeth (Blair) Bolling.  He was of "Mount Athos". (219) Archibald Bolling was the son of Major John and Elizabeth (Blair) Bolling. (313) Archibald (1750-1830) was the son of John and Elizabeth (Blair) Bowling (Fh380). (320) Archibald Bolling is mentioned in his father’s 1757 codicil as follows “I give and devise to my Son Archibald Bolling and his Heirs forever Twelve Hundred Acres of Land with the Appurtenances situate in the County of Bedford being one half of Six Surveys of Land made by me lying in the County of Bedford aforesaid from the Branches of Rock Island Creek to the Otter River Road that is to say that Part of the said Six Surveys of land lying next the said Road and the other Twelve hundred Acres residue of the said Six Surveys.” (1487)
Wife 1

Archibald Bolling married first Sarah Cary. (45) Mrs. Sarah Bolling, spouse to Archibald Bolling Esq.  of Goochland County, Virginia, died (VG 22 Apr 73). (381) Archibald Bolling married Sarah Cary in 1770 in Chesterfield County, Virginia. (30) Archibald Bolling married first Sarah Cary. (219) Archibald Bolling married first 1770 Sarah Cary. They lived at "Mount Athos". (313) Archibald Bolling and Sarah Cary were married September 13, 1770.  They had two children: Archibald Cary Bolling born July 20, 177x (can't read) and Sarah Cary Bolling born 1773 who died young.  Sarah Bolling departed this life April 7, 1773.  (697) Archibald Bolling married 1st Sarah Carey his 1st cousin. (320) Archibald Bolling married Sarah Cary and they had a daughter Sarah who married Joseph Cabell Megginson. (337) Archibald Bolling married first Sarah Cary, daughter of Archibald Cary. (340) Archibald Bolling of Goochland County, Virginia, married Sarah Cary. She died 1773. (387) Archibald Bolling and Sarah Clark Widow of James Clark and daughter of McChander Woodson of Henrico were married at her house in Chesterfield County, Virginia on the 29 day of September 1802. (697) Archibald and Sarah (Cary) Bolling Sr. had a son Archibald Bolling Jr. (205)

Wife 2

Archibald Bolling married second Jane Randolph. (45) Archibald Bolling Esq.  lately married Miss Jane Randolph, second daughter of Richard Randolph Esq. of Curle's. (VG and VGR 17 Feb 74).(381) Archibald Bolling married Jane Randolph in 1770 in Chesterfield County, Virginia.  (30) Archibald Bolling married Jane Randolph and three others.  He had seven sons. (64) Jane Randolph, daughter of Richard and Ann (Meade) Randolph, married Archibald Bolling of Buckingham County, Virginia.  Jane had a sister Mary who married William Bolling of "Licking Hole".  (79) Archibald Bolling married second Jane Randolph a cousin. (219) Archibald Bolling and his wife Jane Randolph had a daughter Anne E.  Bolling.  She married first Samuel Shepherd Duval and second 1804 Joseph Cabell.  Anne was born at "Red Oak" but married second 1804 at "The Retreat", her father's then residence on the line between Buckingham and Campbell Counties, Virginia. (292) Archibald Bolling married second 1774 Jane Randolph. (313) Archibald Bolling married 2nd Jane Randolph his 1st cousin. (320) By Jane Randolph they had children: Sarah born 1792 who married Joseph Cabell Meggison, Anna Everard who married 1st Shepherd Duvall and 2nd Col. Joseph Cabell, Elizabeth Meade who married Archibald Robertson his 1st cousin, and Blair who married 1st M.A. Webster and 2nd Penelope Storrs. (320) Archibald Bolling of "Red Oak" married Jane R.  Randolph daughter of Richard Randolph.  They had a daughter Sarah Bolling who married about 1792 J.C.  Megginson. (337) Archibald Bolling married second Jane Randolph, daughter of Col. Richard Randolph. (340)
Wife 3

Archibald Bolling married third Widow Byrd. (45) Archibald Bolling married third a widow Byrd. (219) 
Molly Page of Cumberland County, Virginia married John Carter Byrd and when he died she married Archie Bolling. (170) Archibald Bolling married third 1797 widow Byrd. (313) Archibald Bolling married 3rd Molly Page. (320) Archibald Bolling married third Widow Marie Taylor Byrd. (340) Molly Page who was born 1765 married as her second husband Archie Bolling. (387) 

Wife 4

Archibald Bolling married fourth Widow Clark.  He had a child Blair Bolling. (45) Archibald Bolling married fourth a widow Clark. (219) Sarah Woodson married first James Clark and second Archibald Bolling, of Campbell County, Virginia. (970) Archibald Bolling married fourth 1802 widow Clark. (313)

Archibald Bolling married 4th the widow Clark. (320) Archibald Bolling married fourth Widow Sarah Clark the widow of Captain James Clark. (340)  
Archibald Bolling had a son Blair Bolling (Fh155). (340) It is said that Archibald had thirteen children. (219)
Movement

Archibald Bolling had land 1773 and 1774 in Buckingham County, Virginia.  (44) Archibald and Jane (Randolph) Bolling are on the 1782 Tax list of Cumberland County, Virginia.  Their "Mount Athos" plantation has 6 whites and 38 slaves.  Also on that tax list was a Thomas Bolling with 4 whites and no slaves.  (7) Archibald Bolling is listed as head of household 1782 (6 people) and 1784 (7 people) in Cumberland County, Virginia. (43) Archibald Cary in his will before 1787 gives "Son-in-law Archibald Bolling, and his wife Jane, 1000 acres called "Red Oak", in Buckingham County, Virginia, whereon they now live."  He also provided for his minor grandson, Archibald Cary Bolling. (205) Archibald Boling/Bowling "of Buckingham County", Virginia was in deed book #25 and #26 (1785-1788) of Augusta County, Virginia, selling land to Reuben Kennerley in 1785 and land on Laurel Run of South River to William Kennerley in 1788.  In Deed Book #27 Archibald and Jane Bolling of Campbell County, Virginia, deeded land to Michael Cainert. (667)  Archibald and Jane Bolling of Buckingham County, Virginia deeded land 1786 in Chesterfield County, Virginia. (7) Archibald Bolling (Fh050) 8 July 1790 Campbell County, Virginia - 400acres on branches of Wreck Island Creek. "Devisee of Colo. John Bolling, dec'd." (From Virginia Land Records by source #1414)  Sarah Bolling, daughter of Archibald Bolling by his first wife, Sarah Cary, married 1792 Joseph Cabell Megginson. (292) Archibald Bolling was listed as Archibald, Senior, when he consented to his daughter Sarah's marriage to Joseph Cabell Megginson, 1792 in Cumberland County, Virginia. (207) Archibald Bolling was to value lots in Lynchburg, Campbell County, Virginia, 1793. (1190) Archibald Bolling was a taxpayer 1785 in Campbell County, Virginia. (347)  Archibald Bolling Sr.  was in the 1810 Census of Campbell County, Virginia.  (349) Archibald Bolling's children were:  Sarah who married 1792 Joseph Cabell Ferguson,  Anne Everard who married first Shepherd Duval and second 1804 Col. Joseph Cabell, Elizabeth Blair who married 1801 Archibald Robertson,  Blair (Fh155).  (313) Archibald Bolling (Fh050) 5 July 1803 Campbell County, Virginia- 70 acres on the west branches of Elk Creek, a fork of Wreck Island Creek. (From Virginia Land Records by source #1414 Archibald Bolling married 1774 Jane Randolph, who had a sister Mary Randolph who married William Bolling of Bolling Hall. (970)  Archibald Bolling payed taxes 1782 in Buckingham County, Virginia. (347)   Archibald Bolling was a taxpayer 1782-87 Campbell County, Virginia. (7)

Death

Archibald Bolling of Campbell County, Virginia died 1827.  (7)  Archibald Bolling Sr., died 1827, he was of Campbell County, Virginia, "The Lunchburg Virginian" 23 July 1827. (1268) Archibald Bolling died in 1829 leaving to his 4th wife some land.  Other land he divided between his daughters, Sarah Megginson and Ann E. Cabell and grand-daughters, Pocahontas and Virginia (Children of his deceased daughter Elizabeth M.  Robertson), and his sons John R. and Blair Bolling. (369) Archibald Bolling was on the 1787 tax list of Buckingham County, Virginia, with 19 blacks over 16 and 20 blacks under 16, 23 horses and 19 cattle.  (7)    Archibald C.  Bolling died and Archibald Bolling of Campbell County, Virginia was the administrator of the estate in 1795. (381)  Joseph Cabell Jr 1762-1831 married as his second wife, 1804, Mrs.  Anne E.  (Bolling) Duvall, daughter of Archibald Bolling (by his wife Jane Randolph) and first cousin to his own first wife Pocahontas Rebecca Bolling.  They emigrated to Henderson County, Kentucky in 1811. (386)  Archibald Bolling Sr. was on the 1820 Census of Campbell County, Virginia, on page 143a. (348) Archibald Bolling was on the tax list of Buckingham County, Virginia, in 1787 with many slaves.  He also had personal property 1787 in Cumberland County, Virginia, but is listed as being "of Buckingham County". (551) Archibald Bolling and Maria Tayler Byrd Widow of the late John Carter Byrd and second surviving daughter of W. John Page late of North River in Gloucester County were married at his house in Williamsburg on 13 May 1797.  Mary Bolling died 9 Oct 1797.  (697)  John Bolling in his will provided Archibald Bolling part of Buffalo Lick track which was in Bedford County, together with the Rock Island tract, 40,000 acres in all. (62) Thomas Jefferson represented Archibald Bolling (Fh050) in Archibald Bolling vs. Robert Bolling; legal papers of 1771. They were in a lawsuit over the property of Edward Bolling who in his will left the land (as I recall) to one and the crops to the other. It is a landmark case and can be found through lexus-nexus at almost any law library today. I'll leave it to you Robert Bolling experts to determine which Robert this is. (1414) The Court of Appeals in Virginia, 1801 had a case Fleming vs. Bolling.  It involved the will of Edward Bolling who died in Aug 1770.  Mentions sister Tazewell, and brothers Robert who died in 1775 (Fh510), Thomas (Fh700), John (Fh390) and Archibald (Fh050). (979) Joseph Cabell had as his second wife Anne Everard Bolling. (1611) Joseph Cabell, father of Elizabeth Robertson Cabell, married the second time Anne E., daughter of Archibald Bollin, of Red Oak, Buckingham County, Virginia., and his wife, Jane Randolph.  Archibald Bolling was lineally descended from Colonel Robert Bolling of Petersburgh,[sic] Virginia., and his wife, who was the granddaughter of the Indian Princess Pocahontas. (1288) Archibald Bolling and his wife Jane Bolling (could be 830b or Fh050) both witnessed land deed dated 20 April 1780 in Henry County, Virginia, for Joseph Shores Price. (824) Archibald Bolling attended college with Thomas Jefferson, later President of the United States. (7)  Archibald Bolling was in the same 1762 graduating class as Thomas Jefferson at the College of William and Mary. (215) Archibald Bolling attended the College of William and Mary, 16 Sep 1761 through 24 Mar 1765.  A Edward Bolling was there 16 Sep 1761 through 16 Dec 1763. (979) Archibald Bolling attended the College of William and Mary, 1761 through 1765.  A Edward Bolling was there 1761 through 1764. (1439) I am almost certain that  Archibald and Edward Bolling who attended William and Mary were brothers, both sons of Major John Bolling (1700-1757). Edward, would have been fifteen and his brother eleven. (739) At one time I thought that Archibald (Fh050,R) was the father of my John (Fh4476), but Archibald (Fh050,R) had a son John R. Bolling/Bowling (050g,R) that married Elizabeth Powell in Nelson county (Wyndham Robertson does show him as married but he did while he was overseer of his sister and her husband -- Col. Megginson -- plantation in Nelson County).  Elizabeth died in 1823 (source: Lynchburg newspaper notices of marriages and deaths). (1508)  

Archibald Bolling (Fh050,R) found in Buckingham County, Virginia, 1779 tax list. 

Archibald Bolling (Fh050,R) found in Cumberland County, Virginia, 1782 tax list.. 

Archibald Bolling - Senior (Fh050,R) Campbell County, Virginia, 1810 tax list. 

Archibald Bolling - Junior (050a, R)Campbell County, Virginia, 1810 tax list.. 

per the AIS search 1 of the LDS Family History Records. (1414)

Archibald Bolling, 8 Jul 1790, CGB 22:382-1, 400a
Campbell/brs WreckIsland Ck
Archibald Bolling, 8 Jul 1790, CGB 22:381-1, 400a
Campbell/brs WreckIsland Ck
Archibald Bolling, 8 Jul 1790, CGB 22:380, 400a
Campbell/brs WreckIsland Ck
Archibald Bolling, 9 Jul 1790, CGB 22:383-1 Campbell & Amherst/S s & bs Fluvanna
Archibald Bolling, 9 Jul 1790, GB 22:383-1, f Campbell & Amherst/S s & bs Fluvanna
Archibald Bolling, 9 Jul 1790, GB 22:383-1, f Campbell & Amherst/S s & bs Fluvanna
Archibald Bolling,11 Aug 1796, CGB 36:113, 600a
Buckingh/on LittleWreckIsland Ck
Archibald Bolling, 5 Jul 1803, CGB 51:382, 70a
Campbell/W brs Elk Ck, fk WreckIsland Ck (1414)(1475)
"The Virginia Historical Society reports the following recently accessioned manuscript collections: papers, 1748-1905, of the Bolling family of Richmond, including correspondence, accounts, and land records of Archibald Bolling (Fh050,1R), Blair Bolling (Fh155,1R), John Bolling (1700-1757)(Fh380,1R) and John Bolling (1832-1905) (155f,1R)"  (2097)
(Also see source 39) 

1R 60.  
Archibald 1774-1829/m1801 Catharine Payne--His father was John W. #390


a
Archibald c1802-1860/m1835 Anne Elizabeth Wigginton




   (grandparents of Mrs. Edith (Bolling) Holcomb wife of




   U.S. President Woodrow Wilson)


a
Edward c1804-1855/Anne Cralle


a
Alexander c1806-1878/Susan Gray


a
Jefferson bc1808--never married



5. Son



6. Son


a
Catherine bc1812--never married


a
Pocahontas R. bc1810/1/h William G. White 2/h m1867 Peter J.  Hill


a
Children per Source #1106


1R  
Fh060  
Archibald Bolling was a male child born 1774 in Goochland County, Virginia, to John William and Mary (Jefferson) Bolling. (30)  Archibald Bolling was the son of John and Mary (Jefferson) Bolling.  (7) Archibald Bolling married 1801 Catherine Payne in Goochland County, Virginia. (7)(1213) She was the daughter of Archer Payne. They had children: Dr. Archibald who married Anne E. Wigginton, Edward who married Anne Cralle, Alexander who married Susan Gray and Pocahontas R. who married first William G. White and second Peter J. Hill. They had four other children. (7)  Archibald Bolling was the son of John and Mary (Jefferson) Bolling.  He married Catherine Payne. (790) Archibald Bolling was born about 1778, at "Chestnut Grove", Goochland County, Virginia, the son of John and Mary (Jefferson) Bolling.  He married 1801 Catharine Payne. (204) Archibald Bolling was born about 1778 at "Chestnut Grove"' Goochland County, Virginia, the son of John and Mary (Jefferson) Bolling.  He married 1801, Goochland County, Virginia, Catherine Payne, daughter of Archer and Martha (Dandridge) Payne.  They had children: Archibald, Edward, Alexander, Jefferson, Pocahontas R. and Catherine. Children were born from about 1802 to about 1812 at "Red Oak", Buckingham County, Virginia. (206) Archibald Bolling bought land in Goochland County, Virginia, 1804. Mentions debt of Thomas Bolling, Jr. son of Thomas Bolling of "Cobbs". (1190) If the children were in fact born at "Red Oak" then their father was probably Archibald Cary Bolling the son of Archibald and Sarah (Cary) Bolling (Fh50). (See Archibald Cary will under Fh50). (7) Archibald Bolling married 1801, Goochland County, Virginia, Catharine Payne, the daughter of Archibald Payne. (208) Archibald Bolling married Catherine Payne. (313)(710)  Archibald Bowling was the son of John and Mary (Jefferson) Bowling (Fh390).  Archibald married Catherine Payne the daughter of Archibald Payne.  They had a child: Archibald who married Ann E.  Wiggington. (320)  Archibald Bolling married Catherine, the youngest daughter of Archer Payne. They had children Dr.  Archibald Bolling who married Ann E. Wigginton, Edward who married Ann Cralle, Alexander who married Susan Gray and Pocahontas who married first ------ White and second -----Hill.  (369)   Dr. Archibald Bolling married Catherine Payne. They had children: Dr. Archibald who married Anne Wigginton, Edward, Alexander, Jefferson, Catherine, and Pocahontas.  (103)(711) (Also see source 398)

1R  
050a  
Archibald Bolling Jr. was the son of Archibald and Sarah (Cary) Bolling Sr. (205)  Archibald Cary in his will before 1787 gives "Son-in-law Archibald Bolling, and his wife Jane, 1000 acres called "Red Oak", in Buckingham County, Virginia, whereon they now live."  Archibald Cary also provided for his minor grandson, Archibald Cary Bolling. (205) Archibald C. Bolling died and Archibald Bolling of Campbell County, Virginia was the administrator of the estate in 1795 (LFG 2 May 95). (381)  Archibald Cary Bolling was born July 20, 17xx.  Archibald Cary Bolling departed this life January 9, 1795 at the Buffalo lick, on Friday. (697)

BALAM

1R  
480c  
Balam Bolling was the youngest son of Col Robert and Jane (Rolfe) Bolling.  Balam Bolling and James Bell were the first to explore Woodsons cave in Bedford County, Virginia.  They chiseled their names "B. Bolling and J. Bell" into the walls of the cave with the date 1700.  I have always believed that the wife of Balam Bolin was a sister of James Bell. (7) Woodson's Cave on Willis Mountain is painfully inscribed in the hard stone 'B.Bolling I.Bell 1700'. (93)  John Bolling, Gent., at one time owned 400 acres on Willis Mountain which he gave to one of his friends in his will. Willis Mountain is said to be the site of the "Chellowe Plantation" where they grew the grapes for the chellowe wines. The plantation and winery of Robert Bolling.  (7)

BLAIR

1R 155. 
Blair 1791-1839/1/w m1824 Margaret Ann Webster 1805-1825--His father was Archibald #50



2/w m1827 Penelope Storrs 1806-1849



Pocahontas Ann 1825-1836


a
Archibald 1827-1897/m1852 Elizabeth Trueheart Armistead


a
Mary Susanna 1829-1858/1/h m1851 Gervas Storrs Burton, 2/h m1858 Dr. J.C. Macon



Powhatan d1832



Jane Rolfe 1830-1831


a
John 1831-1905/1/w m1855 Maria Page Armistead 1831-1859, 2/w m1863 Julia Brown Tinsley 



d1875



Blair d1835



Martha Storrs 1836-1837



Blair 1838-1839


a
Paulina S. 1839-1857


a
Children per Source #1106

1R  
Fh155  
Blair Bolling was born 1792 the son of Archibald Bolling (Fh050).  He married first 1824 M.A. Webster and married second 1827 Penelope Storrs.  He had children: Archibald, John, Mary Susan and perhaps Paulina. (?)  Blair Bolling, son of Archibald and grandson of John and Elizabeth (Blair) Bolling, was Captain of the Virginia State Guard.  In the 1830 Census there were two Blair Bollings in Virginia; one in Richmond and the other in Powhattan County. (7)  Blair Bolling was deed land 1835 in Goochland and Powhattan County, Virginia. (7)  Blair Bollin is given notice by W.  Bowlin that W. Bowlin mistakenly received a letter from John Thompson meant for Blair Bollin.  Notice was given in the Kentucky Gazette, 1812, a Lexington, Fayette County, Kentucky, newspaper. (7)(1339)  Blair Bolling was the son of Archibald Bolling (Fh050).  He was captain of the State Guard.  He married first M.A. Webster and second 1827 Penelope Storrs. (313) Blair Bolling was born 1790 (sic) the son of Archibald Bolling (Fh050).  Blair Bolling married first Margaret Ann Webster the niece of Governor James Pleasant.  Blair Bolling married second Penelope Storrs the daughter of Gervas and Martha (Trueheart) Storrs.  Blair Bolling purchased "Centre Hill", Powhatan County, Virginia, 1826 from James Pleasant.  Blair Bolling, Captain of Richmond Public Guard, submitted bids for contract to build the Bell House (Capitol Square), Richmond, Virginia, in 1825.  Governor James Pleasant reported brickwork had been done in "superior style".  Captain Bolling then contracted with David Burr for a new bell.  Worn out by a life of ceaseless activity, Blair Bolling died at his Powhatan County, Virginia, home 1839 at age 47 and is buried there. (339)(340) Blair Bolling had land transactions, 1835, in both Powhatan and Goochland Counties, Virginia. (1190)  Two-volume diary of Blair Bolling (born 1792) covering the period 1810-1839.  Bolling, the scion of a prominent Virginia family an officer in the War of 1812, commanded the public guard in Richmond from 1818 to 1839 and was active in the social, cultural, and business life of the city and it's environs.  (903)  I have copies of almost 300 pages of the journal and related material in Blair Bolling's own handwriting.  Blair Bolling was born 1790 the son of Archibald and Jane (Randolph) Bolling (Fh050).  He married first 1824 Margaret Anne Webster (1805-1825). He married 2rd 1827 Penelope Storrs the daughter of Gervas and Martha (Trueheart) Storrs.  They had children: Pocahontas Ann who died 1836, Archibald 1827-1897 who married 1852 at "Woodville" Elizabeth Trueheart Armistead, Mary Susanna 1829-1858 who married 1st 1851 Gervas Storrs Burton and 2rd 1858 Dr. J.C.  Macon, Powhatan who died 1832, Jane Rolfe 1830-1831, John 1831-1905 who married 1st 1855 at "Woodville" Maria Page Armistead (1831-1859) and married 2rd 1863 Julia Brown Tinsley, Blair who died 1835, Martha 1836-1837, Blair 1838-1839, and Paulina S. 1839-1857. Blair Bolling (Fh155) died 1839 at "Centre Hill", Powatan County, Virginia.  (339) Capt. Blair Bolling is buried in the cemetery at "Centre Hill" at Fine Creek Mills, in Powhattan County, Virginia.  The cemetery is on the bank of the James River, about 1/2 mile from the house, and surrounded by an iron fence, which has been knocked down, along with two table top tomb stones, by a falling tree.  There are four marked graves, as follows: Sacred to the Memory of / Paulina S. Bolling / Born Oct.  23, 1839 / Died March 3, 1857; A Tribute of Filial Affection / to the memory of / Penelope, consort of Capt. Blair Bolling / who departed this life / 29th of May 1849 / in the 43rd year of her age; Sacred to the Memory of / Capt.  Blair Bolling / who departed this life / August 3, 1839 / Age 48 years and 5 months / This tablet erected to his memory / by his affectionate wife; and A Tribute of Affection to / the memory of / John R. Bolling / Born Aug. 7, 1784 / Died March 24, 1851.  (682)(683)  Daughter Martha Storrs Bolling of Powhatan County, Virginia, had an obit in the "Richmond Whig" September 8, 1837.  (7)  Daughter Pocahontas Ann Bolling of Richmond, Virginia, had an obit in the "Richmond Whig", May 31, 1836 but later Pocahontas Ann Bolling, formerly of Richmond, Virginia, had an obit in the "Richmond Whig", April 3, 1838.  This second entry might be for the wife of William Smith Bolling (710j). (7) Daughter Pocahontas Ann Bolling is buried in the Contention Cemetery in Goochland County, Virginia.  Her stones has date of birth as 28 April 1825 and date of death as 25 May 1836. (782) Daughter Jane Rolfe Bolding (sic) of Richmond County, Virginia, had an obit in the Richmond Enquirer", July 24, 1827.  (7)  Blair Bolling, son of Archibald Bolling (Fh50), was Captain of the State Guard.  He married first Miss Webster, second, Penelope Storrs.  He was a first cousin of Col. William Bolling (Fh800).  He was an Attorney in 1827. (807) Cemetery record of the Bolling family cemetery at "Centre Hill," Powhatan County, Virginia. Those interred include Bolling, Blair, (Fh155) d. 1839. Bolling, John E,(050f)1784-1851. Bolling, Pauline S.,(155j)1839-1857. Bolling, Penelope S.,(Fh155, wife)d. 1849. (1424) Blair Bolling was honorable discharged June 15, 1815. (1690) "The Virginia Historical Society reports the following recently accessioned manuscript collections: papers, 1748-1905, of the Bolling family of Richmond, including correspondence, accounts, and land records of Archibald Bolling (Fh050,1R), Blair Bolling (Fh155,1R), John Bolling (1700-1757)(Fh380,1R) and John Bolling (1832-1905) (155f,1R)"  (2097)
DRURY

1W 170.
Drury b1694-1726/m1715 1/w Elizabeth Bathurst-- His father was Robert #480



2/w Elizabeth Merriwether b1699



Frances Elizabeth 1724-1774/m1740 Theodorick Bland

1W  
Fh170  
Drury Bolling was a male child born 1695 to Robert and Anne (Stith) Bolling in Prince George County, Virginia. (30) Drary Bolling was born 1695 the son of Robert and Anne (Stith) Bolling.  He married Elizabeth Merriwether. (65) Drury Bolling married 1715 Miss Elizabeth Bathurst, in Prince George County, Virginia. (1270)  Drury Bolling was born 1694 the son of Robert and Anne (Stith) Bolling.  He married Elizabeth Merriwether and had one child Francis 1724-1774 who married Theodorick Bland. (73) Daughter Francis Bolling. I have from the VA Land Office Patents & Grants available on line at <http://image.vtls.com/collections/LO.html> the following on Francis Bolling: 697 a......Prince George.....16 Jun 1727...Lower Side of Seller Fork of Deep Creek, d/o Drury (Card 23) 200 a......Prince George.....20 Jun 1733...On Ridge bet Nummisseen & Winticomaick Creek, d/o Drury (Card 25)(1414) The general area of Francis Bolling's land on a ridge between Nummisseen and Wintocomack Creek in Amelia and there is a Bolling/Bollins Cemetery located there. Most surely we are talking about Francis Bolling (d/o Drury) with a daughter or daughter-in-law named Jane. (1414) Frances Bolling a lineal descendant by a Robert Bolling and his second wife Ann Stith. (872) Drury Bolling had land 1718 in Surry County, Virginia. (7) Drury Bolling was involved in a court case (1714-1720) on pages 288 and 301 of the Prince George County, Virginia, Court Order Book.  (419) In 1820/1 there was a land survey for Seth Pettypool of 134 acres “lying between Drury Bolling’s Lands and the Middle Creek” in Price George County, Virginia. (1833)  Drury Bolling was involved in a 1722 land transaction in Prince George County, Virginia.  He still had land there in 1732.  (41)  Drury Bolling had an inventory dated 1726 in Prince George County, Virginia.  (35) A slave of Capt. Drury Bolling, deceased, named Mal, was born 1726, according to the Bristol Parish Register. (110)(112)(224)  Frances Bolling, daughter of Drury Bolling deceased, bought land 1727 in Prince George County, Virginia. (41) Frances Bolling, Daug,  20 June 1733, VPB 15 p65-66, 
200a, Pr George Co. on ridge be. (1414)(1475) Drury Bolling of "Kippax" had as his only daughter and heir Frances Bolling who married Theodorick Bland. (109) Theodorick Bland, youngest son of Richard, married Frances Bolling, only daughter and heir of Drury Bolling, Gent. (1258) "Kippax" was afterwards called by my maternal uncle Theodorick Bland "Farmingdale", it is about three miles from "Cawsons" (872). Daughter Frances Bolling married Theodorick Bland. (872) Drury Bolling of "Kippax" was born 1695 the son of Robert and Anne Bolling.  rury had one child Frances (1724-1774) who married Theodick Bland. (337)  Col.  Drewry (sic) Bolling was the son or Robert Bolling.  He married Elizabeth Meriwether.  They had a daughter Frances Bolling (1724-1774) who married 1738 Theodorick Bland (1720-1784). (363)  Drury Bolling had a daughter Frances Bolling who in 1739 married Theodorick Bland. (367) Surry County, Virginia, Deed, 10 April 1744...Theodorick Bland, Gent. of Prince George County and his wife, Frances [Bolling?] Bland, to Edward Broadnax, Gent. of Charles City Co., for 125 pounds current money...600 acres bounded by James Munford, and the land of Stith Bolling (650a) near a place called "Stoney Creek." (1527)(1551) There is a town called Stoney Creek in Virginia today.  There is a Bolling Swamp near by. (1527) Drury Bowling married Elizabeth Meriwether, daughter of Francis Meriwether, 1762 (sic).  This according, not to marriage records, but to "Land Trials", page 185. (565)  Drury Bolling and his wife Elizabeth Meriwether, daughter of Francis Meriwether, had a daughter Frances who married underage in 1740 Theodorick Bland.  (970)  Drury Bolling, gentleman of Kippax, Prince George County, Virginia was born 21 June 1695 the 5th child of Robert Bolling and his 2nd wife Anne, daughter of John Smith (sic) of Brunswick County, Virginia. (1096)  Drury Bolling was a vestryman of Bristol Parish in 1724 and for many years after. (1096)  There was a 21 October 1740 court case in Essex County, Virginia., mentioning Drury and Elizabeth (Meriwether) Bolling, both dec’d, and their daughter Frances wife of Theodorick Bland. (1096)     

EDWARD

R &

1W 190. Edward d1636/Maude or Magdaleine Green/Greene--Head of Family String W


Tristram d1626



Edward



Robert d1639/Anne Clark/Clarke--See Family Group #470



Ellen



Beatrix

1R & W  Fh190  
Edward Bolling married Maude Greene.  They had a son Robert (Fh470). Edward died 1636. (64)  Edward Bolling was the son of Tristram Bolling.  Edward Bolling resided at "Chellow" and died there in 1592.  His widow Maud married Thomas Fleming.  Robert Bolling (Fh470) was the son of Edward Bolling. (815)

1W 201.
Edward 1687-1710/-----Slaughter--His father was Robert #480



Benjamin



2 Child



3 Child



4 Child



5 Child



6 Child

1W  
Fh201 
Edward Bolling was born 1687 the son of Robert and Anne (Stith) Bolling (Fh480).  Edward's older brother Robert was born 1682 in Prince George County, Virginia.  Edward Bolling married - ----Slaughter. (65)  A Melba Young of Virginia (c<1960), in her several years of Virginia research, reportedly came upon information that young Edward (Fh201), son of Col. Robert Bolling (Fh480) and Anne Stith, married a Miss Slaughter and had son Benjamin.  Since Slaughter land records are found in Stafford County, Virginia, there is a possibility this son Benjamin may be the Benjamin who married Mary Latham, 1725 and also could be the Benjamin of Ky., Tenn., and Wise County, Virginia. William Burns of Phoenix, Ariz., also thought the Benjamin of those states probably was not the son of Major John Bolling (Fh380). (51)(957) Edward Bolling had an inventory dated 1715 in Prince George County, Virginia.  (35) Edward Bolling married about 1707 -----Slaughter.  (?) Edward/Edmon Bolling's father was Col. Robert Bolling (Fh480) who was born December 26, 1645.  (794) Edward/Edmon Bolling had a son Benjamin Bolling.  (794) In a 1735 letter of Major William Mayo of Goochland County, Virginia, to a person in England "My Invoice I sent by Capt.  Bolling who I hope is with you before this day".  The author states (and is probably wrong since Edward probably died about 1710) in a footnote I believe that Capt.  Bolling was Edward Bolling (born 3 Oct 1687) the son of Robert and Jane (Stith) Bolling, who commanded a merchant vessel in trade between England and Virginia.  He is believed to be "Captain Bolling" (otherwise not identified) among the Bolling portraits. Thomas Bolling of "Bolling Hall" allowed these portraits to be photographed. (920)  Young Edward Bolling died in his early 20's of smallpox while serving as captain on one of William Byrd's ships. (51)(957)  William Byrd of Westover in his secret diary on 14 June 1710 notes "I learned that my sloop was taken into Martinique.  Captain Ned Bolling died of the smallpox at sea and so did Ch-s-t-r, both pretty young men".  The maritime tradition of the unfortunate Captain Ned (Edward) Bolling was continued by his brother Thomas (480j) who was ten years younger. (339)  Edward Bolling was born October 3, 1687, the third of the family of Robert Bolling (Fh480).  This Edward had a son Benjamin.  (983) Edward born 1687. (Fh201) (65)(73)(246)(247)(368)(314) Edward (1687-1710) married a Miss Slaughter and had 6 children. (320) Edward/Edmon Bolling had a son Benjamin Bolling. (794)  The third of the family was a son named Edward born October 3, 1687. This Edward had a son Benjamin. (983) My source for Edward Bolling b.10/31/1687 to parents Robert Bolling 1646 - 1079 and Anne Meriweather Stith 1665 - 1709, m. 1681 at Kippox, Virginia, is the Book "The Family of William And Elizabeth Bolling Robertson of Richmond, Virginia 1585-1981", by Julian Hart Robertson & James Samuel Patton 1981, pages. 19-22. (393) Regarding Edward Bolling, this is all I know of him. I have never found proof that he was married let alone to a Slaughter. Here it is:
14 Mar 1710 –“Capt. Ned [Edward] Bolling died of the small pox at sea and so did Ch-s-t-r, both pretty young men. The death of this last makes way for Isham Randolph to command Colonel Hill's ship for which he shall have my recommendation. My wife was melancholy, which made me weep....”
10 May 1715 - Edward Bolling [Source: Deeds, Etc. 1713-1728, Pt. 1 (Reel 1), p. 55, Inv. & Appr. Rec. 10 May 1715. (Part of Index to Prince George County Wills and Administrations (1713-1800); Place: Prince George Co., VA; Form: Estate Inventories, aat. Collection: Virginia Wills and Administrations
I would guess from the above information that 1) Edward and Christopher were closely related (but not necessarily brothers and Christopher might not have been a Bolling!),  2) That William Byrd knew them both probably through their families and 3) that Edward was older and had established some sort of estate, while Ch-s-t-r had not. That does not in my mind assume that Edward was married, however. But why researchers have left Ch-s-t-r out of the data completely is a mystery to me unless they too concluded that he was not a Bolling. Assuming that Christopher was a Bolling, do I think that this is the same Christopher who owned land in Cumberland Co. VA ca 1734? No, I don't but if he was a Bolling I believe that they descended from a common grandparent. I think that in our searches we should also look for the Estate Sale of Edward's property which usually lists not only the items but who purchased them. Some researchers believe that the family of the deceased are often the major purchasers of the items sold and that would give us a major clue. (1414) 

1R 210.
Edward 1772-1835/m 1794 Dorothea Dandridge "Dolly" Payne b1777--His father was John W. #390



Powhatan R. 1795-d<1840/m1823 Arminda R. Payne--See Family Group #4678



2. Son



3. Son



4. Son

1R  
Fh210  
Edward Bolling was a male child born 1772 in Goochland County, Virginia, to John William and Mary (Jefferson) Bolling. (30)  Edward Bolling married Dorothea Dandridge Payne 1794 in Goochland County, Virginia. (30) Edward Bolling married 1794 Dorothea D. Payne in Goochland County, Virginia. (1213) Edward Bolling was born 1772 in "Chestnut Grove"' Goochland County, Virginia, the son of John and Mary (Jefferson) Bolling.  He married Dorothea Dandridge Payne daughter of Archer and Martha (Dandridge) Payne. They had son Powhatan R. Bolling born 1795.  (203)  Edward Bolling married Dolly Payne and he died 1835. (313) Edward Bolling was in the 1810 Census of Goochland County, Virginia. (349)  Edward Bolling married Dorothea Dandridge Payne and had a son, Powhatan Bolling. (369)  Dorothea Payne was the wife of Edward Bolling. (710)

1R   
380g  
Edward Bolling was a male child born 1746 in Dinwiddie County, Virginia, to John and Elizabeth (Blair) Bolling. (30)  Edward Bolling 1746-1770.  His father was Major John Bolling.  All were descendants of Pocahontas. (45) Edward was unmarried. (64)  Edward Boling had a will dated 1769 in Amherst County, Virginia. (35)  Edward Bolling died 1770.  His will named sister Mrs. Tazewell and brothers: Robert who died 1775, Thomas, John and Archibald. (79) Edward Bolling's will mentions brothers and sisters re:Thomas, John, Robert, Mary Bland, Sarah Tazewell, Archibald and Ann.  Edward Bolling's will was written in Amherst County, Virginia.  Robert Bolling (evidently his brother) was the executor of the estate and on the motion of Robert Bolling the estate of Edward Bolling was entered to probate in Amherst County, Virginia in 1770.  But evidently there was no final settlement of this estate until the early 1800s when there was a suit before the supreme court of Virginia to effect a settlement. It seems that several of the heirs were by then deceased or not mentioned in the abstract I read. (7)  The Court of Appeals in Virginia, 1801 had a case Fleming vs.  Bolling.  It involved the will of Edward Bolling who died in Aug 1770.  Mentions sister Tazewell, and brothers Robert who died in 1775 (Fh510), Thomas (Fh700), John (Fh390) and Archibald (Fh050).  (979) Edward Bolling wrote a will in Chesterfield County, Virginia, but the will was filed October 1, 1770 in Amherst County, Virginia.  He named his brothers: Thomas, John, Robert, and Archibald.  He named his sisters: Ann Bolling, Sarah Taxe (sic) and Margaret (sic) Bland.  He also names his cousin Bolling Eldridge. (346) Edward Bolling the son of John and Elizabeth Bolling was born at Cobbs in Chesterfield County, Virginia, 9 Sept 1746 and died at his plantation in Amherst County, Virginia, 18 Aug 1770 (VGR 13 Sep 70). (381)(7) John Bolling (Fh380) had a will giving Edward Bolling the plantations at Falling River, Butcher's River and Roanoke River, the house at "Cobbs", a tract on Swift Creek, tobacco warehouse in Pocahontas (opposite Petersburg), a tract called "The Old Town" also in Chesterfield County and all the land Col.  Bolling possessed in Amherst County, which might amount to 6000 acres. (62) Edward Bolling attended the College of William and Mary 16 Sep 1761 through 16 Dec 1763.  An Archibald Bolling attended the College of William and Mary, 16 Sep 1761 through 24 Mar 1765.  (979) Edward Bolling attended the College of William and Mary, 1761 through 1764. An Archibald Bolling was there 1761 through 1765. (1439) I am almost certain that  Archibald and Edward Bolling who attended William and Mary were brothers, both sons of Major John Bolling (1700-1757). Edward, would have been fifteen and his brother eleven. (739) Edward Bolling is mentioned in his father’s 1749 will as “I Give and Dev1se unto my Son Edward Bolling, his Heirs and Afsigns (sic, Assigns) forever my Lands in the County of Lunenburgh on the Heads of the Branches of Falling River containing Five Thousand Acres also my Land on Roanoak River on Butcher's Creek and the Reversion of all my Lands given unto my Wife lying on the South Side of James River and north side of Appomattox River not herein before given. Also my Land Called John Bollings Inspection at the Point which said Lands at the Point I give unto my said Son Edward, his Heirs and Afsigns (sic, Assigns) when he shall arrive to the age of Twentyone years. I also give and devise unto my said Son Edward my Land called the Buffalo Lick on both Sides of James River also all my Entries not Pattented above Possum Creek to him his Heirs and Afsigns (sic, Assigns) forever.” (1487) A list of fees delivered Mr. Gab. Penn, Deputy Sheriff, of Amherst County, Virginia, April 1771.
Franklin Bowling
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Edward Bolling Executor

137

Edward Bolling Dec. Estate
140 (1414)(1742) 
1R & W 360.
John d1684/m1640 Mary Carie Trudor or Clarke--His father was Robert #470



John bapt. 1644--See Family Group #371



Robert 1646-1709/Jane Rolfe--See Family Group #480



Daughter d1648

1R & W Fh360  
John Bolling was the son of Robert and Anne (Clarke) Bolling.  John married Mary Carie.  They had a son Col. Robert Bolling (Fh480). (64)(815)  John Bolling lived in London. (815) John Bolling married Mary -----and had a son Robert Bolling (Fh480).  (753) John Bolling I and his wife Mary Bolling of London, had a son Col.  Robert Bolling (Fh480) born 1646 in London and came to Prince George County, Virginia in 1660.  He married Jane Rolfe as his first wife in 1675. (391) John and Mary Bolling had a son Robert Bolling who was born 1646 and married a Jane.  (314) John Bolling was the eldest son of Robert and Anne (Clarke) Bolling of London.  John Bolling had a son Robert Bolling who came to Virginia. (577) Son Robert Bolling, immigrant, (Fh480) is reputed to have an older brother named John Bolling (perhaps Fh371). (876)

1W 364.
John Peyton 1788-1861/m1820 Ann Field Gilliam (1796-d>1850)--His father was Thomas #710


a
Mary F. b1828-d>1850


a
Seignora P. 1829-1865/Wyndham Kemp


a
Lucy Skelton b1830-d>1850


a
Arabella bc1831/1848 Willis W. Hobson


a
Fanny H. or K. 1832-1872/John Kemp


a
Evelyn T. b1834/1/h James Gilmer,2/h John Wimbish


a
E. Anne Peyton 1836-d>1850


a
Children per Source #1106

1W  
Fh364  
John Payton Bolling was born 1788 the son of Thomas Tabb and Signora (Peyton) Bolling.  John Payton Bolling married 1820 Ann F.  Gilliam, daughter of James Skelton Gilliam of Petersburg.  John Payton Bolling died 1861. (110)  John Peyton Bolling was born 1788.  He was of Petersburg, Dinwiddie County, Virginia.  He was the son of Thamas Tabb and Seigniora (Peyton) Bolling (Fh710).  He married 1820 Ann Field Gilliam the daughter of James Skelton and Mary (Field) Gilliam.  They had children: Mary F., Seignora P.  who died 1865, Lucy, Arabella, Fanny H. or K who died 1872, Evelyn T., and Anne Peyton.  John Peyton Bolling died 1861 and was of Prince George County, Virginia. (489)  John Peyton Bolling was born 1788 the son of Thomas Tabb Bolling (Fh710).  He married 1820, Petersburg, Virginia, Ann Field Gilliam the daughter of Dr.  James Skelton Gilliam.  They had children: Mary F., Seigniora Peyton who married Wyndham Kemp, Lucy Skelton, Arabella who married 1848 Willis W. Hobson, Fanny H. who married John Kemp, Evelyn T. who married first James Gilmer and second John Wimbish, Anne Peyton. (572) John P. Bolling was in the War of 1812 Virginia Bounty Land and Pension file.  He married 1820 Nancy Gilliam.  She was alive 1878.  John P. Bolling died 1861 in Petersburg, Dinwiddie County, Virginia.  (934)(935)  John P.  Bolling serviced in Scott's and Town's Company of the Virginia Militia in the War of 1812.  Pension number was WC-7299.  His wife was Nancy Gilliam. (935) In the 1850 U.S. Census, City of Petersburg, Virginia, taken 28 Oct 1850, in dwelling # 658 and family # 760.  Had the following live-in souls. Peyton Bolling (Fh364) age 60, Ann 50 (F), Mary 27 (F), Lenora(?) (F), Lucy 23 (F), Tammy 20 (F), Evelina(?) 18 (F), Anna 17 (F). (1414)

1R 370.
John 1676-1729/m1697 Mary Kennon (1679-1711)--His father was Robert #480


ab
John 1700-1757/Lewis & Blair--See Family Group #380


ab
Jane 1703-1766/m1720 Col. Richard Randolph bc1695


ab
Elizabeth 1709-c1766/Dr. William Gay-Their dau. Elizabeth m Thomas Bolling Fh700 


ab
Mary 1711-1744/m1727 Col. John Fleming


b
Martha 1713-1749/m1727 or 1729 or 1730s Thomas Eldridge Jr. (1710-1754)


ab
Anne 1718-<1800/mc1742 James Murray-Their son William m Rebecca Bolling 700c


a
Children and birth year per Source #872.


b
Childred per Source #1106

1R & W
Fh370  
John Bolling was born 1675. (137)  John Bolling was born 1676. (64)(23)(391)(45)(104)(313)(790)(889)(65)(75)(753)(219)(314) John Bolling was the son of Col. Robert and Jane (Rolfe) Bolling (Fh480). (64)(23) (753)(391)(45) John Bolling was the only son of Robert and Jane (Rolfe) Bolling.  (65)(75)(872) John Bolling was the son of Col.  Robert, of "Kippax", Prince George County, Virginia, (sic, Prince George County was created 1702-3 from Charles City County) and Jane (Rolfe) Bolling.  She was the only daughter of Thomas Rolfe, desceased.  (47) Marriage license was granted December 29, 1697, Henrico County, Virginia, for John Bolling to marry Mary Kennon.(245)(1048) John Bolling married at St.  John's Parish, Henrico County, Virginia.  (65) John Bolling married Mary Kennon (75)(7)(146)(64)(23)(45)(104)(108)(313)(790)(889)(65)(219)(314)(9 23) John Bolling married 1697.  (65)(219)(314)(909)(923) Mary Kennon was the daughter of Richard Kennon of "Conjuror's Neck". (75)(108)(872) Mary Kennon was the daughter of Richard Kennon and Elizabeth Worsham.  (146)(108)(250)  Mary died 1727.  (7)(146) Mary Kennon (1679-1711) was the daughter of Dr.  Richard Kennon (1650-1696) and Elizabeth Warsham (1656-1705).  (64)(23) Mary Kennon was the daughter of Dr.  Kennon, of "Conjuror's Neck". (313)(872) Major John Bolling married second, 1699, Mary Kennon, daughter of Richard Kennon of Henrico County, Virginia.  (391) John Bolling married Mary Kennon in Henrico County, Virginia. (609) John Bolling (Major) of "Cobbs" was married to Mary Kennon. (47)(108)(909)(923) Major John Bolling of "Cobbs" married Mary Kennon the daughter of Richard and Elizabeth (Worsham) Kennon. (893) Wife Mary Kennon was named in a will dated and proved 1678 in Henrico County, Virginia. (47) This will was that of her grandmother Elizabeth, lastly wife of Col. Eppes and prior wife of William Worsham.  (108) Major John Bolling of "Cobbs" on the Appomattox River, son of Col.  Robert and Jane (Rolfe) Bolling, married 1697 Mary Kennon.  (250) Col.  John and Mary (Kennon) Boling left issue one son and five daughters:

    
a.  Major John Bolling (Fh380) 1700-1787 (45) John (1700-1757) (64)(23) John born 1700 (75) Major John (104) John Bolling who married Elizabeth Blair. (250)  John Bolling of "Cobbs" was the great grandson of Pocahontas. (79) John (a great merchant and Indian trader) settled at "Cobbs" in Chesterfield County, Virginia on the Appomattox. John, born 1700 died at "Cobbs" 1729 (872) 

    
b.  Jane (45)  Jane born about 1690 and she married Richard Randolph. (362)  Jane Bolling (1703-1767) married Col. Richard Randolph of "Curls". (889)  Jane Bolling married Col. Richard Randolph of Curls Neck, Henrico. (971) Jane married Col.  Richard Randolph.  (79) Jane born 1703 who married Richard Randolph (75) Miss Bolling, a descendant of Pocahontas, married Richard Randolph of "Curles".  (387) Jane (104) A painted portrait of Jane Bolling Randolph 1703-1766 (Mrs.  Richard Randolph, Sr.) is hang in the "Bolling Room" of the Muscarelle Museum of Art on the Campus of William and Mary College in Williamsburg, Virginia.  (7) Jane Bolling, great- grand-daughter of Pocahontas, married Richard Randolph of "Curles".  (101) Jane Bolling, great-great- granddaughter of John Rolfe and Pocahontas, married Richard Randolph of "Curles", on Nathaniel Bacon's confiscated plantation.  (928) Jane Bolling who married Col.  Richard Randolph of "Curles", son of Col. William Randolph of "Turkey Island".  (250) Jane Bolling born about 1690 at "Cobbs"; she married Richard Randolph.  (362) Richard Randolph along with John Bolling (perhaps his brother-in-law Fh380 or 650c) and Col. William Kennon in 1734 was granted ten thousand acres in Brunswick County, Virginia "Beginning 5 miles below the great swamp on little Roanoak running ten miles up the said River including the land on both side of side River".  (893)(921) Jane Bolling married Richard Randolph of "Curls Neck".  Jane Bolling was fourth in descent from Pocahontas. (367) Jane (my grandmother) born 1703 married Richard Randolph of "Curls" youngest son of William Randolph of "Turkey Island".  (872)  Notes of John Randolph of Roanoke, 1757, my grandmother Jane Bolling, sister of John Bolling, married Richard Randolph of "Curls" (922) Jane Bolling, daughter of John Bolling, son of Robert Bolling and a descendant of Pocahontas, married Richard Randolph who was born at Turkey Island about 1695. They are the ancestors of John Randolph of Roanoke. (1765)    


c.  Mary born 1711 who married John Fleming (75) Mary (45) Mary Bolling married -----Fleming.  (715) Mary (104)  Mary born 1711 married John Fleming. (872)  Mary Bolling, second daughter of Major John Bolling, late of "Cobbs" in Henrico, now Chesterfield, married 1727 John Fleming.  She died 1744. (62)  Mary Bolling married John Fleming 1727 in Henrico County, Virginia. (1059)


d.  Anne Bolling married James Murrary who died 1772. (548) Anne born 1718 married James Murray. (75)  Anne Bolling was born 1718 in Greenville, South Carolina (Sic, Greenville, S.C. was not created until 1798!). (814) Anne Boling.  (104)  Anne Bolling was the wife of James Murray.  (370) Ann born 1718 married James Murray. (872)  Anne Bolling was a sponsor at the christening of John Eldridge born 1741 the son of Thomas and Martha Eldridge. (1185)  

    
e.  Elizabeth born 1709 married Dr. William Gay (75) Elizabeth (104)  Elizabeth born 1709 married Dr William Gay. (872)  Elizabeth (Bolling) Gay had a 1766 will, Chesterfield County, Virginia, that named her daughter Elizabeth "Betty" (Gay) Bolling and son-in-law Thomas Bolling of "Cobbs". (62) 

    
f.  Martha born 1713 married Thomas Eldridge (75) -----Bolling married -----Ethridge and they had Jane Ethridge who was named in her aunt Jane (Bolling) Randolph's will.  (889) Martha (104) Martha Bolling was born 1713, Roanoke, Bedford County, Virginia, the daughter of Col. John and Mary (Kennon) Bolling.  She married Thomas Eldridge the son of Thomas and Judith (Kennon) Eldridge.  (202)  Martha Bolling was the wife of Thomas Eldridge. (779)  Martha (Bolling) Eldridge was 1713-1749. (62) 

    
g.  Millicent Bolling married John Higdon; she was the daughter of John Bolling and the granddaughter of Robert Bolling who came to Virginia from England. (577) Millicent Bowling who married John Higdon was the daughter of Thomas Bowling (Fh670). (1372)  

All were descendants of Pocahonas.  (45)  John Bolling of Charles City County, Virginia was grantee of 100 acres of land in Henrico County, Virginia 1697.  (123)  John Bolling of Henrico County, Virginia, had quit rents in 1704 for 831 acres. (1020)  John Bolling, Gentleman, of Charles City purchased from Bartholomew Fowler 100 acres of land on the north side of the James River, Henrico County, Virginia, 1697 called "Varina".  This land was first patented 1683 to Robert Sharp, who sold to William Byrd, who sold to James Blair in 1686, who sold to Bartholomew Fowler.  (245) John Bolling of Charles City County, Virginia bought land "Varina", Henrico County, Virginia 1697.  He did not inherit the land from his mother Jane Rolfe. John Bolling bought the land at "Varina" not because the Rolfes once owned it but because it was the site of government for the new county of Henrico. (7)  John Bolling's land adjoined the glebe land of the church. (7)(1048) Col.  John Bolling's first "Cobbs" plantation was located on the north side of the James River.  The second "Cobbs", which he owned at his death, was located near the old church that was built by Thomas Jefferson. Neither location was the same as the "Cobbs" of John Bolling, Gent, (Fh380) on the Appomatox River. (7) John Bolling of Henrico County, Virginia, made an indenture 1698.  (47)  James City records (since destroyed) deed. "This indenture made 1 Oct 1698 between John Bolling, Gent. of Varina Parish, Henrico County, son and heir of Jane (Rolf) Bolling, late, wife of Robert Bolling, Gent.  of Charles City County.  She was the only daughter of Thomas Rolf, dec'd to William Brown, 1,000 acres of land commonly called "The Fort" on Chichahominy River as per patent granted to Thomas Rolf.  (908) As late as 1698 a deed to 1,000 acres of land in James City County, Virginia had been made to William Brown by John Bolling, grandson of Pocahontas.  (370) John Bolling held a county office 1699 in Henrico County, Virginia.  (38)(41) John Bolling (Fh370) Virginia Land Office Patents & Grants , 25 April 1701 Henrico Co. Varina Swamp (1475) John Bolling received land grants 1701, 1702.  (38)(41) John Bolling received 350 acres, Henrico County, Virginia, north side of James River, April 1702.  Beginning on the north side of the Roundabout Branch to the south side of same.  Corner of John Cox to Four Mile Creek Old Path North West upon his land called Harrahattock etc.  This land was granted 1667 to Thomas Taylor but now deserted.  Granted to John Bolling for the transportation of 7 persons. (7) John Bolling was a Justice of the Peace 1702.  (38)(41) John Bolling witnessed the October 2, 1704 will of Sarah Woodson in Henrico County, Virginia.  (669) John Bolling was a witness 1701/2 of the will of Sarah Woodson, Henrico County, Virginia. (1190) He was called Capt.  John Bowling in 1705.  (38)(41) John Bolling received a land grants 1705. (38)(41) John Bolling was appointed Sheriff of Henrico County, Virginia 1706 and 1707.  (7) Capt.  John Bolling was sheriff of Henrico County, Virginia, in 1707.  (245) John Bolling along with William Randolph, both of Henrico County, were members of the Virginia House of Burgesses in the session that began October 25, 1710.  (708) John Bolling bought land 1710 in Henrico County, Virginia, and sold it in 1721. (1190) John Bolling of Henrico County was a member of the Virginia House of Burgesses in the session that began October 25, 1710 and in 1714, 1718, 1723 and 1726.  (1144) The "Byrd Papers", Vol I, page 193, mention Col. Bolling and "Cobbs". (548) In 1710-1712 Capt.  John Bolling was paid for being a Burgess representative, Henrico County, Virginia. (245) John Bolling was a member of the House of Burgesses 1714 in Henrico County, Virginia.  (38)(41) John Bolling received land grants 1714.  (38)(41) Major John Bolling land patent date December 23, 1714, 1388 acres in Henrico County, Virginia, north side of James River beginning at this own land (1000 acres) and the land of John Woodson to the south side of Licking Hole Creek, now called "Treasurers Run", 4 pounds 15 shillings and the importation of 9 persons.  Brings total acres here to 2388.  (present day Goochland County, Virginia)  (7) John Bolling was a Justice of the Peace 1714.  (38)(41) John Bolling inventoried the estate of John Pleasants 1714 in Henrico County, Virginia. (1190) John Bolling land patent date April 1, 1715, 320 acres in Henrico County, Virginia, north side of James River, east side of Licking Hole Creek for the importation of 9 persons.  Brings total acres here to 2708.  (present day Goochland County, Virginia) (7)  The House of Burgress on August 7, 1715, reported "John Bolling of Henrico, for a breach of privilege in beating Mr.  Richard Cocke, a member, sent for in custody." (971) John Bolling, Gent., land patent date July 15, 1717, 1019 acres in Henrico County, Virginia, north side of James River, above Licking Hole Creek beginning at the land of John Woodson and John Pleasants up the main river to a great rock known by the name of "Rock Castle" for the importation of 21 persons.  Brings total acres here to 3727. (present day Goochland County, Virginia) (7) The first time the term "Gentleman" was applied to a man who took up land in this area (Henrico later Powhatan), it was to John Bolling, who got 800 acres in 1718. (1517) Major John Bolling resided 1716 and 1719 in Henrico County, Virginia. (1190) John Bolling bought land on the South side of James River, in the parish and county of Henrico, Virginia, 1717. (1190) Patent Book #10, page 324 July 15, 1717, 3rd York George, Alexander Spotswood unto John Bolling (Fh370), Gentleman, 1019 Acres on the N side of James River above licking hole Creek in Henrico County for the Importation of 21 persons whose same are Charles Goodwin, Wm. Lewis, Wm. Coram, Mary rent, Geo. Hamey, Abraham Coddle, Thomas Clifton, Luke Parker, Hannah Parker, Henry Young, Edward Seed, James Seed, Junr., James Seed Senr., James Howell, Robert Hawkins, "James Butler". Eliza. Staple, Mary Wilson, Thomas White, Mary Dyer, Geo. Mason. This land granted to John Bolling adjoined land belonging to John Woodson and John Pleasants. (1414) John Bolling received land grants 1717, 1718.  (38)(41) John Bolling, got 2,407 acres of land, in Henrico County on the south side of the James River, opposite of Licking Hole, 1,607 acres beginning at his own land, on Michaux's line, crossing a branch of Mahook (Mohawk) Creek near John Stephen's fence and 800 acrea bounded as by his patent dated July 14, 1718. Later this land was in Powhatan County, Virginia. (264)(1517) John Bolling, Gentleman, 800 acres of land, in Henrico County on the south side of the James River, adjacent to Abraham Missheux land, 1718. Later this land was in Powhatan County, Virginia. (264)(1517) Mr. John Bolling had land 1719 in Henrico County, Virginia. (1190) John Bolling land patent date May 2, 1721, in Henrico County, Virginia, north side of James River, 753 acres beginning at his 320 acres on the east side of the west branch of Licking Hole Creek or "Treasurers Run" joining the "Rock Castle's" 1388 acres.  Brings total acres here to 4480.  (present day Goochland County, Virginia) (7) John Bolling bought land 1722 in Henrico County, Virginia. (1190) John Bolling received land grants 1721, 1724, 1725, 1726.  (38)(41) John Bolling, Gent.  August 17, 1720, 343 acres of lapsed land (land was granted to Amos Ladd 1720 upon condition that he seed and plant, which he failed to do) Henrico County, north side of James River in the fork of a branch parting Amos Ladd and Edward Curd.  (7) Major John Bolling, Gent.  land patent date May 27, 1726, in Henrico County, Virginia, north side of James River of Licking Hole Creek 350 acres beginning at Thomas Dawsons land on the low side of said creek crossing creek to Thomas Ballows land and bounded to his own 4480 acres as in patent granted May 2, 1721.  Brings total acres here to 4830.  (present day Goochland County, Virginia) (7) John Bolling was listed as a Burgesses, 1726, Henrico County, Virginia.  (7)(38)(41) John Bolling received land grants 1727, and 1728 in Henrico County, Virginia. (38)(41) John Bolling, Gent. 800 acres, Henrico County, Virginia, north side of James River, May 6, 1727.  Beginning back of Mr. Fleming's "Rock Castle" Tract on the part below Fleming's "Park Creek".  4 pounds money. (7)  Gov.  William Gooch in 1728 writes "I desire Major Bolling to furnish us with 1200 lbs. of biscuit", etc.  (907)  John Bolling was a member of the House of Burgesses 1729 in Henrico County, Virginia. (38)(41) A painted portrait of Major John Bolling Sr.  1676-1729 is hang in the "Bolling Room" of the Muscarelle Museum of Art on the Campus of William and Mary College in Williamsburg, Virginia.  (7)  John Bolling died 1729. (64)(23)(45)(104)(313)(790)(889) John Bolling died at "Cobbs" 1729 and was buried there.  (75)(548) John Bolling died 1729 at "Cobbs".  (65) Major John Bolling was deceased by 1731 although some land in Goochland County, Virginia, (Goochland was created 1728 from Henrico) was still in his name.  (41) Goochland County Court Orders 1728-1737. The attachment granted to Alexander Strange agst the estate of John Bolling is dismissed, the plt not prosecuting. (1900) Goochland County Court Orders 1728-1737, p. 109 (p. 177) In the action of debt between Michael Holland, plt, and Alex' r Strange and John Bolling, defts, the sheriff having returned on the cap's, a copy left, and defts failing to appear, ordered that an alias capias issue agst them. (1900)  Mentions Major Bolling's plantation in Henrico County, Virginia, 1727. (1190) John Bolling of Bristol Parish, Henrico County, Virginia, had a will dated 1727 and recorded 1729 or 1739.  He names wife Mary and the fact that they call their plantation "Cobbs".  He further names this daughter Mary, wife of John Fleming; unmarried minor daughters Elizabeth, Martha and Ann; a daughter who is married to a Richard Randolph; and son John.  (7)(129) There was a deed, 1720, of Edmond Browder witnessed by the vestrymen of Bristol Parish including J. Bolling, Jr. (1256)  John Bolling had a will dated 1729 in Henrico County, Virginia.  (35) John Bolling of Bristol Parish, Henrico County, had a will dated 29 April 1727 probated 4 Aug 1729. Names wife Mary Bolling--to her land and plantation we now live on called "Cobbs" about 400 acres together with about 200 acres I lately purchased from William Baught. Talks about daughters and what they get, i.e. Mary Fleming and husband John Fleming 1,207 acres near Licking Hole part of 2,407 acre patent, Elizabeth the remaining part of above, daughters Martha and Ann, not married or 21 yet, land at Flat Creek that were my mother Bolling's dower, a grandson Richard Randolph and the rest to son John Bolling. In Will Book 1725-37, page 242. (1190) John Bolling had a will. See Source 1824. (1824)According to the Standard's Abstracts, page 222, the abstract of John Bolling's will dated April 29, 1727 and proved August 1729 in Henrico County, Virginia, records.  (548) The will of John Bolling of "Cobbs"  (Bristol Parish), dated April 29, 1727 and probated August 4, 1729, leaves this estate to his wife for life, and then to his son John.  Testator states in this will that "Cobbs" then consisted of about 400 acres "together with about 200 acres I lately purchased of William Baugh (sic)".  This in Henrico Deeds and Wills Book for 1725-37 on page 505.  (556) The "Cobbs", which he owned at his death, was located near the old church that was built by Thomas Jefferson.  Neither location was the same as the "Cobbs" of John Bolling, Gent, (Fh380) on the Appomatox River. (7) John Bolling (1675-1729) was a prominent citizen of Henrico County, Virginia, and was buried at "Cobbs" (137) John Bolling appears to have lived in Charles City County in early life.  A Henrico County deed Aug 1697 from Bartholomew Fowler to John Bolling, Gent. of Charles City County covered 100 acres in Henrico called "Variana".  It is believed that John Bolling was already in possession of land here inherited from his ancestor John Rolf.  (62) (Also see source 118 & 313 & 398)

1R & W 371. John bapt. 1644--His father was John #360



Elizabeth Ann/m1708 Robert Elam
1R & W Fh371 
John Bolling is reputed to have a younger brother named Robert Bolling, immigrant, (Fh480).  John Bolling's daughter Elizabeth is said to have married Martin (sic) Elam. (876) . Robert Elam (Source: The Elam Family, by Harvey Elam.) was born 1684 in Henrico County, Virginia, and died 1753 in Chesterfield County, Virginia.  Robert Elam married a Bolling.  She was born in Henrico County, Virginia. The Bolling who married Robert Elam could be Elizabeth Bolling, 371a. They married 1708 in Henrico County, Virginia. (1414) I have three records on this marriage. In each case she was Eliazabeth Ann Bolling and in each case the groom was Robert Elam. (1155)
1R 380.
John 1700-1757 (Rin=14055)/1/w m1720 Elizabeth Lewis--His father was John #370



Molly b1720/Andrew Baker--See 480L and 109h



2 daughter



3 daughter



4 daughter



2/w m1728 Elizabeth Blair (1712-1775) (only wife per source 118)

            h j
John 1729-1736

            hij
Archibald 1730-1747

            h j
Robert 1732-1736

            h j
Elizabeth 1734-1735

abcdefghij 
Thomas 1735-1804/mc1755 Elizabeth Gay--See Family Group #700

abcdefghij 
John W. 1737-1797/m1760 Mary Jefferson--See Family Group #390

abcdefghij 
Robert 1738-1775/m1763 Mary Burton--See Family Group #510 & 511

            h j 
Sarah 1740-1747

            h j 
Ann 1742-1747

abcdefghij 
Mary 1744-1775/m1761 Richard Bland Jr. (1730/1-1766)

a  de   ghij 
Edward 1746-1776 d unmarried

abcdefghij 
Sarah 1748->1801/John Tazewell b1746

abcdefghij 
Archibald 1750-1829/Cary, Randolph, Byrd, & Clark--See Family Group #50

abcdefghij 
Anne "Annie" 1752->1757<1801/m>1769 William Alexander Dandridge b1750

            h j
Elizabeth 1753-1754

            h j
Jane (twin) 1754-1754

            h j
Rebecca (Twin) 1754-1754

            h j
Elizabeth 1756-1756

The following children were listed only by Source #160 (Judge Price, 1961). No found documents before her 1961 book mention these children. While some below were real people, most researchers aggree that they do not belong to this family. 


    i
Metoaka or Meotaka "Meta" b1729/m1743 James Sullivant


    i
Elizabeth b1731-William's twin/William Robinson Jr.


    i   
William 1731-1776/m1755 Amelia Randolph--See Family Group #830


    i   
Jared b1732--See Family Group #310


    i   
Martha b1733/Richard Deal (?) or Andrew Baker (?)


    i   
Benjamin 1734-1832/Patsy Phelps or Felts & Charity Larrimore--See Family Group #110


    i   
Dorothea b1734-Benjamin's twin


    i   
Jane b1740/m       William Hopkins


    i   
Rodney 1742-1778/m1764 Elizabeth Anderson--See Family Group #570


    i   
Rolfe b1744-twin of Mary


    i   
Powhatan b1754--Also see 511c


    i   
James b1756--See Family Group #270

a

Edward named his siblings in his 1769 will. Source 35, 79, & 346

b

Children mentioned in Source 118 (Stella P. Hardy, 1911)

c

Children mentioned in Source 219 (E. Firstone,1946)

d

John named his children in his 1749 will and 1757 codicil. See Source #1487.

e
 
Robert named his siblings who survived his father, in his "Memoirs"-Source #75 1764

f

Children mentioned in Source 313 (Louise P. du Bellet,1907)

g

Children mentioned in Source 314 (Manuscript in a copy of John Purvis…"

h

Children mentioned in Source 332 (The Volta List)

i

Children mentioned in Source 160 (Judge Price, 1961)

j

Children mentioned in Source 356 (Cobbs Family Bible, Blair Bolling,1838)

1R  
Fh380  
John Bolling was born in "Varina", Chesterfield County, Virginia.  (65)  Major John Bolling 1700-1757 was the son of Colonel John Bolling (1676-1729) and Mary Kennon (1679-1711). (64)(790)  John Bolling was born 1700 the son of John and Mary (Kennon) Bolling.  (142)  John Bolling, Gent. may or may not have been a son of that John Bolling who married Mary Kennon. There were no less than three John Bolling living in Henrico County in the early 1700s. One of whom married an Elizabeth Lewis who is alleged by Wyndham Robertson (1803-1888, herein source #74) to have died young. Robertson is the sole source of this claim. It is just probable that Elizabeth Lewis died of old age maybe 50 years later.  (7)

Wife 1

A John Bolling married Elizabeth Lewis who is alleged by Wyndham Robertson (1803-1888, herein source #74) to have died young. Robertson is the sole source of this claim. It is just probable that Elizabeth Lewis died of old age maybe 50 years later. (7) Elizabeth Lewis was baptized May 7, 1706.  She was the 1st wife of John Bolling but died without issue shortly after marriage. (893) John Bolling married Elizabeth Lewis of Gloucester County, Ware Parish, Virginia. (979) The following is from a Lewis family researcher. Elizabeth Lewis, born 1702, married John Bolling in 1720. She also married Daniel Ashcraft in 1735 and after that to William Rush. She was a daughter of John Lewis and Elizabeth Warner. John Lewis was the owner of the Warner Hall plantation and was known as "Councillor" (sic). I don't have any of her marriage information but I do have all of her siblings. I got this information from Michael L. Cook's "Pioneer Lewis Families". (This looks like my Bolling source #159, but page 679 deals with another person) (1308) My records show that Molly Bolling born 1720 was first child of Major John and Elizabeth (Lewis) Bolling. Molly Bolling married 1740 Andrew Baker and lived later in Grayson County, Virginia. (1202)  John Bolling married first Elizabeth Lewis daughter of John Lewis of Gloucester. She died soon without issue. (142) John Bolling born 20 January 1700, died 6 Sept 1757; son of Major John Bolling, married (1) Elizabeth Lewis, daughter of John Lewis of "Warner Hall" (168)  Major John Bolling married first Elizabeth Lewis. (64)

Wife 2

John married second 1728 Elizabeth Blair the daughter of Dr. Archibald Blair.  John Bolling married 1728 Elizabeth Blair (c1707-1775).  She was the daughter of Archibald and Sarah (Archer) Blair.  (142) Elizabeth Blair was the daughter of Col.  Archibald and Mary (Wilson) Blair.  (?)  Elizabeth Blair (1710(?)-1775) married 1st 1728 Col. John Bolling Jr.  (1700-1757) and 2nd married 1760/62 Col. Richard Bland of Jordan's.  (971) Major John Bolling second Elizabeth Blair, daughter of Dr.  Archibald Blair. (64) "Aunt Annie Whitting/Whiting" was a half sister of Elizabeth Blair. John Bolling, Gent. was an executor of her will.  Her will named some of the deceased children of John Bolling.  (7) John Boling (Major) 1700-1757 married 1728 Elizabeth Blair daughter of Dr. Archibald Blair.  (104) Col.  John Bolling of "Cobbs", Henrico, now Chesterfield County, married 1728 Elizabeth Blair daughter of Archibald Blair.  (137) John Bolling married Elizabeth Blair in 1728 in Chesterfield or Gloucester County, Virginia. They had a large family. (30) John Bolling, Gent.  lived in the parish of Dale in the county of Chesterfield, Virginia. (7)  John Bolling had by her many children, some of whom died in their infancy; those who survived him were:


John Bolling, son of Major John and Mary (Kennon) Bolling, married Elizabeth Blair the daughter of Dr. Archibald Blair. (250) John Bolling born 1700 married second 1728 Elizabeth Blair. (219) Major John Bolling was born 1700.  He married 1728 Elizabeth Blair, daughter of Col.  Archibald Blair and niece of Dr. James Blair, one of the founders of William and Mary College and it first President.  They had seven children that made it to majority. (313) John and Elizabeth (Blair) Bolling had eight children living beyond being children as named in the will and codicil of John Bolling.  Based on the birthdates of the living children it appears the deceased children were their older ones-- said to have been one male and two females. (7)


a.  Metoaka born 1729 born in Dinwiddie County, Virginia. (30)


b.  Archibald born 1730 born in Dinwiddie County, Virginia. (30) Archibald (45) Archibald 1749-1829 (64) Archibald 2rd son of that name born 1749 (75) Archibald (Fh50). (313) Archibald (314) Archibald Bolling was born 1730 or March 20, 1749 in Greenville, South Carolina (Sic, Greenville, South Carolina. wasn't created until 1798!).  (814)



c.  Elizabeth born 1731 born in Dinwiddie County, Virginia. (30) 



d.  William born 1731 born in Dinwiddie County, Virginia. (30) William (45) William born 1731 (64)



e.  Jared born 1732 born in Dinwiddie County, Virginia. (30) Jared (45) Jared born 1732 (64)



f.  Martha born 1733 born in Dinwiddie County, Virginia. (30) Martha Bolling, daughter of Major John Bolling, married Richard Deal.  (249)


g.  Benjamin born 1734 born in Dinwiddie County, Virginia. (30) Benjamin (45) Benjamin 1734-1832 (64)  John and Elizabeth (Blair) Boling had 21 children.  One of these was Benjamin.  (104)



h.  Dorthey born 1734 born in Dinwiddie County, Virginia. (30)


i.  Thomas born 1735 born in Dinwiddie County, Virginia. (30) Thomas (45) Thomas 1735-1804 (64)  Thomas born 1735 (75) Thomas (Fh700). (313) Thomas born 1735. (314)



j.  John born 1737 born in Dinwiddie County, Virginia. (30) John (45) John 1737-1797 (64) John Bolling of "Chestnut Grove".  (250) John born 1737 (75) John (Fh390). (313) John. (314)



k.  Robert born 1738 born in Dinwiddie County, Virginia. (30) Col.  Robert (45) Robert 1738-1775 (64)  Robert (writer of memoirs) born 1738 (75) Robert (Fh510). (313) Robert born 1738.  (314) J. Bolling wrote his son Robert (Bob) Bolling 1755, when son was in Wakefield, England. (1266) 



l.  Jane born 1740 born in Dinwiddie County, Virginia. (30) John Bolling had a daughter Jane born 1740 who married William Hopkins. (180)



m.  Rodney born 1742 born in Dinwiddie County, Virginia. (30) Rodney (45) Rodney 1742-1778 (64)



n.  Mary born 1744 born in Dinwiddie County, Virginia. (30) Mary (45) Mary born 1744 (75) Mary born 1744 who married Richard Bland of "Jordans". (313) Mary. (314) Richard Bland, eldest son of Richard Bland, married 1761, Mary Bolling, daughter of Col. John Bolling of "Cobbs", in Chesterfield County, Virginia. (1258) Her father John Bolling’s 1749 will reads “I Give and Bequeath unto my Daughter Mary Bolling so much Money as will make the Legacy given her by her Aunt Anne Whiting amount to Five Hundred Pounds to be paid her when She shall Attain the Age of Twentyone Years or be Married which shall first happen.” (1487)


o.  Rolfe born 1744 born in Dinwiddie County, Virginia. (30) Rolfe (45) Rolfe born 1744 (64)



p.  Edward born 1746 born in Dinwiddie County, Virginia. (30) Edward (45)  Edward (314) Edward 1746-1770 (64) Edward 1746-1779 (75)


q.  Sarah born 1746 born in Dinwiddie County, Virginia. (30) Sarah (45) Sarah 2rd daughter of that name born 1748 (75) Sarah born 1748 who married John Tazewell of Williamsburg. (313) Sarah.  (314)  John Tazewell's wife was the daughter of John Bolling of "Cobbs", Chesterfield County, Virginia. (979) She is mentioned in her father John Bolling’ 1749 will as follows: “I Give and Bequeath unto my Daughter Sarah Bolling so much Money as will make the Legacy given her by her Aunt Anne Whiting amount to Five Hundred Pounds to be paid her when She shall Attain the Age of Twentyone Years or be Married which shall first happen.” (1487)


r.  Anne born 1752 born in Dinwiddie County, Virginia.  (30) Anne 2rd daughter of that name born 1752.  (75) Ann born 1752 who married William Dandridge.  (313) Anne.  (314) Annie Bolling was born Feburary 7, 1750 in Greenville, South Carolina (Sic, Greenville, S.C. was created until 1798!). (814) She is mentioned in her father’s 1757 codicil as “I give and Bequeath to my Daughter Anne the Sum of Four Hundred Pounds to be paid for on her Attaining the Age of Eighteen years and not sooner and if she shall Die before that Age then I give One hundred Pounds part of her Legacy to my Daughter Sarah and the residue thereof to Sink for the Benefit of my Estate and it is my further Will and Desire that each of my Daughters receive their respective Legacies without Interest and that they be each of them maintained educated and decently supported out of the Profits of my whole Estate untill (sic, until) they each of them respectively become entitled to receive their Legacies or Marry which ever shall first happen.” (1487)



s.  Powhatan born 1754 born in Dinwiddie County, Virginia. (30) Powhattan (45)  Powhatan born 1754 (64)



t.  James born 1756 born in Dinwiddie County, Virginia. (30) James (45) James born 1756 (64) 

John Bolling of "Cobbs" was the great grandson of Pocahontas. (79) John Bolling Jr.  of Henrico County , Virginia, was Justice of the Peace in 1726 and 1729.  (38)(41) Major John Bolling, Chesterfield County, Virginia, was a member of the house of Burgesses.  (391) John Bolling was a member of the house of Burgesses from 1742 to 1755,  first from Henrico County and then Chesterfield when it was formed (1144)  Major John Bolling 1700-1787 married first Elizabeth Blair.  Major John Bolling's father was Col.  John Bolling.  Major John Bolling 1700-1787 was a member of the House of Burgess.  All were descendants of Pocahonas.  Major John Bolling 1700-1787 second wife was Elizabeth Lews.  (45) John Bolling served Goochland County, Virginia in the House of Burgesses 1727-28.  (39)(1144) Goochland County, Virginia, County Court orders 1728-1737 p. 80 (p.127) Hazard, being brought to the bar, is indicted for feloniously breaking and entering a quarter belonging to Majr John Bolling (Fh380) and stealing divers goods belonging to said Bolling.  Hazard pleads not guilty as to breaking [into] the house, and pleads guilty as to stealing the goods.  The goods are valued at 52 shillings 10 pence. 
(p. 128) The court having heard the witnesses rules that Hazard is guilty of breaking [into] the house and that he be hanged by the neck until he be dead. Hazard is valued at 35 L. Hazard is ordered to be executed on Saturday, the 29  instant. (1900) George being brought to the bar, is indicted for feloniously breaking and entering a quarter belonging to Maj' r John Bolling and stealing divers goods belonging to person unknown, out of an open boat, to which indictment George pleads not guilty.  The witnesses being heard, court rules that George is guilty of stealing goods out of the boat to the value of 21 shillings, and that he is not guilty of breaking [into] the house & stealing goods thereat. (1900) John Bolling, Jr. had land 1728 in Henrico County, Virginia. (1190)  John Bolling of Henrico County, was a member of the Virginia House of Burgesses in the session that began May 21, 1730. (708) John Bolling Jr. of Henrico County, Virginia, had a 1732 land transaction in Brunswick and Goochland Counties, Virginia.  (41) Agnes Noland got 350 acres of land on the southside of the James River on Mahok Creek adjacent to Bolling's line and land of Michaux, May 5, 1732. Jacob Michaux got 150 acres on Mahook Creek adjacent to Major Bolling, September 28, 1732. (1517) On 20 November (1738) history notes that Col. Bolling (this would have to be Col. John Bolling), "who had been Surveying in the Neighborhood ... came to visit us."  The account continues: "... after 30 good miles arrived at Col. Bollings, where we were entertained with much Plenty & civility.  Among abundance of other good things he regaled us with excellent Cyder." The above is from the "Secret history" part of the book "Dividing Line betwixt Virginia and North Carolina" by William Byrd. The more formal history mentioned that they arrived: "... from a Primitive Course of Life ... to relapse into Luxury.  This Gentleman (Col. Bolling) lives within hearing of the Falls of the Appamatuck River".  This would mean Cobbs to Virginia historians.(339)(1570) John Bolling (perhaps 650c) along with Richard Randolph and Col.  William Kennon in 1734 was granted ten thousand acres in Brunswick County, Virginia  "Beginning 5 miles below the great swamp on little Roanoak running ten miles up the said River including the land on both side of side River".  (893)(921) John Bolling of Henrico County, Virginia had a land transaction in Goochland County, Virginia in 1733.  (7) John Bolling, Land Office Patents and Grants, 28 Sept 1732, Goochland County, South side of James above Seven Islands. (1475) In 1734, Goochland County, Virginia, John Bolling of Henrico County, Gentleman, deeded to Thomas Bolling (480g) of St.  James Parish, Goochland County, Virginia for love and affection, 400 acres on the south side of the James River above the Seven Islands. (7) John Bolling (Fh380), Land Office Patents and Grants, 17 Mar 1736, Goochland County, Virginian South side of  James River adj. Ben Harrison Willis Cr. Tract. (1475)

Land Patent Maps:

http://www.rochester.edu/college/BIO/bannister/PatentMaps/Cumberla/CumbMar_98/HYDRO.GIF
(1414, This one shows the general waterways and Bollings Quarter Branch)
http://www.rochester.edu/college/BIO/bannister/PatentMaps/Cumberla/CumbMar_98/EARLY.GIF
(1414, This one shows JBolling and CBolling)

John Bolling, Gent.. sold land 1739 in Henrico County, Virginia. (1190)  John Bolling was a Vestryman about 1741 of St. John's Church, Henrico Parish, in present day Richmond, Virginia. (1048) Col. John Bolling had land 1747 and 1752 Goochland County, Virginia. (1190) John Bolling had a will dated 1749.  In it he named, in addition to his wife, sons Thomas, John, Robert, Edward and daughters Mary and Sarah.  In 1757 he added a codicil naming a son Archibald and a daughter Annie.  Also a nephew Bolling Eldridge.  The codicil was witnessed, among others, by Alexander Bolling.  The codicil was recorded in Chesterfield County, Virginia.  Elizabeth, widow of John Bolling, is said to have married second Richard Bland and third Mr. Yates.  (7) Col. John Bolling had a land grant 1755 in Bedford County, Virginia, 5450 acres on the Head of Falling River. Included 5285 acres granted to John Bolling, Gent. in Lunenburgh County (later Bedford), Virginia in 1752. Which included 5000 acres granted in 1748 in Lunenburgh County, Virginia, and 285 acres not yet granted.  (1453) John Bolling is listed on the 1750 list of tithes of Lunenburg County, Virginia. (399) John Bolling had land 1756 in Goochland County, Virginia. (1190) John Bolling had a will dated 1749 in Chesterfield County, Virginia.  (35)  John Bolling, Gent, had a will dated 1749 and a codicil dated 1757.  He died two days later in 1757.  The will and codicil were recorded a month later in 1757.  Both the will and the codicil stated that John Bolling was a resident of Dale Parish, Chesterfield County, Virginia. Executors of the will were Peter Randolph and Thomas Bolling. The will was proved by William Kennon and John Gilliam Jr. was witness.  Thomas Fleming and John Banister Jr. were witnesses on the codicil.  Dale Parish was organized in the year 1732 from a tract of land on the south side of the James River. (7)  Col. John Bolling was surity on a will of John Reade probated 1739 Henrico County, Virginia.  Mary Reade, orphan of John Reade, in 1753 made choice of Col.  John Bolling as her guardian. Col. John Bolling (1700-1757), guardian of Mary Reade, was related by marriage.  John Bolling's first wife, Elizabeth Lewis, was a granddaughter of Mildred Reade.  (7)(352)  John Bolling, Gent, lived in Dale Parish of Chesterfield County, Virginia.  Where the James and Appromattox River meet, there was the land known as John Bollings inspection and adjoining that was the plantation where John Bolling, Gentleman, lived.  Chesterfield and Prince George Counties are on opposite sides of the Appromattox River. (7) John Bolling, Jr.  was a Justice of the Peace, 1726, Henrico County, Virginia. (7) John Bolling was replaced as a vestryman at Curl's Church, Henrico Parish, 1743 because he had moved out of the Parish.  (218) Col. John Bolling born in 1700, grandson of Robert Bolling emigrant, was county-lieutenant of Chesterfield, justice of the peace and for 30 years member of the House of Burgesses.  He married Elizabeth, the daughter of Dr.  Archibald Blair.  Between 1740-51 John Bolling entered 20,000 acres of land in the present counties of Amherst, Buckingham, Appomattox and Campbell for himself and his sons.  Bolling's creek in Amherst, south of Lynchburg was named for him. (369) John Bolling in 1746 instituted a suit against the estate of William Hopkins in Henrico County, Virginia. (386)  "Chellowe" is part of a grant of 6,740 acres patented by John Bolling (Fh380) on July 20, 1748 during the reign of King George II. The original house at "Chellowe" (the name was copied from the Bolling estate in Yorkshire, England) existed in 1776 to the northwest of the present house on a site known as Wigwam Hill. It was destroyed by fire. (981)  John Bolling, Junior, married Elizabeth Blair. Col. John Bolling's will, of 1749, mentions legacies to his daughters Mary and Sarah left by their aunt Whiting's will. Anne Bolling, daughter of John Bolling, married William Dandridge who was born 1750. (387) John Bolling was the son of John Bolling by his second marriage to Mary Kennon.  Col.  John Bolling 1700- 1757, Goochland County, Virginia, married 1728 Elizabeth Blair who was born 1708 the daughter of Archibald Blair (1660-1735) and Mary Wilson (1675-1741).  They had a son William Bolling born about 1731. (391) John Bolling, Gent, had land 1741 in Goochland County, Virginia, on the south side of the James River, below Solomons Creek.  A painted portrait of John Bolling Jr.  1700- 1757 and a portrait of his wife Elizabeth Blair Bolling 1709-1775 are hang in the "Bolling Room" of the Muscarelle Museum of Art on the Campus of William and Mary College in Williamsburg, Virginia. (7)(418) Major John Bolling married Eliabeth Blair and they had Col.  Robert Bolling who married Susan Watson.  (889) "Cobbs" the seat of John Bolling in Chesterfield County, Virginia, continued in the possession of this branch of the family for many generations.  (548)  Col. Bolling visited John Blair 5 times in 1751 in Williamsburg per Mr. Blair's diary.  (971) John Bolling had land 1754 and 1756 in Henrico County, Virginia. (1190) John Bolling in his will provided Archibald Bolling part of "Buffalo Lick" track which was in Bedford County, together with the "Rock Island" tract, 40,000 acres in all.  (62) John Bolling in his will provided to his widow, during her life, "Cobbs", "Old Town", "Varina", "Swift Creek, and "Bolling Island".  (62) From Peter Randolph (husband of Lucy Bolling, 490c), "Chatsworth", 20 September 1757, "Our old friend John Bolling died ten days passed of a mortification in his scrotum and notwithstanding the differences subsisting between us has appointed me one of his executors and a guardian of all his sons".  Footnote: John Bolling (1700-1757) of "Cobbs" represented Henrico and later Chesterfield Counties in the House of Burgesses from 1742 on.  He was one of the great landowners on the upper James and Roanoke Rivers. (907) John Bolling resided 1756 in Chesterfield County, Virginia. (1190) John Bolling died at "Cobbs" 1757 and was buried near his father and mother.  (75)  Col.  John Bolling, for many years a rep. for Chesterfield County, Virginia, in the GA died on Mon. the 5th at his seat at "Cobb's" in Chesterfield County, Virginia, (VG-Randolph 16 Sep 1757).  (381) Notes of John Randolph of Roanoke, 1757, Monday the 5th at his seat at "Cobbs" in Chesterfield County, Col.  John Bolling (died), who has been many years Representative for that County in the General Assembly. He was my grandmother Randolph's only brother.  My grandmother Jane Bolling, sister of John Bolling, married Richard Randolph of "Curls".  (922)  Major John Bowling, grandson of Col. Robert and Jane, inherited the 40,000 acre domain acquired by his father and grandfather, Col. John and Col. Robert.  He reportedly like to entertain in a lavish manner, often, we are told, whole companies of militia.  It is mentioned in the secret diary of William Byrd that his was the best set table in the county.  The fact that he was reportedly on the verge of bankruptcy when he died might be attributed to this. (51)(957) Elizabeth Blair (c1710-1775) married Col. John Bolling (1700-1757) of "Cobbs", Chesterfield County, on August 1, 1728.  After John Bolling's death, on September 5, 1757, she continued to live at "Cobbs" until her marriage to Richard Bland  (1710-1776), the statesman, which evidently took place about 1762 or 1763.   For sure, they lived at "Jordan's", Bland's plantation in Prince George on May 2, 1764. The Virginia Gazette of April 28, 1775, announced the death of "Mrs. Elizabeth Bland, spouse to Col. Richard Bland, of "Jordan's", in Prince George; a Lady not more distinguished by her good sense and sweetness of temper, than for the many virtues which adorned her character through life." (847) In the Judge Price information, it gives that Elizabeth Blair Bolling died 22 April 1775 at the age of 53 - this would make her born in 1722. (1278) Col. John Bolling, deceased (1772), John Blair, and Wilson Cary, were executors of Wilson Cary's sister Anne Whiting. (1190) Col. John Bolling, late, had land 1757 in Henrico County, Virginia. (1190)  John Bolling had a 1749 will and a 1757 codicil. For a transcript see source #1487. (1487) John Bolling of Chesterfield County, Virginia, 4 September 1757, codicil, 1/3 each to two friends and 1/3 to nephew Bolling Eldridge. (1836). "The Virginia Historical Society reports the following recently accessioned manuscript collections: papers, 1748-1905, of the Bolling family of Richmond, including correspondence, accounts, and land records of Archibald Bolling (Fh050,1R), Blair Bolling (Fh155,1R), John Bolling (1700-1757)(Fh380,1R) and John Bolling (1832-1905) (155f,1R)"  (2097) (Also see source 118 & 398)

1R 390.
John William 1737-w1800/m1761 Mary Jefferson (b1741)---His father was John #380


abcde 
John b1762/Mary Kennon--See Family Group #420


  b  de
Thomas 1764-1785


      de
Jane b1765--died young


  b  de
Anne b1767/m1784 Howell Lewis


ab  de
Martha b1769/m1794 Peter Field Archer


abcde
Edward 1772-1835/m1794 Dorothea Dandridge "Dolly" Payne--See Family Group #210


  bcd 
Archibald 1774-1829/m1801 Catharine Payne--See Family Group #60


abcd
Robert b1776/m1800 Jane S. Payne--See Family Group #540


ab  d
Mary Jefferson b1779/m1797 Edward P. Archer


  b  
William


  b  
Sarah


  b  
Nancy Rolfe(?)/m1800 William Joseph Bowles


  b  
Frances (?)/m1795 John M. Bowles


a
Children per source #253


b
Children per source #886


c  
Sons mentioned in their father's 1800 will.


d
Children per sources 30,61,63,204,320,714,1106 and 1225


e
Children baptized 1762-1772 per source #135

1R
Fh390
John Bolling was born 1737 the son of Major John and Elizabeth (Blair) Bolling (Fh380). (75)(219)(313)(204)(45)(790) John William Bolling, son of John Bolling, was born 1737 in Prince George County, Virginia. (21)  John Bolling was born 1737 at "Cobbs", Chesterfield County, Virginia. (204)  John Bowling was born 1727 the son of John (Fh380) and Elizabeth (Blair) Bowling.  (320)(714) 


 John Bolling/Bowling married Mary Jefferson. (51)(320)(714)(204)(214)(792)(798)(970)(957)  John William Bolling married Mary Jefferson. (21)  John Bolling married in 1760. (204)(214)  John William Bowling and Mary Jefferson were married 1760.  (100)(792) The marriage was in Goochland County, Virginia. (214)  John Bolling was of Goochland County, Virginia.  (214)  John Bolling married about 1761 Mary Jefferson. (135)  Mary Jefferson was the daughter of Peter and Jane (Randolph) Jefferson. (204)  Mary Jefferson was the second daughter of Peter and Jane (Randolph) Jefferson.  (135) John Bolling married Miss Jefferson, daughter of that Jefferson who, with Mr. Fry, made a map of Virginia. (75) Mary Jefferson was an older sister of the late President of the United States, Thomas Jefferson. (21)(214)(75)(51)(957)  John Bolling, of "Chestnut Grove", Chesterfield County, Virginia (a descendant of Pocahontas) married Mary Jefferson.  (21)  John Bolling 1737-1797 married Martha (sic, was Mary) Jefferson, sister of Thomas Jefferson. (45) 


John and Mary (Jefferson) Bolling had children as listed in the family group list. What follows are some additional sources and their beliefs:


a.  John (Fh420) born 1762. (135)(714)(313) John married Mary Kennon. (204) John (sic, see Fh421) who had as his 2rd wife Naomi Ray. (798)


b.  Thomas born 1764.  (135)(970)


c.  Jane born 1765. (135)(970)  Jane born 1766.  (714)


d.  Ann born 1767. (135)(970)  Ann married Howel Lewis 1780 in Goochland County, Virginia. (7)  Ann born 1764 married Howell Lewis. (320)(714)  Miss Nancy (?) Bolling married Howel Lewis, 1784 both of Goochland County, Virginia.  (381)  Anne married 1784 Howell Lewis, Goochland County, Virginia.  Consent was by John Bolling.  Witnesses were John Bolling, Jr.  and John Woodson, Jr. (208)(970)


e.  Martha born 1769. (135)(714)(970)  Martha Bolling married Field Archer 1794 Chesterfield County, Virginia. (131)  Martha married Fielding Archer.  (714)(313)


f.  Edward (Fh210) born 1772.  (135)(714)(313)(970)


g.  Archibald (Fh060) born 1774. (313)


h.  Robert (Fh540) born 1776. (313)  Robert born 1777 married Jane Payne. (320)(714)


i.  Mary Jefferson born 1779. Mary Jefferson Bolling married Edward Archer 1797 Chesterfield County, Virginia, Witnessed by Archibald Bolling Jr. (131)  Mary born 1775 married Edward Archer. (320)(714) Mary married Edward Archer. (313) 


j. William (886)


k. Sarah (886)


l. Samuel Bolling (Fh625) born about 1785 in Virginia. (366) I don't believe Samuel belongs in this family. (886) Samuel Bolling was son of John Bolling III who married Martha (sic) Jefferson.  Samuel moved from Virginia to South Carolina in the late 1700s or early 1800. (979) The Samuel Bolling (Fh625) who married Nancy Elliott is the son of Alexander Bolling (Fh011).  (885)


m. Nancy Rolfe who married William Joseph Bowles. (886)  Her father and mother signed permission for the marriage 27 Dec 1800 and this is recorded in Franklin County, Virginia.  (887)  Nancy who married John Sizemore. (100)


n. Frances who married John Bowles. (886)  Fanny Bolling married 1795 John Bowles in Henry County, Virginia. (1012)


John and Martha (sic, Mary) (Jefferson) Bolling had children: John, Edward, Archibald, and Robert.  All were descendants of Pocahontas. (45)  John Bolling (1737-1797) and Mary Jefferson had six sons. (64)  Family letters indicate that wife Mary (Jefferson) Bolling was such a nagging, faultfinder that John Bolling was driven to heavy drinking. (957)  April 1798. Thomas Jefferson was learning of the tragic nature of one of his sister’s marriage. His sister Mary’s husband, John Bolling, was apparently alcoholic and abusive. “Mr. B’s habitual intoxication will destroy himself, his fortune and family. (2159) John and Mary (Jefferson) Bolling had a total of 11 children.  Many of the children bear the same names as the children of John and Elizabeth (Blair) Bolling.  (7) The children were born 1762 to about 1778 at "Chestnut Grove"' Goochland County, Virginia.  (204) 


The will of father John Bolling (Fh380) provided John Bolling (Fh390) 1/4 of "Licking Hole Plantation" in Goochland County, called "Moulin", the "Varina" and "Henrico" tracts in Henrico County and also a small tract in Chesterfield County, where John lived at the time of his death. (62) His father John Bolling’s 1749 will has “I give and devise unto my Son John Bolling all the rest of my Licking Hole tract of Land lying below the said Creek and including the Fork thereof (except the two Acres before given to my Son Thomas) to him and his Heirs forever. I also give and devise unto my said Son John Bolling and his Heirs and Afsign (sic, Assign) forever my Mill on Beaver Dam Creek in the County of Goochland and all the Land which I have on the said Beaver Dam Creek and the Branches thereof. Also the Reversion of all my Lands in the County of Henrico on the North Side of James River after the Death of my Wife as also of one Tract of Land on the South Side of James River called Rogsdale joyning (sic, joining)to Henry Battes and Edward Folks Land and on the said River.” (1487) John Bolling had land 1762 in Goochland County, Virginia. (1190) John Boling was in the Goochland County, Virginia, Deed Book 8, 1759-1765, page 107, County Reel #3 at the Virginia State Library. (2054)


John Bolling served Goochland County, Virginia in the House of Burgesses 1766-68. (39)  They moved from Goochland County, Virginia to "Chestnut Grove" plantation, Chesterfield County, Virginia. (94) Albemarle County, Virginia, Deed Book 5, 10 Oct 1771 - Robert Hardwick & Elizabeth his wife of Parish of (blank) Co of Bedford..to Richard Woolfolk of Parish of St. Anns in Albermarle..110 pounds..300 acres in Albemarle on both sides of the North fork of Hardware River, beginning at a white oak in Robert Lewis line and running new lines south etc. crossing Hardware river and a small branch to a hiccory (sic) south etc. to pointers in Gay's  line and with Gay’s  line etc. crossing Hardware river to the first station with all houses orchards and other advantages … to Richard Woodfork. Robert X Hardwick Wit. John Swann, Charles Lewis, Samuel Carr,  William Watson,  Hudson Martin. Note: Elizabeth Hardwick released her dower in court of 300 acres of land lying and being on the north fork of Hardware river joining Col. Charles Lewis, John Bolling,  Albermarle. Dated: 27 Aug 1771.  NOTE; The two above dates 10 Oct 1771 & 27 Aug 1771 are as listed. Recorded in the Albermarle Court, April Court 1772 (1414) Albermarle County, Virginia Deeds: 11 Aug 1784 - Richard Woolfolk of Albemarle to Epheram Boing  of same 81 pounds sell a tract of land in Albemarle on both sides of the North Fork of Fhardware Vier ..beginning in a white oak in John Bolings line, etc. crossing Hardware River & a small Branch to a Hickory, etc. in Gay line, etc. crossing Hardware river to the first station . 300 acres of land. Signed: Richard Woolfolk. Wit: John Wharton, Talton Woodson, Thos: West.  Recorded Albemarle August Court, MDCCLXXXIV (1784). (1414) John Bolling served as paymaster in the Chesterfield County, Virginia, militia in 1776.  Reference, Virginia Historical Society and Virginia State Library, Council Journal of October 25, 1776. (94)  He was a member of the House of Delegates of Chesterfield County, Virginia in 1778 and later years.  (94) John Bolling was a taxpayer 1782 in Goochland County, Virginia. (347)  John Bolling lived first in Goochland County, Virginia where he was assessed for 1,800 acres of land in the land-tax book 1783. (39)  John Bolling is listed as head of household 1783 in Chesterfield County, Virginia. (43) John Bolling was on the 1787 census of Goochland and Chesterfield Counties but was "of Chesterfield".  He had lots of slaves, horses, and cattle in both counties. (551)  The Court of Appeals in Virginia, 1801 had a case Fleming vs. Bolling.  It involved the will of Edward Bolling who died in Aug 1770.  Mentions sister ----- Tazewell, and brothers Robert who died in 1775 (Fh510), Thomas (Fh700), John (Fh390) and Archibald (Fh050).  (979) John Bolling died 1792 (sic) at "Chestnut Grove", Chesterfield County, Virginia.  (94) The Will of John Bolling (Fh390), of the County of Chesterfield, State of Virginia, names the following heirs: ----- wife, sons: Edward, John, Robert, Archibald and grandson Jefferson Archer.  The testator, John Bolling, bequeaths amongst other property, real estate in the Counties of Goochland, Albemarle, Campbell, and Chesterfield, Virginia.  The Will is signed and dated by John Bolling, on the Seventeenth day of February, 1800, and is recorded in full in the County Clerk's Office, in the County of Chesterfield, State of Virginia, in Will Record Number 5, at page 291. (798)  John Bolling (1737-179x) married 1760 Mary Jefferson.  He first lived in Goochland County.  He was a Burgess there in 1768 but afterwards removed to "Chestnut Grove" Chesterfield County.  He had 1800 acres in 1783.  (62) (Also see source 398)

1R 420.
John 1762-1822/m1782 Mary Kennon--His father was John W. #390



William



John/ ? m1814 Ann Wallace



James



Nathan


a
Evelina or Evalina 1790-1863/m1808 Alexander Garrett (1775-1860)


a
Susan/John Scott and/or m1823 John Leon 


a
Mary/m1816 William R. Snelson or Snetum, m and moved west


a
Kennon, a son



4. Daughter



5. Daughter



3 of the children were dead by 1796


a
Children per Sources #1106 and #333, and three additional infant children.

1R  
Fh420  
John Bolling was born 1762 in Goochland County, Virginia, the son of John W. and Mary (Jefferson) Bolling. (61)(63)  John Bolling married c1782 Miss Mary Kennon. (7)(313) Mary Kennon may have been the daughter of Col.  William and Priscilla (Willis) Kennon but I have no proof.  They did have a daughter who married a Bolling but no further data listed. (7)(217)  They had a daughter Evelina who married Alexander Garrett son of Henry Garrett. (7) John Bolling is listed as head of household (2 people) 1785 in Albemarle County, Virginia.  (43) John Bolling Esq.  was on the 1787 census of Albemarle County, Virginia, with 32 slaves, 8 horses and 3 head of cattle.  Another John Boling was also on the 1787 census of Albemarle County, Virginia, with 1 horse.  (551) John Boling was in the 1810 U.S. Census of Albemarle County, Virginia. (349) John Bolling of North Garden, Albemarle County, Virginia, had a daughter Evalina Bolling who married 1808 Alexander Garrett.  (795)(807)  John Bolling of Goochland County, Virginia mentioned in a deed of trust 1794.  (124)(7) John Bolling was born 1762, "Chestnut Grove"' Goochland County, Virginia the son of John and Mary (Jefferson) Bolling.  He married Mary Kennon. (204)  John Bolling was born 1761.  He married 1782 to "Naomi Ray--Miss Kennon".  His wife Naoma Ray Bolling was a doctor or nurse of some note.  She also raised five sons to be Methodist preachers.  Their sons were William, John, James, and Nathan.  John Bolling died 1822.  See also John (Fh421) below. (94)  Page 35 of Wyndham Robertson's "Pocahontas and her Descendants" states "John Bolling m ----- Kennon, m 2nd Naomi Ray, had a son William (Fh820) who married Elizabeth Alphin"  He gives the source as Iowa Society D.A.R. records, vol. 2, page 130.  However, I believe this may be from the Kurtz family records, which I have found not to be reliable. (888) John and Mary (Kennon) Bolling had a daughter Evelina Bolling who married Alexander Garrett before 1809. (979)  John Bolling was the son of John and Mary (Jefferson) Bolling. (429) John Bolling Jr.  was on the 1787 census of Goochland County, Virginia, with 22 slaves, 23 horses and 14 head of cattle. (551) John Bolling, Jr. or "Jack" was born in 1762, at least the date of his baptism as recorded in the Douglas Register.  He is not mentioned in his father's will of 7 Feb 1800 and presented at the Court of July, 1800. I have not seen a copy of his mother's will. John ( or Jack) Bolling is recorded as living (1787) at "Fairfield" in Goochland County with his wife Mary, daughter of the late Col. William Kennon, and their children. His parents had moved from thence to "Chestnut Grove" in Chesterfield County, where John Bolling, Sr. died in 1800. (333) John Bolling was born 24 March 1762, baptized 8 May 1762,  to John and Mary (Jefferson) Bolling. John Bolling may have given surety at the marriage of his sister Ann Bolling on 16 April 1784. John Bolling married Mary (Willis) Kennon. John Bolling died 1827 in Albermarle County, Virginia. (1294) (Also see source 398)

1R  
050g  
John R. Bolling was born 1784 and died 1851 in Powhattan County, Virginia.  John R. Bolling is buried there in the same plot as Blair Bolling (Fh155) (682)(683) Archibald (Fh050,R) had a son John R. Bolling/Bowling (050g,R) that married Elizabeth Powell in Nelson County, Virginia. (Wyndham Robertson shows him as married while John R. was overseer of his sister and her husband -- Col. Megginson -- plantation in Nelson County).  Elizabeth died in 1823 (source.. Lynchburg newspaper notices of marriages and deaths). (1508) John Randolph Bolling 1784-1851 married Elizabeth Powell, John Randolph Bolling was of  "Centre Hill", Powhatan County, Virginia. (1508) John R. Bolling (050g,1R) son of Archibald Bolling (Fh050) in Campbell County, Virginia, married Elizabeth Powell in Nelson County, Virginia and she died after a short time no issue and John R. Bolling  is buried in brother Blair Bolling's (Fh155,050h) cemetery. (1508) 

1R
420b
John Bolling married 1814 Ann Wallace in Albemarle County, Virginia. (1213)

1W
520a
John Bolling was born 1773 in Virginia the son of Robert and Frances "Franky" (Green) Bolling.  John died 1817. (61)(62)

1W
650c
John Bolling and Alex Bolling (Fh010), son of Stith Bolling, had a land transaction 1728, in Brunswick County, Virginia. (725) John Bolling and Alexander Bolling, sons of Stith Bolling, of Surry County, Virginia were involved in a 1728 land transaction in Brunswick County, Virginia. (41)   John Bolling was born prior to 1727 when his father Stith Bolling probably died.  John's mother Elizabeth (Rogers) Bolling remarried in 1727 probably in Surry County, Virginia.  John had a brother Alexander and sisters Jane and Ann.  (36)  Surry County Virginia Deed, 8 Jan. 1742, William Clinch and wife, Elizabeth Clinch, of Surry County to John Bolling [less than 21 years of age] of Prince George County (Virginia) for Love and Affection.  Elizabeth Clinch, the mother of John Bolling (650c) before her intermarriage with the said William Clinch...a number of slaves and livestock.  Wit:  Joseph Harmer, Richard Rowell, Henry Hartwell Marable and William Petty.  Signed William Clinch and Elizabeth Clinch. Recorded:  18 May 1743 (1527)(1551) John Bolling (perhaps Fh380) along with Richard Randolph and Col.  William Kennon in 1734 was granted ten thousand acres in Brunswick County, Virginia on the "little Roanoak running ten miles up the said River including the land on both side of side River". (893) John Bolling was alive when his father's will (Stith Bolling, Fh650) was probated August 16, 1727, in Prince George County, Virginia.  (675) The will of Stith Bolling (Fh650,W), of Surry County; not dated; but probated Surry County Court, Virginia, August 16, 1727, names sons Stith Bolling (650a), Alexander Bolling (650b,Fh010), John Bolling (650c) and Robert Bolling (650d); makes provision for two daughters ( though does not give their names); wife Elizabeth Bolling and brother Robert Bolling (Fh490,Fh495), executors (Surry County records, Wills and Deeds 1715-30,  page 75I). (1494) During the past two or three years quite a few fragments of Prince George County records which were carried away during the War Between the States have come into possession of the Virginia State Library, Richmond.  Among these fragments is the original of the will of John Bolling (650c), of Bath Parish, Prince George County, dated November I3, 1744, proved Prince George County Court March 13, (1744/5), bearing the endorsement, "Exhibited into  Court by his brother Alexander Bolling (650b,Fh010) one of the Executors named in the Will."  The will bequeaths "To my Sister Anne Edloe (650f)" four negroes Phillis, Ned, Sipeo and Daniels; "To my brother Alexander Bolling three negroes Grinnidge, Charles and Harry, and all the rest of testator's personal estate he paying my sister Anne Edloe"  £70 currency. Executors "My brother in law John Edloe and my said brother Alexander Bolling."  Witnesses: David Walker, John Thornton, John Clack. The will is further endorsed: "The Last Will and Testament of John Bolling" (this evidently in the handwriting or the party who wrote the will for the testator and Mr. John Bolling, Junr. deced. his will proved March 1744. Rec: G pa:  355 & Exed" [this in handwriting of William Hamlin, clerk of the Court] The record book in which this will was recorded is missing. This will of John Bolling, of  Bath Parish, Prince George, taken with the will of Stith Bolling (Fh650), of Surry County. (The original will of John Bolling is now on file in the Division of Archives, Virginia State Library, Richmond.) (1494)(1825)(2064, page 112)

1R
700f
John Bolling was born 1761 in Virginia the son of Thomas and Elizabeth "Betty" (Gay) Bolling. (61)

LINNAEUS or Lenias

1R 463.
Linnaeus 1773-1836/m1793 Mary "Polly" Markham (1780-1825)--His father was Robert #511


a
Robert Markham b1795/1/w m1821 Sarah Hobson,2/w Mary Watkins (1811-1840),3/w Frances 



Brackett--See Family Group #513 


a
Philip A. bc1806-d>1858/m1832 1/w Mary M. Eppes--See Family Group #4675


a
Linnaeus bc1806-1816, he drowned @ Wm and Mary College as student


a
Mary b<1821/Dr. James Madison Cobbs


a
Susannah  Pocahontas 1815-1849/m1834 Robert Thruston Hubard b1808


a
Children per Source #1106 and #333

1R   
Fh463  
Linnaeus Bolling was born the son of Robert Jr. and Susan Watson. (7)  Father Robert and Susanna (Watson) Bolling had 4 children including Leneaus (1773-July 7, 1849, sic).  Leneaus Bolling was a member of the House of Delegates for Buckingham County, Virginia in the following periods 1798-1800, 1810-1811, and 1821-1822.  Leneaus Bolling married 16 December 1793 Mary Markham daughter of Col. Bernard and Mary (Harris) Markham. (847) Lenias Bolling married 1793 Chesterfield County, Virginia Mary Markham. (7)(331)(1213) Mary was not of age; her father Bernard Markham consented.  Bondsman was Robert Cary.  Lenias Bolling was of Buckingham County, Virginia.  (7)(331) Laneaus Bolling was in a 1810 Census of Buckingham County, Virginia.  There was 1 male under 10, 2 males 26-45, 2 females under 10 and 2 females 26-45. (7)  L-----ans Bolling was in the 1820 Census of Buckingham County, Virginia, on page 53.  Also in that Census was Edward, John R., and Robert Bolling.  (348) Linnaeus Bolling married 1793 Mary Markham.  They had children: Robert, Susan, Philip and Mary. (7) Lenias Bolling married Mary Markham, 1793, Chesterfield County, Virginia. (299) Linnaeus Bolling was born 1773 the son of Robert and Susan (Watson) Bolling.  He married Mary Markham and died 1836.  A marked characteristic of Linnaeus Bolling was his love of truth.  He was public spirited, temperate, brave, morally and physically, saving-not sorid- and upright in all his dealings.  His favorite maxim was taken from Burkes writing. Manly, moral regulated liberty.  He deemed restricted suffrage essential to good government.  He was tall, very erect, and swarthy, with straight black hair and the eyes of an Indian. (313) Lenaeus Bolling was buried in the Bolling Cemetery on the "Chellowe" Plantation, Dillwyn, Buckingham County, Virginia, died 1836 age 63. (315) Linnaeus Bolling of "Chellowe" was born 1773. He married Mary Markham.  They had children: Mary who married Dr. James Madison Cobbs, Susan, Philip (Fh4675), Robert who married first Sarah Hobson, second Mary Watkins and third Martha Brackett. (118) Susan Bolling, daughter of Linnaeus Bolling, married Robert Hubbard and they purchased land from Philip A. Bolling in Buckingham County, Virginia, and called it "Chellowe" Plantation.  This is not the same place as "Chellowe" of Col. Robert Bolling.  (7)  Laneaus Bolling was in the 1810 Census of Buckingham County, Virginia.  (349)  "Chellowe" is part of a grant of 6,740 acres patented by John Bolling (Fh380) on July 20, 1748 during the reign of King George II.  The original house at "Chellowe" (the name was copied from the Bolling estate in Yorkshire, England) existed in 1776 to the northwest of the present house on a site known as Wigwam Hill.  It was destroyed by fire.  The present house is believed to have been built about 1837.  In 1848 Col. Robert T. Hubard married Susannah Pocahontas Bolling (463b) and purchased "Chellowe".  (981)  Lenous Bolling has a day book 1792-1806. (379) Mrs. Mary Bolling of Buckingham County, Virginia, had obits in the "Richmond Whig" January 28, 1825 and "Richmond Enquirer" January 27, 1825. (7) Lenaeus Bolling of Buckingham County, Virginia, had an obit in the "Richmond Whig" January 28, 1836 and February 23, 1836. (7) Obit for Linnaeus Bolling who died 6 Feb 1836, age 63. (1822) A diary by Leneaus Bolling for January-March 1814 survives at the University of Virginia library. (847)  Susan Pocahontas Bolling married 1834 Robert Hubard.  Part of the dowry was a 350 acre plantation in Buckingham County, Virginia.  Others think Hubard purchased the parcel of land known as "Chellowe" in 1842 from his relation Phillip A. Bolling. (899) Linnaeus/Linneus Bolling, son of Robert Bolling of Buckingham County, Virginia, married 1793 Mary Markham the daughter of Bernard and Mary Markham. They had children: Robert who had 5 sons and a daughter, now Mrs. L:.H. Randolph of Nelson County, Virginia; Susan who married ----- Hubbard and Philip (Fh4675).  (909) Linneus Bolling, Esq. died 1836, age 63, at his residence in Buckingham County, Virginia. He was member of the General Assembly 1799-1800 and thereafter. "The Lynchburg Virginian", 1 Feb 1836.(1268) Powhatan Bolling (511c) died March 21, 1803 and his executor was Leneaus Bolling (Fh463,511d) his younger brother.  Leneaus Bolling started pulling all the land back under his name especially the "Chellowe" track.  The house Chellowe was by this time home to his mother again, Edmund Wilcox having died and buried at "Chellowe" graveyard in an unmarked grave under a tree.  Lenaeus' mom wrote him thinking of selling "Chellowe" off.  Lenaeus from his home in Buckingham called "Whispering" replied as follows:

 

The original is on file at the University of Virginia, special documents room lower level of the main library.

 

Address to: Mrs. Susanna Wilcox
                   Westwood
                   Campbell 

 

From: Lenaeus Bolling 
           Whispering
 

Date: July 17th 1811

 

Dear Mother,

Billy got down safe with you letter etc and would have set off up again today but waited for my letter as I did not get up in time to write yesterday.

With respect to your estate at Chellow, I find all your friends in this quarter seem to be of an opinion you will do much better to keep up the plantation than to break it up. – If profit is your object, there can be no doubt but the present state of things will be found the most legible – The very fact of its being a mere tenancy for life would be entirely sufficient to prevent any person from giving anything like the value of the place for it – Indeed it is extremely doubtful whether you could get a bid for the place or the Negroes; --who would rent land or hire Negroes if they knew they would be liable, until the first of the following March, to lose all their labor + consequently fail in making a crop; nay, evenly be put out of doors? – you know my Dear Mother, life is very uncertain; and that very uncertainty would produce a risqué which few (page torn and missing) – be found willing to take upon themselves (page torn and missing) very time, I presume, that form the resolution of breaking up your home, you perhaps have formed no ultimate plans; have fixed no place to reside in; have made no calculations of the plaque of commencing house keeping anew:  without servants, without fuel, provision, furniture, groceries, etc – who is to procure your wood, cut it, make your fires, cook, wash, cut up and salt your meat, go on errands, get fruit cake, care of your milk cattle, your horses, buy your corn, fodder oats, keep the keys of the cornhouse, etc. O’Lord! Lathers(?) other things which, although of a trifling appearance on paper, become matters of very serious importance in practice. Besides, you have as yet had no experience whether you would like the change + if unfortunately you should become dissatisfied, what would you do with your farm home rented for 3 years, your stock all broke up and sold off, no furniture, provision etc.  Your situation would be truly deplorable – No Mother, if you do not feel satisfied to live a Chellow keep up the place till you made a fair trial when, if you should not like, you can have it in your power to return – Excuse my presumption in presenting to you this view of things +, let me beg you to believe, I have but one motive for so doing, which is my regard for your happiness + welfare – As to the advertisements, if you determine to persist in it, just get Mr. West to send one to a printer in Lynchburg + another to one in Richmond by mail, which he can readily do + able in very good time.


As to my going over (page torn and missing) tain (most likely mountain*), it is a thing I should like very well (page torn and missing) would very probably be conducive to my health, but when I shall go, or whether I shall go at all, is, at this time, very problematical – at any event, although it would give me great pleasure to accompany you, it is not in my power to go yet, no for sometime to come, how long I do not know.  I am happy to hear your health is not worse then when you left us, I sincerely hope, if you do go you may find that benefit from the trip + the use of the waters which you hope for.  

It is not for me to be an advisor, but perhaps as Mr. West is probably not disengaged at this time that I am, it would not be either a very inconvenient or unpleasant trip for him, especially as I understand Martha will accompany you.

We are all well but little Mary (463d), who has a very sore tongue and mouth, which fut (torn and missing) der a little though I hope it is nothing serious – Col. Bell is again very unwell + when Mr. Akers (torn and missing) plied to him about your claim he express some surprise + said he had supposed Capt. Miller had paid you long ago – Polly and the children join in love to you + Martha + best respects to Mr. West + hope Eliza was well the last you all heard from her.
 




Dear Mother your Affectionate Son,



L.Bolling
 

The mountain (if it is) would probably be the springs in Amherst.  Known for their healing powers. The most popular of the springs were Warm Springs, Hot Springs, and White Sulphur Springs.  There were many others in and around this area.  They were very popular after the Revolutionary War.
 

 

The Eliza he mentions at the end is Elizabeth Watson Seaton, sister to Susannah Watson Bolling Wilcox who married George Seaton, Clerk of Amherst. (1508) 

1R
463c

Linneaus Bolling of Buckingham County, Virginia, had an obit in the "Richmond Enquirer" June 5, 1816. (7) Linnaeus Bolline born about 1806 and died in 1816.  He drowned while a student as the College of  William and Mary College. (7) Linneus Bolling was a student at the College of William and Mary in 1815/1816. (1439)

1W
490f
Martha Bolling, daughter of Robert Bolling, was married to Richard Eppes who died 1765 and his will is recorded in Chesterfield County, Virginia. (47)

1W
 
Mary Bolling  (probably widow of Robert Fh500) is listed as head of household (15 people) 1782 in Amelia County, Virginia. (43)

1R 4675.
Phillip A. d>1858/1/w Mary M. Eppes (d1867)--His father was Linnaeus #463



John Eppes 1810-1810



2/w m1868 ----- Tappan (Widow Griswold)



3/w ----- -----



4/w ----- -----

1R  
Fh4675 
Philip A. Bolling was the son of Linnaeus and Mary (Markham) Bolling (Fh463).  He served as a member of the House of Delegates and as a Judge of the Circuit Court.  He married Mary Eppes. (118)  Their son John Eppes Bolling (1810-1810) is buried in the Bolling Cemetery on the "Chellowe" Plantation, Dillwyn, Buckingham County, Virginia.  (315)  Phillip Bolling married Mary Eppes who was born prior to 1809 the daughter of John W. and Maria (Jefferson) Eppes.  The mother was daughter of President Thomas Jefferson. (47)  Phillip A. Bolling (Buckingham County, Virginia) 1806-1876 delivered a speech 1832 to the Virginia House of Delegates. (318)(982) Robert Hubard, husband of Susan Pocahontas Bolling (463b) purchased a parcel of land, a 350 acre plantation, in Buckingham County, Virginia known as "Chellowe" in 1842 from his relation Phillip A. Bolling.  (899)  Philip Bolling was the son of Linnaeus and Mary (Markham) Bolling. (909) Sarah Pocahontas Bolling, wife of Rev. William C. Meredith, was the daughter of Robert Bolling, Esq. (Fh513), of Buckingham County, Virginia. She died 1858, age 34 years, at her uncle, P.A. Bolling, Esq. (Fh4675) home in Farmville, Virginia. (1718)

1R 4678
Powhatan R. 1795-d<1840/m1823 Arminda R. Payne--His father was Edward #210



Pocahonta J. b1830



Elvira G. b1837

1R  
Fh4678 
Powhatan R. Bolling was born 1795 in Goochland County, Virginia, the son of Edward and Dorothea Dandridge (Payne) Bolling.  He married 1823 Arminda Payne. (203)  Powhatan R. was born 1795.  His father was Edward #210. Powhatan R. married 1823 Arminda R.  Payne.  They had children Pocahontas J. born 1830 and Elvira G.  born 1837. Powhatan R. died before 1840.  (278) I found that his tombstone reads: Powhatan Bolling died 4 Feb 1838. He was buried in Lee Cemetery in Leesville, Virginia. (1239)

1R  
Fh4678 
Powhatan R. Bolling was born 1795 in Goochland County, Virginia, the son of Edward and Dorothea Dandridge (Payne) Bolling.  He married 1823 Arminda Payne. (203)  Powhatan R. was born 1795.  His father was Edward #210. Powhatan R. married 1823 Arminda R.  Payne.  They had children Pocahontas J. born 1830 and Elvira G.  born 1837. Powhatan R. died before 1840.  (278) I found that his tombstone reads: Powhatan Bolling died 4 Feb 1838. He was buried in Lee Cemetery in Leesville, Virginia. (1239)

1R  
380w  
Powhatan Bolling, male, was born 1754 in Dinwiddie County, Virginia, to John and Elizabeth (Blair) Bolling. (30) Powhatan Bolling was a child of Major John Bolling.  All were descendants of Pocahonas. (45)(64)

1R   
511c  
Powhatan Bolling was born 1767 the son of Col. Robert and Susan (Watson) Bolling. (313)(847)  Powhatan Bolling was a member of the House of Delegates for Buckingham County, Virginia, 1798-1799. (847)  In Charlotte, Virginia, in the Spring of 1799 Powhatan Bolling ran for Congress as a democrat. (1094)  Powhatan Bolling was an opponent of John Randolph for a seat in Congress.  Powhatan Bolling was a man of fine physique and fearless and honorable nature but extremely eccentric in bearing and dress.  Powhatan Bolling was an ardent lover of music; his violin made in German in 1646 is still extant. (313) Amherst County, Virginia, 1800 taxes. (R,M7,M9 territory) Virginia, Tax List for Lexington Parish/District - 1800, Peter P. Thornton - Commissioner, Column One – White males over the age of twenty-one Column Two – Horses owned, Column Three – Slaves over the age of sixteen, Column Four – Slaves between the age of twelve and sixteen. 
Bolling, Bailey (UK) 1-1-0-0 

Bolling, James (probably Fh260,M7) 1-2-0-0 

Bowling, John (UK) 1-3-1-0 

Bowling, Powhatan (511c,R) 0-4-8-1 (1414) 

Powhatan Bolling died in 1802.  (313) Powhatan Bolling died March 21, 1803 and there was an obituary April 9, 1803.  (847)(875) Col. Robert Bolling Jr., late of Buckingham County, Virginia dec'd, Powhattan Bolling placed an ad in the newspaper (VGRMA 10 July 1794) requesting that persons who borrowed his books return them. (381) Powhatan Bolling is listed three places on a 1796 survey of Col. James Higginbotham in Amherst County, Virginia. (47)  Powhatan Bolling is in James Higginbotham's "Book of Surveys" of families in Amherst County, Virginia. (979) Bolling Cemetery on the "Chellowe" Plantation, Dillwyn, Buckingham County, Virginia has on the south side "To the Memory of Col.  Robert Bolling and to Susanna, his wife.  Powhatan Bolling, Esq.  (511c), Pocahontas Cabell (511a) and Edward Bolling (511f)".  Others in the cemetery are Lenaeus Bolling (Fh463) and his wife Mary, Anne Bolling, Jane Bolling, Mary Cobbs (463a) and Bolling Cobbs (probably son of 463a).  Also there James T. Hubbard M.D. and Susannah his wife who died 1829, age 45.  Also there John Eppes Bolling 1810-1810 son of Phillip A. and Mary M.  Bolling (463c).  Also Pocahontas Bolling (1825-1858) (513b) wife of Rev.  William C.  Meredith and daughter of Robert and Sarah (Hobson) Bolling (Fh513) and her son Robert Bolling Meredith.  (315) Powhatan Bolling, 1799, Amherst County, Virginia, deed with Henry Robinson. (910) Powhatan Bolling, 1795, Amherst County, Virginia, deed with Henry Bell. (910) Powhatan Bolling, 1795, Amherst County, Virginia, deed with John Mahan & wife. (910) Powhatan Bolling, 1796, Amherst County, Virginia, deed with S. King. (910) Powhatan Bolling, 1799, Amherst County, Virginia, deed with William Isbell. (910) Powhatan Bolling, 1799, Amherst County, Virginia, deed with William Robinson. (910) John Marshall who was the Grand Master (Masonic) of Virginia at that time, on January 3, 1795 issued to John Jones as Master, Powhatan Bolling (511c), Senior Warden, and Daniel Parrow, Junior Warden, for holding a Lodge in the County of Campbell, Virginia at Campbell courthouse. On November 25th 1795 a Charter has this day issued to Powhatan Bolling, Master; Daniel B. Parrow, Senior Warden, and John Gardner, Junior Warden, to hold a regular Lodge in the County of Campbell and known by the name of the Aberdeen Lodge No.45. (1493) 

Powhatan Bolling (511c) lived in Amherst and Lynchburg up until his death (I have a transcribed letter to Thomas Jefferson from Powhatan asking if he, Powhatan, should go to France to support/assist in their Revolution -- posted from Lynchburg). 

Here is the transcribed letter:

 

Powhatan Bolling’s (511c) letter to Thomas Jefferson

 







Lynchburg 6th September, 1792
 
Dear Sir,
 
Although letters from a person unknown like me taken in your exalted station and generally fraught with publick matters, as the friend of an deceased parent give me leave to flatter myself.  You’ll excuse the levitation of a son, who owes you equal respect and esteem; and who, presuming on that alone, ventures to address you as such and call on your attentions.
 
That bright star which gave life and liberty to America, produced a revolution here, and beamed its glorious rays successfully in France.  There mounted to a blur, a genial influence is reflected back so paramount to prejudice, that to participate the suffering of those brave people or share the smiles of their success has finally become the height of my ambition.  During our late struggle for independence, any youth has often been lamented.  Now – when arrived to a proper age, left with a constitution capable of the fatigue, and above all enraptured with the prospect of signalizing myself in so noble a cause: behold – the great editor of our country, presents an ample field to gratify each longing inclination, one only obstacle excepted; the Medium of some Friend to succeed in a country where custom expects it and where a state of warfare, may make it necessary.
 
As a stranger – I have ventured hard in addressing you with so much freedom that – if you knew the time I have taken to reconcile its (luintic) features, your answer would be read and candid.  Meanwhile, should you do me the honor I’ve expressed: I shall leave any country the ensuing spring, with a resolution, not willingly to disgrace it, (imprefid?) with a becoming degree of gratitude to you.
 







I am, Dear Sir, with respect








P Bolling
 
PS.
 
Judge Fleming informed me you advocated my Father in Exec of Edward Bolling deceased in a dispute between him and Mr. Archibald Bolling.  That the arguments were drawn up William Wythe, XXX and yourself for the defense, the examination of which William Wythe retrial several demands brought forward by him at first.  You will much oblige me by transmitting such information as you may find convenient, think necessary the dispute intimacy on hand. 
 
Note that the PS refers to the arguments that Thomas Jefferson wrote for Robert Bolling (Fh510/511,380c) after Edward Bolling's (380e) will gave Buffalo Lick to Robert and Archibald (Fh050,380g) wanted him to share in the crops.  Robert refused and they went to court (don't blame him tobacco was used as cash and Buffalo Lick was heavily planted).  Edward died in August of 1770 and harvest was about to begin. This is the famous Bolling vs Bolling case that proved how good a lawyer Thomas Jefferson was. (1508)

Powhatan Bolling (511c) died March 21, 1803 and his executor was Leneaus Bolling (Fh463,511d) his younger brother.  Leneaus Bolling started pulling all the land back under his name especially the "Chellowe" track.  The house Chellowe was by this time home to his mother again, Edmund Wilcox having died and buried at "Chellowe" graveyard in an unmarked grave under a tree.  Lenaeus' mom wrote him thinking of selling "Chellowe" off.  Lenaeus from his home in Buckingham called "Whispering" replied as follows:

 

The original is on file at the University of Virginia, special documents room lower level of the main library.

 

Address to: Mrs. Susanna Wilcox
                   Westwood
                   Campbell 

 

From: Lenaeus Bolling 
           Whispering
 

Date: July 17th 1811

 

Dear Mother,

Billy got down safe with you letter etc and would have set off up again today but waited for my letter as I did not get up in time to write yesterday.

With respect to your estate at Chellow, I find all your friends in this quarter seem to be of an opinion you will do much better to keep up the plantation than to break it up. – If profit is your object, there can be no doubt but the present state of things will be found the most legible – The very fact of its being a mere tenancy for life would be entirely sufficient to prevent any person from giving anything like the value of the place for it – Indeed it is extremely doubtful whether you could get a bid for the place or the Negroes; --who would rent land or hire Negroes if they knew they would be liable, until the first of the following March, to lose all their labor + consequently fail in making a crop; nay, evenly be put out of doors? – you know my Dear Mother, life is very uncertain; and that very uncertainty would produce a risqué which few (page torn and missing) – be found willing to take upon themselves (page torn and missing) very time, I presume, that form the resolution of breaking up your home, you perhaps have formed no ultimate plans; have fixed no place to reside in; have made no calculations of the plaque of commencing house keeping anew:  without servants, without fuel, provision, furniture, groceries, etc – who is to procure your wood, cut it, make your fires, cook, wash, cut up and salt your meat, go on errands, get fruit cake, care of your milk cattle, your horses, buy your corn, fodder oats, keep the keys of the cornhouse, etc. O’Lord! Lathers(?) other things which, although of a trifling appearance on paper, become matters of very serious importance in practice. Besides, you have as yet had no experience whether you would like the change + if unfortunately you should become dissatisfied, what would you do with your farm home rented for 3 years, your stock all broke up and sold off, no furniture, provision etc.  Your situation would be truly deplorable – No Mother, if you do not feel satisfied to live a Chellow keep up the place till you made a fair trial when, if you should not like, you can have it in your power to return – Excuse my presumption in presenting to you this view of things +, let me beg you to believe, I have but one motive for so doing, which is my regard for your happiness + welfare – As to the advertisements, if you determine to persist in it, just get Mr. West to send one to a printer in Lynchburg + another to one in Richmond by mail, which he can readily do + able in very good time.


As to my going over (page torn and missing) tain (most likely mountain*), it is a thing I should like very well (page torn and missing) would very probably be conducive to my health, but when I shall go, or whether I shall go at all, is, at this time, very problematical – at any event, although it would give me great pleasure to accompany you, it is not in my power to go yet, no for sometime to come, how long I do not know.  I am happy to hear your health is not worse then when you left us, I sincerely hope, if you do go you may find that benefit from the trip + the use of the waters which you hope for.  

It is not for me to be an advisor, but perhaps as Mr. West is probably not disengaged at this time that I am, it would not be either a very inconvenient or unpleasant trip for him, especially as I understand Martha will accompany you.

We are all well but little Mary (463d), who has a very sore tongue and mouth, which fut (torn and missing) der a little though I hope it is nothing serious – Col. Bell is again very unwell + when Mr. Akers (torn and missing) plied to him about your claim he express some surprise + said he had supposed Capt. Miller had paid you long ago – Polly and the children join in love to you + Martha + best respects to Mr. West + hope Eliza was well the last you all heard from her.
 




Dear Mother your Affectionate Son,



L.Bolling
 

The mountain (if it is) would probably be the springs in Amherst.  Known for their healing powers. The most popular of the springs were Warm Springs, Hot Springs, and White Sulphur Springs.  There were many others in and around this area.  They were very popular after the Revolutionary War.
 

 

The Eliza he mentions at the end is Elizabeth Watson Seaton, sister to Susannah Watson Bolling Wilcox who married George Seaton, Clerk of Amherst. (1508)

1W & R 470. Robert d1639/Anne Clarke--His father was Edward #190



John/Mary Carie Trudor--See Family Group #360



Edward



Thomas



Annis/Anne

1R & W
Fh470  
Robert Bolling was the son of Edward and Maude (Greene) Bolling.  Robert married Anne Clarke.  They had a son John.  Robert died 1639. (64)  Robert Bolling of London married Anne Clarke the daughter of Thomas Clarke of London.  They had children: John, Edward, Thomas, and Annis. (577)  Robert Bolling was the son of Edward Bolling (Fh190).  He settled in London.  His wife was Anne the daughter of Thomas Clarke.  They had a son John Bolling (Fh360).  Robert Bolling had a will dated 5 September 1639. (815)

1W & R 480. Robert 1646-1709/1/w m1665 or 1675 Jane Rolfe (     -1676)--His father was John #360



John 1676-1729/m1694-7 Mary Kennon (sister of Richard below)--See Family Group #370



Robert (?)



Jane (?)b1675/6-1714/m1695 Rev. James Clack (1655-1723)



Balam (?)



2/w m1681 Anne Stith (1659-1710)



Robert 1682-1749/m1706 Anne Cocke or Anne Merriweather--See Family Groups #490/#495



Stith 1686-1727/Mrs. Elizabeth (Rogers) Hartwell---See Family Group #650



Edward 1687-1710/-----Slaughter,had 6 children--See Family Group #201



Anne 1690-c1720)/Thomas Wynne, Jr., married a Drury and a Merriweather



Drury 1695-1726/Elizabeth Merriweather--See Family Group #170



Thomas b 20 March 1697/8,d1734-1764



Agnes 1700->1762/mc1719 Richard Kennon (brother of Mary above)



Mary Molly b1702/Andrew Baker b1692—See 109h 

1R & W 
Fh480 
Robert Bolling was born in 1646. (31)(45)(64)(65)(73)(104)(137)(1)(147)(246)(247)(320)(720)(368)(367)(391)(392)(314)(548)(673)(815)  Robert Bolling was born December 26, 1645.  (794) Robert Bolling was born in England. (31)(64)(94)(147)(246) Robert Bolling was born in London, England. (65)(73)(391)  Robert Bolling was baptized at All Hallows. (815)  Robert Bolling was the son of John and Mary (Clarke) Bolling.  (65)(73) Robert Bolling was the son of John and Mary (Carie) Bolling.  (64)(815) Robert was the son of John and Mary (Garman) Bolling.  (94) Robert Bolling was the son of John and Mary Bolling.  (314)(673)(753) Robert Bolling was the son of John Bolling (Fh360). (577)  Robert Bolling came from England to Virginia in 1660. (64)(65)(73)(1)(94)(246)(247)(367)(391)(815)(871)(720) Robert Bolling came 1660 to Prince George County, Virginia.  (sic, Prince George was formed 1702 from Charles City County) (391) Robert Bolling came to Virginia October 2, 1660 settled in that part of Charles City County now Prince George at a place called "Kippax".  (673)(720)  At Robert's tender age when he came to the colony, he must surely have been sent to or with some older person.  Possibly Thomas Bolling.  An Edward Bolling of the Bradford line had son, Thomas, born 1543. (51)(957)  Robert Bolling immigrated to Virginia in 1660 married Jane Rolfe in 1675 died at "Kippax" in Prince George and is there interred.  By this marriage he had one son John.  "Kippax" was afterwards called by my maternal uncle Theodorick Bland "Farmingdale", it is about three miles from "Cawsons".  (872) Robert is said to have come to Virginia in 1660 at the age of 14.  (7) Robert Bolling married Jane Rolfe.  (45)(64)(65)(73)(104)(391)(753)(752)(815) Jane Rolfe was his first wife.  (65)(73)(391)(753) Robert Bolling married Jane Rolfe in 1668. (51)(957)  Col.  Robert Bolling married Jane Rolfe in 1675.  (1)(64)(94)(104)(246)(247)(391)(392) Jane Rolfe was the daughter of Thomas and Jane (Poythress) Rolfe.  (104) Jane Rolfe was a descendant of Pocahontas. (45)(815)  They had a son John Bolling born 1676.  (45)(64)(65)(73)(104)(247)(391)(753) Robert Bolling would have been of full legal age in 1666. Robertson lists Robert Bolling's married to Jane Rolfe as 1675 and the birth of their son John 1676.  I believe that both the wedding date and birth date was earlier.  There was a tripartite deed dated 1684 that gave John Bolling some land--he would have only been eight year old if born 1676.  I believe Robert Bolling and Jane Rolfe had no less than three and very probably four children. (7)  Some researchers believe that Col. Robert and Jane had more than the one son John, first credited to them.  Namely Robert, Jane and Balam.  The last name (Balam) from the spotted jaguar found in Indian lore, who followed more after his Indian kin. (51)(957)   Robert and Jane (Rolfe) Bolling may have had a daughter Jane who married James Clack.  (200) Rev.  James Clack immigrated 1679 from England and married Jane Bolling.  (945) Jane Bolling, daughter of Jane Rolfe, married the Rev.  James Clack of Virginia.  (7) On indenture 1 October 1698, John Bolling, Gent.  of Varina Parish, Henrico County, was son and heir of Jane (Rolf) Bolling, late, wife of Robert Bolling, Gent. of Charles City County.  She was the only daughter of Thomas Rolf, dec'd.  (908) Robert Bolling married first Jane Rolfe and had John, about whom much is known, and Jane who married Rev. James Clack.  (212)(213) Their daughter Jane Rolfe Bolling born about 1675 who married before 1694 to James Clack and Matthew Hubbard.  Not sure which husband was first. [Source: Unknown] This gives a connection to the Hubbard Papers. (1414) Robert Bolling was twice married; first, in 1675 to Jane Rolfe, daughter of Thomas Rolfe and granddaughter of Pocahontas; by this marriage he left one son, John Bolling, and several daughters.  (367) Robert Bolling (Fh480) of London was the father of John Bolling (Fh370) who married Mary Kennon. (314) Descendants of John Bolling (1676-1729) were referred to often as the "Red" Bollings (indication of their Indian ancestry). (64) Robert Bolling's wife Jane died in 1677.  (64) William Grigg bought from Robert Bolling in 1677 property known as "The Graces". Following is a response I received from Carol Morrison who is a well known genealogist from the Grigg line. The Graces, located on the north side of a west branch of Bailey's Creek, could be anywhere from about Hopewell, Virginia to Fort Lee, Virginia. Personally, I favor Fort Lee. (1414) Inventory of Charles Fetherstone by John Steward, and Thomas Webster.  Account of Debts of the estate mentions:  Abraham Womack, William Bevin, Timothy Allen, John Baugh, John Davis, Mr. Lown, Edward Stratton, Jr., Robert Bolling and Peter Rowlett for Lewis. Recorded 2 Oct. 1682. (1823) Robert Bolling married a second time 1682 Anne Stith. (65)(73)(30)(61)(62)(368)(753) Robert Bolling married second, 1681, Anne Stith, daughter of Colonel John Drury Stith. (246)(247)(367)(392)(971)  Robert Bolling married second Ann Stith, daughter of John Stith of Brunswich County, Virginia. (815)  The Will of John Stith--I, John Stith, Sen'r, of the parish of Westover, in Charles City County, in Virginia, Gent, being well in body . . .I give & bequeath to my Daughter Ann, the now wife of Mr. Robert Bolling (Fh480), the sum of 10 pounds sterling. (1414) John Stith had a Charles City will dated 1690, proved 1694. Names daughter Ann wife of Robert Bolling. (2064, page 23) Her father was Drury Stith.  (1) Robert Bolling, Sr. did marry Ann Stith as stated.  However, it is to be noted that Ann's father mentioned Mr. Robert Bolling in his will, not Colonel Robert Bolling. In fact, through out the official Charles City County records, Robert Bolling is spoken of as Mr. Robert Bolling. The exception comes from two miscellaneous records, which speak of a Col. Robert Bolling, both dated before 1700 in Charles City County.  Thus, if these records are true, we have to conclude that Col. Robert Bolling was never of lower rank than Colonel, and that his rank came after the death of his father-in-law, who died only about 15 years before Robert. Mr. Robert Bolling was engaged with the business of Charles City County, and was often mentioned as present for meetings. Many of those records exist to this time. Robert lived at Kippax, along the bend in the Appomattox River.  This was the frontier during the lifetime of Robert Bolling. We note that transportation was slow and uncertain in those early times, and the frontier location  made the Kippax location of his home very unlikely during the periods which he was involved as an official of Charles City County.  This part of Charles City County became Prince George County less than a decade before Robert Bolling died.  The mystery deals with Robert's family by his second wife, Anne Stith. This branch of the Bollings, are called the White Bollings, and are said to be the Bristol Parish Bollings. The White Bolling children were:


Robert II,
25 January 1682


Stith,

28 March 1686


Edward,

03 October 1687


Anne,

22 July 1690


Drury,

21 June 1695


Thomas,

20 March 1697


Agnes,

30 November 1700

Robert Bolling Senior is said to have passed away on 17 July 1709.  His youngest daughter but 9 years old. My source for the following information is: A HISTORY OF BRISTOL PARISH, VA., with, Genealogies Of Families Connected Therewith, and Historical Illustrations; by Rev. Philip Slaughter, D. D., Second Edition, Published by, J. W. Randolph & English, 1879. My efforts to confirm the birth dates of the White Bollings took me to Bristol Parish, as Robert Bolling was said to have belonged to the Bristol Parish Church, as did his son Robert, and his grandson Robert. The message we get is that the Robert Bollings, all lived in Bristol Parish, of what became Prince George County, Virginia; three Generation’s of them, and each of them deeply involved in church matters. We learned that the earliest records of births are missing from Bristol Parish, mainly before 1700.  Thus we did expect to find a record of Agnes b. 30 November 1700.  We did not.  There were less than 500 families in the entire Parish in this time frame. I did find mention of a Robert Bolling. A further review of these Parish records found mention of two children, born in the 1720's who belonged to a Robert Bolling. We know that by 1709, Robert Senior is said to be dead, and the Robert Bolling now in Bristol Parish is said to be Robert Bolling, Junior. (1308)

Robert and Anne (Stith) Boling had children:


a.    Robert (Fh490) born 1682 who married Ann Cocke. (61)(62)(65)(94)(73)(246)(247)(368)  Robert 1682-1749 married in 1706 Mary Ann Cocke. (320)  There descended seven generations of Robert Bollings in direct line.  This branch of the Bolling family lived in and around Petersburg County, Virginia. (94)   Robert was born 1682 and he married Anne Merriwether. (314) Robert Bolling married 1706 Anne Meriwether. (550) According to Surry County, Virginia, records Thomas Wynne was in debt 1720 to his wife's brothers John and Robert Bolling. (892)


b.    Stith (Fh650) born 1686 who married Mrs. Elizabeth Hartwell.  (61)(62)(246)(247)(368)(392)  Mrs. Elizabeth Hartwell was the widow of John Hartwell. (392)  Stith (1686-1727) married Elizabeth Hartwell. (320)  John Stith Bolling was the second son. (367) According to Surry County, Virginia, records Thomas Wynne was in debt 1720 to his wife's brothers John and Robert Bolling. (892) Stith was born 1686. (314)


c.    Edward born 1687. (Fh201) (65)(73)(246)(247)(368)(314) Edward (1687-1710) married a Miss Slaughter and had 6 children. (320) Edward/Edmon Bolling had a son Benjamin Bolling. (794)  The third of the family was a son named Edward born October 3, 1687. This Edward had a son Benjamin. (983) My source for Edward Bolling b.10/31/1687 to parents Robert Bolling 1646 - 1079 and Anne Meriweather Stith 1665 - 1709, m. 1681 at Kippox, Virginia, is the Book "The Family of William And Elizabeth Bolling Robertson of Richmond, Virginia 1585-1981", by Julian Hart Robertson & James Samuel Patton 1981, pages 19-22. (393)


d.    Anne born 1690 who married ----- Wynne. (65)(73)(246)(247)  Anne born 1690 married ----- Drury and ----- Merriweather. (320) Anne was born 1690.  (368)(314)  Anne Bolling (1690-c1720) married Thomas Wynne, Jr.  According to Surry County, Virginia, records Thomas Wynne was in debt 1720 to his wife's brothers John and Robert Bolling.  (892) 


e.    Drury born 1694/95  (Fh170). (65)(73)(247) or born 1695 in Prince George County, Virginia (Charles City County then).  (30) Drury 1695- 1726. (320)  Drury was born 1695. (368)(314)


f.    Thomas born 1695 or 1697. (65)(73)(246)(247)  Thomas born 1698. (320)  Thomas was born 1697/8 (old style/new style). (314)  Thomas was born 1697. (65)(73)(246)(247)(320)(368)


g.    Agnes born 1700 who married Richard Kennon. (65)(73)(246)(247)(320)(368)  Agnes Bolling married Richard Kennon the son of Richard and Elizabeth (Worsham) Kennon. (250) Mary Agnes Bolling married Richard Kennon the son of Richard and Elizabeth (Worsham) Kennon.  Richard Kennon's sister, Mary, married Major John Bolling (Fh370) of "Cobbs". (893)  Agnes died 1762.  (320) Agnes was born 1700 in Charles City or Prince George County, Virginia.  (30) Agnes was born 1700.  (314)  Agnes was the daughter of Col. Robert Bolling of "Kippax".  She married Richard Kennon (died 1736) son of Richard and Elizabeth Kennon. (904)  Agnes (Bolling) Kennon had a will 1762, proved in Chesterfield County, Virginia, with bequests to her daughter Mary Clack. (923)


 Descendants of the children of Robert and Anne (Stith) Bolling were called the "White" Bollings. (64)  From this second marriage descend the Bollings of "Bolling Hill" and of "Bolling Brook", Petersburg, Virginia. (872)  Robert Bolling was called Colonel.  (45)(64)(61)(62)   Robert Bolling (Fh480) and William R. Bolling before 1682 were of Prince George County, Parish of Bristol,  on the south side of the Appomatoz (sic) river for transportation of Robert Beasley. (1095).  Robert Bollin was granted land in 1682, 1686, 1697, 1701 and 1703.  Robert Bollin resided in Charles City, Virginia in 1690. (40)  Robert Bolling's property consisted of 240 acres north of the Appomattox River--part of the plantation called "Old Town".  Also 1760 acres in Bristol Parish, 50 acres in Henrico County, Virginia and 1973 acres in Prince George County, Virginia. (94)  A merchant and planter, he served as a member of the House of Burgesses, as justice, sheriff and, in 1705, was named Colonel of the Prince George County Militia. (64) Robert Bolling lived at "Kippax" in the county of Prince George, Virginia. (548)(871)(137) "Kippax" might have been called "Farmingdale" or "Farmingdell" per the "Bland Papers". (548)(871)  Robert Bolling or his son Robert was Charles City County Sheriff in 1699. (137)  Col.  Robert Bolling Sr.  and Robert Bolling Jr.  had land grants 1706 in Prince George County, Virginia.  (38)(41) Robert Bolling was appointed Sheriff in 1699 and also perhaps was city surveyor in 1702,1706 in Charles City, Virginia.  Robert Bolling had land grants 1701 and 1702 in Charles City, Virginia.  He had a son Robert Bolling Jr. who also was a surveyor 1705,1714,1726, and 1729  in Charles City, Virginia. (38) According to the William & Mary Quarterly, Vol V, Page 276, Robert Bolling was the Sheriff of Charles City County, Virginia in 1699. (548)  In 1699, Henrico County, Virginia, Stephen Cocke deeded to Robert Bolling, merchant of Bristol Parish in Charles City County, Virginia, 240 acres of the north side of Appomattox River being part of the plantation called "Old Town". (245)  Col. Robert Bolling named his plantation in Prince George County, Virginia "Kippax". (7) A few miles upriver from where the James and Appomattox Rivers meet is "Kippax", Prince George County, Virginia, was the estate of Col. Robert Bolling.  (7)  Col. Bolling of Prince George County, Virginia, had quit rents in 1704 for 3402 acres. (1020)  Robert Bolling of Henrico County, Virginia, had quit rents in 1704 for 500 acres. (1020)  Robert Bolling (1646-1709) who came to Virginia at the age of 15.  (236) Robert Bolling was a member of the House of Burgesses, Prince George County, Virginia, in session beginning 20 April 1704. (1144) According to the Colonial Virginia Register, Robert Bolling was a member of the House of Burgesses, Prince George County, Virginia, in 1708.  (548) Robert Bolling, Gent., age 61 years or thereabouts gave a deposition in the Virginia and North Carolina boundary case about 1707 in Prince George County, Virginia.  He said the Nottoway River had been known by that name for 37 years or more. (673) Major Joshua Wynne and Captain Ffrancis Mallory as members of the Commission to investigate the Virginia-North Carolina line in 1707. They were to examine under oath "such ancient inhabitants of Prince George, Surry, Isle of Wight and Nansemond counties and discover the truth as to the said bounds between the said colonies." Also they were to ask the "ancient and intelligent indians of the Nottoway, Meherins and Nansemond nations," what they knew about the area. Among the old inhabitants of Prince George county deposing were: Robert Bolling, Gent. (Fh480, R&W) aged 61, who "hath known the Nottoway river for 37 years or more .. and "Major Wynn's quarter is on the sight of the old Nottoway Indian town." Capt. Wynne became Major Wynne by 1708. (1414) The Robert Bolling, Gent. aged 61 in 1707 is "the 1660 immigrant" of Kippax. Robert Bolling was a friend and neighbor of William Byrd who wrote a history of the "Dividing Line betwixt Virginia and North Carolina". The book includes a fold-out map which locates Nottoway River the first stream west of the Dismal Swamp. The deposition of Robert Bolling was taken about two yeas before his death.  He not only was "among the old inhabitants of Prince George County" he was himself a surveyor familiar with the disputed line.  The Commissioners for Carolina were described by Byrd as a sorry lot who wished to pretend that the Weyanook River (or Creek) was the reference point in the charter.  Whereas, affidavits on the part of Virginia was that before the charter to current date it was called the Nottoway.  Byrd gave most of the people then in North Carolina a bad wrap as ignorant and of ill fame, having been forced to move from Virginia to North Carolina. (339)(1570) Robert Bolling died 1709.(1)(45)(64)(65)(73)(104)(548)(673)(137)  Colonel Bolling died this morning, 17 July 1709, after a long sickness. (1188) The Henrico County, Virginia, court 1710-11 was granted power of attorney from Anne Bolling, relict of Col. Robert Bolling of Prince George County, Virginia, deceased. (245)  Power of Attorney: Anne BOLLING of Prince George County, Virginia, widow and relicit of Col. Robert BOLLING, late of said Co., dec’d, to Captain John WORSHAM and Captain Thomas JEFFERSON to relinquish to my son-in-law John BOLLING my dower right in land in Henrico Co., Virginia, which my husband died possessed of. Dated: 29 Sep 1710 Witnesses: Richard HOLLAND, Nicholas HATCHER Signed: Anne BOLLING Recorded : 1st Mon in March 1710. Can anyone tell me why Anne Bolling, widow of Col. Robert Bolling, calls John Bolling her son-in-law? (1414) Robert Bolling died in Prince George County, Virginia.  He was buried at "Kippax"--later moved to Blandford Cemetery, Petersburg County, Virginia. (65)(73) Robert Bolling lived and died at "Kippax", a fine seat on James river, below Petersburg, now in ruins; but his remains were removed in 1858, to a mausoleum in Blandford County, Virginia.  (1) "Kippax" passed to the Bland Family when Frances Bolling (170a) daughter and heir of Drury Bolling (Fh170) married 1739, Theodorick Bland, Sr. of "Cawson".  Col. Theodorick Bland Jr. of Revolutionary War fame, inherited "Kippax" during his father's life time. (548) Robert Bolling lived at "Kippax" where he died 1709, in his sixty-fourth year. (247) Robert Bolling died July 17, 1709 at age 62 years, 6 months, and 21 days.  (548)(673) There were at least two Robert Bolling of adult age in Virginia in 1674.  One was Robert Bolling (Fh480) and the other was Robert Bowlin transported to Virginia by Thomas Batts by 1674.  (7)  There is a possibility that Robert Bolling (Fh495) of "Cedar Level" who married Annie Merriweather is the son of Col. Robert Bolling (Fh480) and not Robert Bolling (Fh490) who married Anne Cocke. (7)  Robert Bolling was listed as Justice, 1702, Charles City County, Virginia.  Robert Bolling was listed as surveyor, 1702, Charles City County, Virginia.  Not shown as Sr. or Jr. (7) Robert Bolling resided 1685 in Charles City County, Virginia. There was a court case Robert Bolling vs.  Thomas Vinson 1696 in Charles City County, Virginia. (379) Robert Bolling had a granddaughter Millicents Bolling who married John Higdon. (577) Robert Bolling Sr. (Fh480) was of "Kippax" Prince George County, Virginia.  (118)(147) Robert Bolling was Colonel of the Militia and was buried at "Kippax". (720) Robert Bolling was a planter and acquired large tracts of land.  His residence was in Charles City County, on the south side of the James River in what is now Prince George County.  The name of the plantation where he lived "Kippax" did not probably originate with him, as he had, so far as is known, no reason for giving the name.  Col. Bolling probably acquired much land by purchase, as his grants were not extensive.  Henrico County deed date March 1700/1 from Stephen Cocke to Robert Bolling, of Bristol Parish, Charles City, 240 acres north side of Appomatox River, part of plantation called "New Town".  His grants comprised about 1,760 acres in Bristol Parish, 50 acres in Henrico County, and 1,973 acres in Prince George on Moccasoneck Creek and Nottoway River.  The last grant dated May 6, 1706 to "Co. Robert" while the first grant in 1682 was to "Robert, Gent." (720) Robert Bolling (Fh480) 20 Nov 1682 Charles City Co. (see Wm. Randolph & Robert Bolling) (1475) Charles City, Virginia court document 1664-1665 - To Robert Bolling for insolvents 0356; Maj. Poythres and Mr. Robt Bolling give bond L60 Sterl; Justices present: Capt. Daniel Lewellin, Cap't Charles Goodrich, Mr. Robert Bolling, and Capt. John Hamlin.; Abstract. Robt Bolling vs. Thos Vinson to next Court. Charles City Co., Court Orders 1664-65 [Source: Virginia Colonial Abstracts, Vol lll, Fleet (1988), pp 360-362] (379) If Robert Bolling was born in 1646, he would seem to be too young to make this record. Do we have a different Robert Bolling? (1414) (Also see source 118)

1W 490.
Robert  1682-1749/m1706 Mary "Anne" Cocke dc1751 (See Fh495 also)--His father could be Robert #480


abc
Mary 1708-1755/m1727/8 William Stark d1755


abc
Elizabeth 1709-1754/m1727/8 James Munford-President Bush’s ancestor


abc
Anne 1713-1766/m1730 John Hall d1781/2


abc
Lucy b1719/m1738 Peter Randolph


abc
Jane 1722-1762/mc1742 Hugh Miller


abc
Martha 1726-1751/Richard Eppes


abc
Susannah 1728-d>1766/m1745 Alexander Bolling 1721-1767--See Family Group #010


abc
Robert 1730-1775/Martha Banister & Mary Marshall Tabb--See Family Group #500


a
Robert b1720--See 495a 


  b
Mason b1724-See 495b


a
children per source #892 (“Cockes and Cousins)


b
Childred per Source #1106 


c
Children per Source #739

1W  
Fh490
Robert Bolling was born 1682.  (65)(66)(109)(118)(174)(246)(247)(337)(368)(314)(892)(137)(1111) Robert Bolling was born in Prince George County, Virginia (sic, Prince George was formed 1702 from Charles City County).  (65)(66) He was the son of Robert and Anne (Stith) Bolling (Fh480).  (65)(66)(118)(246)(314)(367)(368)(669) Robert Bolling married Anne Cocke.  (30)(61)(62)(73)(109)(118)(247)(337)(364)(367)(368)(892)(137) They were married in 1706. (118)(147)(247)(337)(368)(892)(137) Robert Bolling, Jr.  of Charles City County, Virginia married January 27, 1706 Anne Cocke daughter of Richard Cocke, Jr. and Elizabeth Littlebury.  (669)  Robert Bolling, brother of Ann Bolling, married Anne Cocke, daughter of Richard Cocke. (892) Robert Bolling married 1706 in Petersburg County, Virginia Mrs. Ann (Cocke) Merriwether.  (65)(66)  Robert Bolling's wife Ann's maiden name was Merriweather. (314)  Robert Bolling married January 27, 1706 Anne Meriwether. (550)  He married 1706 Mary Cocke.  (147)(246)  He married Mary Cocke. (906)  Anne Cocke was the daughter of Richard and Anne (Bowler) Cocke.  (108)(246) Anne Cocke may have been the daughter of Richard or Stephen Cocke.  (108)  Robert Bolling who married Annie Cocke was Robert of Charles City County, Virginia.  (7) Anne Cocke, whose father may have been Richard Cock, married Robert Bolling, of Charles City, in 1706.  They were the ancestors of the line of the Peterburg Bollings.  (201) 

Robert and Ann (Cocke or Merriweather) Bolling had children:

   
a.     Mary born 1708 (65)(66)(118)(314)(368)(892)(970)  She married William Starke of York and Prince George Counties, Virginia.  (118)(246)(247)  She married William Stark 1727/8. (314)(970)

   
b.     Elizabeth born 1709 in Prince George County, Virginia who married James Munford of Mecklenburg County, Virginia.  (30)(65)(66)(73)(109)(118)(246)(247)(368)  She married James Munford 1727/8. (314)  She died in 1754. (892)

   
c.     Ann born 1713 in Prince George County, Virginia who married 1730 John Hall of Scotland. (30)(65)(66)(73)(109)(118)(246)  Anne who married 1733 Peter Randolph of "Chatsworth". (247)  Ann married John Hall. (314) Anne Bolling married John Hall. (364)(368)(1111)

   
d.     Lucy born 1719 who married 1738 Peter Randolph of "Chatsworth", Henrico County, Virginia. (79)(73)(65)(66)(118)(246)(314)(367)(368)(381)(576) The portrait of Peter Randolph of “Chatsworth” hangs in the fine old hall of “Shirley”, besides that of his wife Lucy Bolling. Lucy Bolling, daughter of Robert Bolling, married Peter Randolph in the year 1733 (sic). Lucy Bolling’s mother (sic) was Jane Rolfe, daughter of Thomas Rolfe, son of John Rolfe and Pocahontas. (1765)

   
e.     Jane born 1722 in Prince George County, Virginia who married Hugh Miller a native of Scotland. (73)(30)(65)(66)(118)(246)(247)(314)(368)(712)(713)  Jane Bolling was born 13 March 1842/43 (O.S.) and baptized at Blandford's Bristol Parish Church on 10 April 1743.  She was a grandchild of Col. Robert Bolling (1646-1709), emigrant and his 2rd wife Anne Stith.  She married Hugh Miller.  They were of "Grenock".  She died in the winter of 1756-57. (847) A daughter Jane who married Hugh Miller.  (906)

   
f.    Martha born 1726 in Prince George County, Virginia married Richard Epps of "Bermuda Hundreds". (73)(65)(66)(118)(246)(368)  Martha married Richard Eppes. (314)

   
g.     The seventh child was Susannah born 1728.  She married 1745 Alexander Bolling (Fh010), her first cousin. (61)(62)(118)(246)(314)(368)  Alexander Bolling was of "Mitchell" Prince George County, Virginia. (118)(247)

   
h.     Robert (Fh500) born 1730 who married second Mary Marshall Tabb. (65)(66)(118)(147)(246)(247)(368)(1270)  Robert married first Martha Banister. (7)(118)(147)(247)(368)  Robert married Mary Tabb. (314)  Robert was of "Bollingbrook". (713)


Alexander "Bud" Bolling's book (Source #739) has, Robert Bolling, II married "Anne Cocke, whose father was a fellow vestry man of Bristol Parish", on 27 January 1706. Robert Bolling, II, is a White Bolling and had the following children:


Mary,

25 January 1707/8  


Elizabeth,
17 December 1709


Anne,

12 December 1713


Lucy,

03 May 1719


Jane,

01 April 1722


Martha,

17 November 1726


Susanna,

16 June 1728


Robert III,
12 June 1730 (Fh500)

Our efforts to find the above listed children in the Bristol Parish records failed.  Not a one of them could be found.  Considering the number of records, which survived to this day, most of these children ought to have been a matter of record. Not so, not a one, and this despite Robert Bolling's "deep" involvement in the church. However this search of Bristol Parish records, by Slaughter, did turn up two children born to a Robert Bolling and his wife Ann. 


Robert, son of Robert. and Ann Bolling, b. Oct., baptized Nov 13, 1720


"Mason", daughter of Robert and Ann Bolling, b. Sep. 22, 1724.

The name Mason is in quotation because we had to go to other sources of these Parish records to find her name. (John Bennet Boddie, page 281, Bristol Parish Register. Robert was on page 278.) Note that not a birth date here fits one of the said 7 daughters, nor is this the son who was born in 1730. If the birth dates survived for the eight children of Robert and Anne, why didn't the birth dates of these two survive as well? (1308) At any rate these names got me sidetracked, so off I went in search for the surname Mason. Here's what I found. Thomas Rolfe and James Mason. We jump now to the book, "Cavaliers and Pioneers", Abstracts of Virginia Land Patents and Grants, 1623 - 1666, by Nell Marion Nugent, Virginia Land Office, Richmond, Va. Volume One, p. 234. Thomas Rolfe is mentioned as receiving 525 acres upon the Chickahominy River, "commonly called and known by the name of James Fort", by act of Assembly dated 6 Oct. 1646, for 400 acres, and 125 acres for transportation of 3 persons not named. There is no doubt this is the Thomas Rolfe said to be the father of Jane Rolfe said to have married to a Robert Bolling.  Two entries down on the same page we find James Mason. James Mason was granted 250 acres in James City County, 20 April 1653. For the transportation of 5 persons; Robt. Lamb, Giles Flake, William Savage, and William Francis. (above states five, but only four names mentioned in this account.) These two men become important to the Bolling mystery as some have claimed that there was a Rolfe/Mason marriage, which would have involved the children of these two men.  This old and disputed oral tradition seems to come to life when one considers the name Mason being mentioned as a daughter of Robert Bolling above.  I suspect we are missing some important clues to understanding this family. However, to get back on track, the real mystery here is why Robert Bolling b 1720 and Mason b 1724 were not mentioned in Alexander "Bud" Bollings's book. For example, was this another Robert Bolling (Fh495) entirely? (1308)


Robert Bolling or his father Robert was Charles City County Sheriff in 1699. (137)  Willis Mountain in present day Buckingham County, Virginia, was probably used by Indians as a lookout point for centuries, but the first known whites known to have seen it are R. Bolling and I. Bell in 1700.  These names are carved in the rock of the cave. (981)  "Cedar Level" was the home of Robert Bolling II (1682-1749), a surveyor and a son of the builder of "Kippax", Robert Bolling I (1646-1709) (236) Robert Bolling of Prince George County, was a member of the House of Burgesses in the sessions that began October 25, 1710 and May 21, 1730.  (708) Robert Bolling of Prince George County, was a member of the House of Burgesses in the sessions that began May 21, 1730. (1144)  Robert Bolling Jr.  was a surveyor 1705,1714,1726, and 1729  in Charles City, Virginia. (38)   Robert Bolling was surveyor 1714 and 1729 in Charles City County, Virginia.  (7) Robert Bolling had land transactions 1721,1727,1728 and 1730 in Prince George County, Virginia. (41) Robert Bolling resided 1721 in Prince George County, Virginia. (1190) Robert Bolling was involved in court cases (1714-1720) in Prince George County, Virginia, on pages 289 and 302 of the Court Order Book.  (419) According to Surry County, Virginia, records Thomas Wynne was in debt 1720 to his wife's brothers John and Robert Bolling.  (892) Robert Bolling had land in Prince George County, Virginia, in 1733 called "Sappone Tract".  (7) Col. Robert Bolling in 1722 bequeathed to Robert Bolling of Prince George County, Virginia land in Surry County, Virginia.  (41) A Robert Bolling, deceased, had a land grant of 1,150 acres, 1722, in Surry County, Virginia. This land was in 1756 in Sussex County, Virginia. (1453) Robert Bolling was called Major in 1723.  (41) Robert Bolling inventoried the property of Capt.  Drury Bolling in 1726.  (7) Major Robert Bolling 1730 was church Warden. (109)(110) Robert Bolling was of "Bollingbrook".  (109) Robert Bolling in 1740 deeded 1,197 acres to his son-in-law John Hall "for love and affection". (109)  Robert and Annie (Cocke) Bolling later lived in Prince George County, Virginia in that part of the county that in 1752 became Dinwiddie County, Virginia. (7) Robert Bolling had land 1741 Prince George County, Virginia, on the upper side of the Great Run. (418)  In the July Session of 1719, Court Order Books of Prince George County, Virginia, page 268, there is a chancery suit by Francis Anderson as executor vs. Henry Offley and Robert Bolling. Robert Bolling Gent is sitting as the justice in the case. (419)(7) The point I make here is that Robert Bolling, Gent. could not sit as justice in a case against himself. Consequently it is evident that the Robert Bolling who sat as justice is not the Robert Bolling sued by Francis Anderson. As you know there were two Robert Bollings at this time and place--one having married Annie Cocke (Fh490) and the other to Anne Merriweather (Fh495). (419)(7)  Robert Bolling had a debt case against William Hamlin in Prince George County, Virginia 1714-1720.  Robert Bolling, Gent, was listed as Justice present, 1720 Prince George County, Virginia.  A bond by John Bolling and Robert Munford to Robert Bolling on the motion of Drury Bolling was acknowledged by them.  Thomas Eldridge was the attorney.  Robert Bolling and Robert Munford were named by the court, 1720, Prince George County, Virginia, to settle the differences between Mathew Smart Jr. and Joseph Irby. (419) Robert Bolling had a will dated 1747 which mentions son-in-laws William Starke, John Hall, Peter Randolph, Hugh Miller and his (Robert's) daughter Elizabeth.  (7)(109) James Munford was a very large land owner and did not receive any property from Robert Bolling though his wife was included in the Bolling will.  (109) Robert Bolling died 1749 in Prince George County, Virginia.  (65)(66)(109)(118)(147)(246) There is a possibility that Robert Bolling (Fh495) of "Cedar Level" who married Annie Merriweather is the son of Col.  Robert Bolling (Fh480) and not Robert Bolling (Fh490) who married Anne Cocke.  (7) Robert Bolling was listed as Justice, 1702, Charles City County, Virginia.  Robert Bolling was listed as surveyor, 1702, Charles City County, Virginia.  Not shown as Sr.  or Jr. (7) Robert Bolling, Gentleman, of Prince George County, Virginia, was involved in transactions in 1728 and 1730.  (264)  Council in 1729 held at the Virginia Capitol. To Robert Bolling Gent, 1000 acres of land adjoining to his patent land in Horsepen Swamp on Appomattux (sic) River in Prince George County, Virginia, with leave to include both tracts in one patent. (1231)  To the said Robert Bolling Ten Thousand acres of land including that already granted to him on Namosine Creek in Prince George County, Virginia. (1231) Robert Bolling of Dinwiddie evidently owned a network of Virginia plantations in several counties.  I have no opinion if the son of Col. Robert and Annie (Stith) Bolling was Robert who lived at "Cedar Hall" and married Annie Merriweather or Robert who married Annie Cocke and lived in that part of Prince George County which became Dinwiddie County, Virginia. (7) Robert Bolling (1682-1749) of "Bollingbrook" married 1706 Anne Cocke and had nine children. One of his grandsons was Jack Bolling who married Jinny Goode.  (337)  Col. Bolling was a surveyor 1736 in Henrico County, Virginia.  Col. Robert Bolling and Major Bolling had a warehouse 1737 in Henrico County, Virginia. (379) Robert Bolling Jr., a well-known versifier (in England periodicals), and Robert Munford were former schoolmates in Yorkshire but native Virginians. (902) The Sketch of Robert Bolling (this from a book review) makes no mention he was a burgess for Charles City & Prince George Counties as well as surveyor of Charles City County, Virginia.  (904) Robert Bolling II and Mary (Cocke) Bolling of "Kippax", Bolling Point, descendants of the original settlers and one of the wealthiest and most important families in the area. (906) The will of Stith Bolling (Fh650,W), of Surry County; not dated; but probated Surry County Court, Virginia, August 16, 1727, names sons Stith Bolling (650a), Alexander Bolling (650b,Fh010), John Bolling (650c) and Robert Bolling (650d); makes provision for two daughters ( though does not give their names); wife Elizabeth Bolling and brother Robert Bolling (Fh490,Fh495), executors (Surry County records, Wills and Deeds 1715-30,  page 75I). (1494) Mortgage Deed dated the 7th day of November,1734, from Drury Stith of Brunswick County to Robert Bolling (Fh490 or Fh495) of Prince George County, for 86 pounds,4 shillings and 3 pence, secured by 6 Negroes. Witnessed by Stephen Dewey, George Walton, and Moses Dunkley. Presented in Court on November 7,1734. (Deeds and Wills Book 1,page 132). Mortgage Deed dated the 7th day of November,1734 from Drury Stith to Robert Bolling (Fh490 or Fh495), Administrator of the Estate of Drury Bolling (Fh650), late of the County of Prince George, dec'd., for 38 pounds,11 shillings,9 pence and half penny, secured by 3 Negroes. Witnessed by Stephen Dewey, George Walton, and Moses Dunkley. Presented in Court on November 7,1734. (Deeds and Wills Book 1, page 133). (1414)
Robert Bolling of Prince George County, Virginia, had a will dated 1749, In it he mentions son-in-laws: William Starke, John Hall, Peter Randolph, Hugh Miller, Alexander Bolling, and Reich Eppes. Mentions daughters Elizabeth Munford, Ann Hall, wife Ann and son Robert, under age 21. (2062, page 112) Col. Robert Bolling, the estate of Mrs. Anna Bolling, lately deceased, to be sold by the executors William Stark and Alexander Bolling, at the late dwelling house of Col. Robert Bolling on Appromattox River (VG 12 Dec 51) (381)   

1W 495.
Robert/m      Anne Merriweather--(See Fh490 also)--His father could be Robert #480



Robert b1720--Could be #510



Mason (daughter) b1724

1W
Fh495 
Robert Bolling of Prince George County, Virginia 1717 was mentioned in a deed. (7)  Robert Bolling who married Annie Merriwether was Robert of Prince George County, Virginia.  He built and lived at "Cedar Level". (7) Major Robert and Anne Bolling had son Robert born 1720 and daughter Mason born 1724. (112)(7)  The Bristol Parish Register has Mason daughter of Major Robert and Anne Bolling born 1724 and Robert son of Robert and Anne Bolling born 1720. (7)  Robert Bolling was Justice of the Peace and County surveyor 1714 in Prince George County, Virginia. (38)(7)  They may have had a daughter Mason Bolling who married ----- -----. (7)  There was a deed recorded in Prince George County, Virginia by Robert Bolling and witnessed by John Mason. (7)  Robert Bolling of Prince George County, Virginia and Anne, his wife, 1722 conveyed to Drury Stith Jr. 892 acres of land for 5 shillings and "the natural affection he bare unto the said Stith". (7)(111)  Robert Bolling of Prince George County, Virginia 1717 conveyed 165 acres of land to Stith Bolling (Fh650) of Surry County, Virginia. (7) In the July Session of 1719, Court Order Books of Prince George County, Virginia, page 268, there is a chancery suit by Francis Anderson as executor vs. Henry Offley and Robert Bolling. Robert Bolling Gent is sitting as the justice in the case. (419)(7) The point I make here is that Robert Bolling, Gent. could not sit as justice in a case against himself. Consequently it is evident that the Robert Bolling who sat as justice is not the Robert Bolling sued by Francis Anderson. As you know there were two Robert Bollings at this time and place--one having married Annie Cocke (Fh490) and the other to Anne Merriweather (Fh495). (419)(7)  "Cedar Level" was the home of Robert Bolling (1682-1749), a surveyor and a son of the builder of "Kippax", Robert Bolling (1646-1709) who came to Virginia at the age of 15. (236)  There is a possibility that Robert Bolling (Fh495) of "Cedar Level" who married Annie Merriweather is the son of Col. Robert Bolling (Fh480) and not Robert Bolling (Fh490) who married Anne Cocke. (7) Alexander "Bud" Bolling's book (Source #739) has, Robert Bolling, II (Fh490) married "Anne Cocke, whose father was a fellow vestry man of Bristol Parish", on 27 January 1706. Robert Bolling, II, is a White Bolling and had the following children:


Mary,

25 January 1707/8  


Elizabeth,
17 December 1709


Anne,

12 December 1713


Lucy,

03 May 1719


Jane,

01 April 1722


Martha,

17 November 1726


Susanna,
16 June 1728


Robert III,
12 June 1730 (Fh500)

Our efforts to find the above listed children in the Bristol Parish records failed.  Not a one of them could be found.  Considering the number of records, which survived to this day, most of these children ought to have been a matter of record. Not so, not a one, and this despite Robert Bolling's "deep" involvement in the church. However this search of Bristol Parish records, by Slaughter, did turn up two children born to a Robert Bolling and his wife Ann. 


Robert, son of Robert. and Ann Bolling, b. Oct., baptized Nov 13, 1720


"Mason", daughter of Robert and Ann Bolling, b. Sep. 22, 1724.

The name Mason is in quotation because we had to go to other sources of these Parish records to find her name. (John Bennet Boddie, page 281, Bristol Parish Register. Robert was on page 278.) Note that not a birth date here fits one of the said 7 daughters, nor is this the son who was born in 1730. If the birth dates survived for the eight children of Robert and Anne, why didn't the birth dates of these two survive as well? (1308) At any rate these names got me sidetracked, so off I went in search for the surname Mason. Here's what I found. Thomas Rolfe and James Mason. We jump now to the book, "Cavaliers and Pioneers", Abstracts of Virginia Land Patents and Grants, 1623 - 1666, by Nell Marion Nugent, Virginia Land Office, Richmond, Va. Volume One, p. 234. Thomas Rolfe is mentioned as receiving 525 acres upon the Chickahominy River, "commonly called and known by the name of James Fort", by act of Assembly dated 6 Oct. 1646, for 400 acres, and 125 acres for transportation of 3 persons not named. There is no doubt this is the Thomas Rolfe said to be the father of Jane Rolfe said to have married to a Robert Bolling.  Two entries down on the same page we find James Mason. James Mason was granted 250 acres in James City County, 20 April 1653. For the transportation of 5 persons; Robt. Lamb, Giles Flake, William Savage, and William Francis. (above states five, but only four names mentioned in this account.) These two men become important to the Bolling mystery as some have claimed that there was a Rolfe/Mason marriage, which would have involved the children of these two men.  This old and disputed oral tradition seems to come to life when one considers the name Mason being mentioned as a daughter of Robert Bolling above.  I suspect we are missing some important clues to understanding this family. However, to get back on track, the real mystery here is why Robert Bolling b 1720 and Mason b 1724 were not mentioned in Alexander "Bud" Bollings's book. For example, was this another Robert Bolling (Fh495) entirely? (1308) Robert Bolling, Gentleman, of Prince George County, Virginia, was involved in transactions in 1728 and 1730. (264)  Robert Bolling of "Cedar Hall" was a surveyor of land.  So far as I know the descendants of Robert Bolling of "Cedar Hall" and wife Annie Meriweather have never been traced. (7)  I have no opinion if the son of Col. Robert and Annie (Stith) Bolling was Robert who lived at "Cedar Hall" and married Annie Merriweather or Robert who married Annie Cocke and lived in that part of Prince George County which be came Dinwiddie County, Virginia. (7) The will of Stith Bolling (Fh650,W), of Surry County; not dated; but probated Surry County Court, Virginia, August 16, 1727, names sons Stith Bolling (650a), Alexander Bolling (650b,Fh010), John Bolling (650c) and Robert Bolling (650d); makes provision for two daughters ( though does not give their names); wife Elizabeth Bolling and brother Robert Bolling (Fh490,Fh495), executors (Surry County records, Wills and Deeds 1715-30,  page 75I). (1494) Mortgage Deed dated the 7th day of November,1734, from Drury Stith of Brunswick County to Robert Bolling (Fh490 or Fh495) of Prince George County, for 86 pounds,4 shillings and 3 pence, secured by 6 Negroes. Witnessed by Stephen Dewey, George Walton, and Moses Dunkley. Presented in Court on November 7,1734. (Deeds and Wills Book 1,page 132). Mortgage Deed dated the 7th day of November,1734 from Drury Stith to Robert Bolling (Fh490 or Fh495), Administrator of the Estate of Drury Bolling (Fh650), late of the County of Prince George, dec'd., for 38 pounds,11 shillings,9 pence and half penny, secured by 3 Negroes. Witnessed by Stephen Dewey, George Walton, and Moses Dunkley. Presented in Court on November 7,1734. (Deeds and Wills Book 1, page 133). (1414)

1W
495b
Mason Bolling was born and baptized 1724 (Bristol Parish) daughter of Major Robert and Anne Bolling. This would be in Henrico or Prince George Counties, Virginia. Her brother Robert Bolling was born and baptized 1720 at Bristol Parish. (110)(112)(224)

1W 500.
Robert 1730-1775/1/w m1751 Martha Banister b1732--His father was Robert #490



2/w m1758 Mary Marshall Tabb, d>1810


a
Robert 1759-1839/Bolling,Stith,Washington & Stith--See Family Group #502


a
Thomas Tabb 1763-1810/m1782 Seignoria Peyton--See Family Group #710


a
Anne b1763/m1785 John Stores, Short or Shore


a
Frances/John LesMesurier or LeMessurier


a
Marianna 1775/9-1852 died unmarried


a
Childred per Source #1106

1W  
Fh500  
Robert Bolling was born 1730 the son of Robert Bolling and Anne Cocke. (73)(247)(671)  Robert Bolling was the son of Robert and Ann (Merriwether) Bolling. (314)(550)  Col. Robert Bolling of "Bollingbrook" was the youngest of eight children (and the only son) of Robert Bolling (1682-1749) and Anne Meriwether Bolling.  He had older sisters Mary Bolling Starke, Jane Bolling Miller, and Susanna Bolling Bolling. (847) Robert Bolling, of Dinwiddie, married 1779 (sic) in Amelia County, Virginia, Mary Marshall Tabb.  (970)  Col.  Robert Bolling (1730- 1775), planter and merchant of "Badwington", and, later "Bollingbrook" (in present-day Petersburg), Dinwiddie County. (847)  Robert Bolling's (1730-1775)(Fh500) half first cousin once removed was Robert Bolling (b1738) (Fh510/511).  To distinguish himself from this older cousin, Robert Bolling (Fh510/511) customarily appended "jun" or "of Chellow" after his name. (847) Robert Bolling was a member of the House of Burgesses from Prince George and Dinwiddie Counties from 1758-1774 and a member of the Convention of 1774 which was prior to the celebrated Philadelphia Congress and was held in Williamsburg, Virginia.  He was one of the Burgesses present when Patrick Henry made his famous speech. Robert married 1758 Mary Marshall Tabb, daughter of Col. Thomas Tabb of Amelia County, Virginia.  They had two sons: Robert IV and Thomas Tabb 1763-1810. (73)  They had two sons viz Robert and Thomas.  (314) Robert Bolling married 1758 Mary Marshall Tabb in Amelia County, Virginia. (1213)(1270) Robert Bolling III married Mary Marshall Tabb. (367) Robert Bolling, son of Robert and Anne (Cocke) Bolling married 1751 Martha Banister. (7) Robert Bolling was of "Bollingbrook".  (7)(247) Robert Bolling of Petersburg married for the second time 1758 Mary Marshall Tabb of "Clay Hill", only daughter of Col.  Thomas Tabb.  (109) Robert Bolling of Dinwiddie County, Virginia married 1758 Mary Marshall Tabb the daughter of Thomas and Rebecca (Booker) Tabb of Amelia County, Virginia. They had among other children Thomas Tabb Bolling.  (136)  Robert Bolling of "Bollingbrook", Petersburg, Virginia was born 1730 the son of Robert and Anne (Cocke) Bolling.  He married first Martha Banister and second 1758 Mary Marshall Tabb, daughter of Col. Thomas Tabb, of "Clay Hill", Amelia County, Virginia.  Issue by second marriage: Robert born 1759, Thomas Tabb born 1763, Ann born 1763 who married Dr.  John Short, Frances who married John Lemessurier and Marianna born 1779 who died 1852 unmarried. (118) Robert Bolling, of Dinwiddie County, Virginia married Mary Marshall Tabb 1758 in Amelia County, Virginia, Surety John Hall. (34)(1270)They probably had a son named Thomas Tabb Bolling. (34) Robert Bolling was born 1730 the son of Robert and Mary (Cocke) Bolling.  Robert Bolling married first Martha Bannister and married second 1758 Mary Marshall Tabb the only daughter of Col.  Thomas Tabb of "Clay Hill", Virginia.  Robert Bolling was of "Bollingsbrook", near Petersburg, Virginia. They had a son Robert who was born 1759. Robert Bolling Sr. died 1775. (174)  Robert Bolling III had five children by his second marriage: Robert, Thomas Tabb, Anne, Frances, and Marianna.  Robert Bolling III died 1775.  (247) Robert and Mary (Tabb) Bolling, of "Bollingbrook", Petersburg, Virginia had sons Robert and Thomas.  (314) Robert Bolling married Mary Tabb 1758, Amelia County, Virginia. (299)(1270) "Bollingbrook" was built by Robert Bolling II (Fh490) on his property between Sycamore Street and Lieutenant Run in Petersburg, Virginia.  In Robert Bolling II (Fh490) will, recorded in Prince George County, Virginia in 1747 he devised his property to his son Robert Bolling III who died 1779.  During the revolution after the capture of Petersburg the second time, Robert Bolling III wife Mary Marshall Tabb and her four single daughter were held prisoners at "Bollingbrook".  It was there that English General Phillips died. (310)(311)  A letter to England dated 7 March 1775 stated "Col. Robert Bolling at Petersburgh is dead". (367) Robert Bolling Esq. a representative for Dinwiddie County, Virginia, died 1775. (VGPu 3 Mar 75 sup, VG 4 Mar 75). (381) Robert Bolling III and Mary Marshall Tabb had a daughter Anne Bolling born 1765 who married 1785 Dr. John Shore II.  (396) Anne Bolling married 1785 John Shore in Petersburg County, Virginia.  Frances Bolling married 1793 John LeMessurier in Petersburg County, Virginia.  (400) Col. Robert Bolling of "Bollingbrook", Petersburg, Dinwiddie County, Virginia, was born 1730 and died 1775.  He married second 1758 Mary Marshall Tabb (1682-1749), daughter of Col. Thomas Tabb of "Clay Hill", Amelia County, Virginia. (550)  You will also be interested in learning that the Robert Bolling (Fh500, my fourth great-grandfather) who married Mary Marshall Tabb had a daughter who was born about three years after he died. The Petersburg historian thinks that he knows who the father was, and that is a story in itself, because it explains why Mary Tabb Bollin's second son, Thomas Tabb Bolling directed in his will that the ongoing lawsuit he had against his mother should be continued. (739) Robert Bolling had a will 1775, proved 1777. Names wife Mary, and sons Robert and Thomas. (2064, page 26)

1W 502.
Robert IV 1759-1839/1/w m1781 Mary Burton Augusta Bolling (1764-1787, age 24)--dau of Robert #510-

His father was Robert #500 or of the "Stith" Bollings


ab
Mary Burton Augusta 1789-1853/m1807 John Monro Banister (1783-1832)



2/w m1790 Catherine or Catharine Stith (d1795, age 26)


ab
Rebecca P. d1845/m1817 John Blackwood Strachan


a
Lucy Ann dc1844/N. Snelson



3/w m1796 Sarah "Sally" Washington (d1796, age 19)



4/w m1797 Anne Dade Stith (1780-1846)


ab
Ann Robertson or Roberta 1801-1823 or 1828/m1817 John N. Campbell


ab
Martha Stith/1/h m1828 Martin Pickett Slaughter, 2/h m1838 Edward C. Freeman


ab
Robert Buckner V 1805-1881/m1831 1/w Mrs. Sarah (Minge) Melville or Sarah Melville Minge 



2/w m1856 Margaret S. Nicholls


ab
George Washington 1806/8-1875/Mrs. Martha Stith (Smith) Nicholls or Nichols


a
Children per "Cocke and Cousins"


b
Children per Source #1106

1W  
Fh502   Robert Bolling IV was the son of Robert Bolling III (Fh500) and Mary Marshall Tabb, daughter of Col. Thomas Tabb of "Clay Hill", Amelia County, Virginia. Robert Bolling IV was of "Center Hill", Petersburg, Virginia. (73) 

Wife 1

Robert Bolling married first, his cousin, Mary Augusta Burton Bolling, the only child of Robert Bolling III, of "Chellowe". She died 1787. (73) Mary Burton Bolling, the only daughter Col.  Robert Bolling of "Challowe", married 1781 Robert Bolling of "Centre Hill". She died 1787. (137) In 1770 William Burton left all of his land in Old Plantation Neck, Northampton County, Virginia (he called it 1,600 acres) to his daughter Margaret, the wife of Littleton Savage, but if they had no heirs it was to pass to his granddaughter Mary Burton Bolling. In 1796 Robert Bolling of Petersburg (Fh502,widower of Mary Burton Bolling) sold (subject to the life estate of Littleton Savage, widower) to John Stratton, saying he had bought from Mary B. Bolling by a General Court deed. (1433) In checking the "Individual land Plots for Northampton County, Virginia 1600-1800, Middle Map," I found the following Bolling relations on Plot N30 --

Robert Bolling

Margaret Burton Savage 1770

Mary Burton Bolling

William Burton 1742

Looking at the original patent dates, I see Capt. Henry Fleet (1629), Thomas Savage (1632), and George Clark I, II, and III all on Plot N30 as well [this is the family that produced George Rogers Clark of Clark-Meriwether fame]. (1414) Robert Bolling married 1781 Mary Burton Bolling, daughter of Col. Robert and Mary (Burton) Bolling of "Chellowe". (550) He married first 1781 Mary Burton Bolling the only daughter of Robert Bolling of "Chellowe". (174)  Robert Bolling married first 1781 to Mary Burton Bolling, the only daughter of Col.  Robert Bolling of "Chellowe" (247) Robert Bolling married first 1781 Mary Burton Bolling daughter of Col.  Robert and Mary (Burton) Bolling of "Chellowe". They had children:

Ann Robertson who married John N. Campbell, 

Martha Stith who married Martin Slaughter, 

Robert Buckner, and 

George W. who married Martha Nicholls. (118)  

Robert Bolling of "Centre Hill" born 1759, married first 1781 Mary Burton Bolling, only daughter of Col Robert Bolling of "Challowe". They had:

Mary Burton Augusta Bolling born 1789 who married John Monro Banister the son of Col. John Banister. (671) Mary Burton Augusta Bolling (1789-1853) married ----- Banister. (905) 

Wife 2

Robert Bolling married second Catherine Stith.  (73)(118)(174)(247)(671)  Robert Bolling married Katherine Stith. (756)(1213) The marriage was in 1790. (118)(174)(247)(671)(756)(971)(1213)  The marriage was in Brunswick County, Virginia. (756)(1213) Consent was by Buckner Stith Jr. (7) Robert Bolling is of Petersburg, Dinwiddie County, Virginia. They were married by Rev. Thomas Lundie rector of St. Andrews Parish. (7) Catherine Stith was of Rockspring. (174) Catherine Stith was the daughter of Capt.  Buckner and Anne (-----) Stith of "Rock Spring". (118) Catharine Stith the daughter of Buckner Stith of "Rockspring". (671) Catharine Stith's lineage was Bucker(4), Drury(3), Drury(2), John(1). (971)  Robert and Cartherine (Stith) Bolling Rebecca P.  Bolling who married 1817 John Blackwood Strachan M.D.  and Lucy Ann Bolling who married N. Snelson. (671)(971) Catherine Stith she died 1795. (73)(971) Mrs. Catharine Bolling, spouse of Robert Bolling of Petersburg, died 9th inst. (VGPI 11 Aug 95, RMA 20 Aug 95). (381)  

Wife 3

Robert Bolling married third Sally Washington. (34)(73)(174)(229)(671)(1213)  The marriage was in 1796. (174)(247)(381)(671)(1213)  The marriage was in King George County, Virginia. (34)(299)(381)(1213) Robert Bolling (Fh502,1W) married Sally Washington Aug 1796, King George County, Virginia. (1937) Robert Bolling, of Petersburg, married Miss Sally Washington, daughter of Lawrence Washington Sr. Esq., on Thursday the 1st inst. at Mount Pleasant in King George County, Virginia (VHFFA 13 Sept 96, RCFPC 14 Sept 96, RMA 17 Sept 96) Sally Bolling, cons. of Robert Bolling Esq. of  Petersburg and daughter of Lawrence Washington of King George County, Virginia, died in Richmond, VA. on Sat. eve. last, the 1st inst., after a short illness. she had married Robert Bolling on the 1st ult. and was taken sick at Richmond on her way to Petersburg (RMA 4 Oct 96, VGPI 4 Oct 96, VGGA 5 Oct 96, VHFFA 7 Oct 96). (381) Robert Bolling married Sarah "Sallie" Washington, daughter of Lawrence and Elizabeth Washington. (247) Sally Washington was daughter of Lawrence and Elizabeth (-----) Washington.  (118)(174) Sally Washington was the daughter of Lawrence Washington Sr. (381) She was the daughter of Lawrence Washington. (671) She died about three weeks after they were married in 1796. (381) Robert Bolling married fourth Anne Dade. (73)

Wife 4

Robert Bolling (Fh502,1W) married Nov 21, 1797 Anne Dade Stith, King George County, Virginia. (1937) Robert Bolling was of Petersburg, Virginia. (381) Robert Bolling married fourth to Anne Dade Stith. (118)(147)(247)(671) The marriage was in 1797. (34)(118)(174)(247)(971)(1213) Robert Bolling married Anna Dade Stith in King George County, Virginia. (34)(1213) Anne Dade Stith was the only daughter of Buckner and Ann Stith. (174) Anne Dade Stith was the daughter of Buckner Stith. (671) Anne Dade Stith was the daughter of Capt. Buckner and Anne (-----) Stith. (118) Anne Dade Stith's lineage was Bucker(5), Drury(4), Drury(3), Drury(2), John(1).  (971)  Robert and Anne Dade (Stith) Bolling had:

a son Robert Buckner Bolling born 1820. (174) 

Robert and Ann Dade (Stith) Bolling had:

a son George Washington Bolling (1806-1875), Princeton, 1826, Virginia Senate 1865-66, 1866-67. George Washington Bolling once wrote that certain families of Bowlings in southwest Virginia were in truth descendants of Pocahontas and the Bowlings to whom he referred were not descended from John Bolling, Gent. and Elizabeth Blair. (7) Robert and Anne Dade (Stith) Bolling had a son George W. Bolling who married Martha S. Nicholls of Georgetown. George W.  Bolling was of Petersburg, Virginia. (367) 

They had children:

1.
Ann Robertson Bolling who married J. N. Campbell of Philadelphia. (671)(971) 

2.
Martha Stith Bolling who married first Martin Slaughter of Culpeper and second E. C. Freeman of Culpeper. (671)(971) A daughter Martha Stith Bolling married 1838, Petersburg, Virginia, Edward Ann (sic) Freeman who was born 1814. (554) A daughter Martha Stith Bolling married 1838, Petersburg, Virginia, Edward Ann (sic) Freeman who was born 1814. (554) 

3.
Robert Buckner Bolling who married 1831 Sarah Melville Minge, only daughter of John and Sarah Stuart Minge. (671)(971) 

4.
George W. Bolling who married Martha Nicholls the daughter of W.N. Nicholls of Georgetown, D. C. (671)(971) 

Robert Bolling was born 1759 at "Centre Hill", near Petersburg, Virginia, son of Robert Bolling of "Bollingsbrook", near Petersburg, Virginia.  Robert Bolling Jr. was a Colonel in the Revolutionary War. (174)  Robert Bolling born 1759 was the eldest son of Col. Robert and Mary Marshall (Tabb) Bolling of "Bollingbrook". (118) Robert was of "Center Hill", Petersburg, Virginia. (118) Robert Bolling was born 1759 near Petersburg, Virginia. He was in the Revolutionary War and for a time was a Captain. His father was Robert since he was Robert Jr. He applied for a pension S.6689 1832, age 73 in Petersburg, Virginia. (91)(658) Robert Bolling of Petersburg, Virginia, served as a Captain 1778-1781 in the Revolutionary War. His mother was Mary M. Bolling. A Thomas T. Bolling (Fh710) served in his unit. (672) Robert Bolling IV was born 1759 the elder son of Robert and Mary Marshall (Tabb) Bolling. He lived at "Centre Hill" and was married four times. (247) Robert Bolling was the son of Robert and Mary (Tabb) Bolling, of Bollingbrooke, Petersbury, Virginia. (314) Robert Bolling was a taxpayer 1782 in Dinwiddie County, Virginia. (347) Robert Bolling and Robert Bolling Jr.  were both in the 1810 Census of Dinwiddie County, Virginia. (349) Two Robert Bolings were in the 1820 Census of Dinwiddie County, Virginia. Also on the same page were Alexander, John, Mary, Richard P. and Samuel Boling. (348) Capt. Robert Bolling of Petersburg, Dinwiddie County, Virginia, 1779- 1781 formed a Cavalry unit which served in the Revolutionary War. In his group was Thomas T. Bolling. (22) Robert Bolling was born 1759. (550) Robert Bolling was on the 1787 tax list of Dinwiddie County, Virginia, with 26 slaves, 9 horses, and 38 head of cattle. (551) Robert Bolling was born 1762. His mother was Mary M. Bolling. Robert Bolling volunteered in spring of 1778 in Hanover, in a troop of 100 cavalry under Capt. Thomas Nelson of Yorktown. In May a British force under Benedict Arnold captured Petersburg. Robert Bolling was present in the action. Gen. Philips, who succeeded Arnold died at Petersburg a few days later in the home of Robert Bolling’s mother, Mrs. Mary M. Bolling. She with four single daughters were made prisoners. Cornwallis took command a few days later. (1099) Capt. Robert Bolling (Fh502), Dinwiddie County, Virginia, Pension started Oct 17, 1833 at age 75 (i.e. bc1758). (1414) Robert Bolling attended the College of William and Mary, 1776. (1439) The Robert Bolling who attended William and Mary in 1776 is a bit of a puzzle. I believe, however, that it was Fh502, son of Robert Bolling and Mary Marshall Tabb Bolling (Fh500). This student's father was very active in Virginia politics, spent much of his time in Williamsburg. He (the father) died in 1775 (while still a burgess), and it is logical that his son would begin his studies at William & Mary. The war stopped his academic effort. (739) Robert Bolling Revolutionary Pension #S6689. (2088)
Death

Robert Bolling IV died 1846. (73) Robert Bolling was of "Centre Hill" (7)(1261).   

1W 505.
Robert--Could be Fh500 or Fh502



Robert 1759->1832

1R 510.
Robert 1738-1769/m1763 Mary Burton (d1764)--His father was John #380 or Robert #495


(most have as same as Fh511)


a
Mary Burton 1764-1787/m1781 Robert Bolling (Fh502)


a
Childred per Source #1106

1R 511.
Robert Jr d1794/m1765 Susanna Watson (She m 2/h Dr. Edmund Wilcox)--His father was Robert Sr. 
#495 or John #380


(many researchers have same as Fh510)


ab
Pocahontas Rebecca 1765-1803/m1782 Joseph Cabell (1762-1831)


ab
Elizabeth Blair b1770/1/Thomas West (1751-1829)-Admiral Byrd’s ancestor


ab
Powhatan 1767-1802-unmarried


ab
Leneaus or Lumagus or Linnaeus or Lenias or Lenaeus 1773-1836/m1793 Mary Markham 



(1780-1825)--See Family Group #463


 b
Infant Daughter


 b
Edward 1769-c1783/4--died at William & Mary College 


a
Children per Source #1106


b
Children per Source #333

1R  
Fh510 and/or Fh511  Robert Bolling was born 1736. (45) Robert Bolling was born 1738.  (30)(64)(75)(219)(313)(847)(379)  Robert Bolling was born in Dinwiddie County, Virginia. (30) Robert Bolling was born to John and Elizabeth (Blair) Bolling. (30)(64)(313)(75)(314)(219)(889) Robert Bolling was born at "Varina" in Henrico County (now Chesterfield County), Virginia. (847)(75) Robert Bolling's father was Major John Bolling. (45)(889) Robert Bolling's paternal grandfather was John Bolling I (1676-1729) (Fh370) who built "Cobbs" before 1728. (847) Robert Bolling's half first cousin once removed was Robert Bolling (1730-1775)(Fh500). To distinguish himself from this older cousin, Robert Bolling customarily appended "jun" or "of Chellow" after his name. (847) Robert Bolling had a cousin Bolling Starke and an uncle Alexander Bolling. (847) Robert Bolling is mention in the 1749 will of his father "John Bolling of the Parish of Dale in the County of Henrico" as follows: "I give and Bequeath unto my Son Robert Bolling all my land at Williss Creek and at Tolere or near the seven Islands and Also a small Tract of land above Dugads between the said Dugads  and one of the Leads and all my Survey Entries and orders of Council adjoining or near the same and Also all my Entries on Rock Island Creek all which said lands lye (sic) in the County of Albemarble and I do give and devise them unto my said son Robert his Heirs and Assigns forever". (7) Father John Bolling’s 1749 will states “I Give and Bequeath unto my Son Robert Bolling all my Land at Willis’s Creek and at Tolere or near the seven Islands and Also a small Tract of Land above Dugads between the said Dugads and one of the Seads and all my Surveys Entries and orders of Council adjoining or near the same and also all my entries on Rock Island Creek all which said Lands lye in the County of Albemarle and I do give and devise them unto my said Son Robert his Heirs and afsigns (sic, assign) forever.” (1487) "Chellowe" is part of a grant of 6,740 acres patented by John Bolling (Fh380) on July 20, 1748 during the reign of King George II.  The original house at "Chellowe" (the name was copied from the Bolling estate in Yorkshire, England) existed in 1776 to the northwest of the present house on a site known as Wigwam Hill. It was destroyed by fire. (981)  John Bolling in his will provided Robert Bolling a plantation "Chellowe" near Willis Mountain, another on the James River near the Seven Islands and a small tract called "Totere's", a league from the last toward the source of the Willis River. (62) Robert Bolling primary inheritance was an estate of more than 800 acres in Albermarle County (later Buckingham) near "Willis Mountain"; another on the James River near Seven Island; and a small track called Toleres, a league farther up the James River. (347) In early 1761 Albermarle County was divided and Buckingham and Amherst Counties were created from the southern section. (347) Robert Bolling married first Mary Burton. (45)(64)(313) Robert Bolling married first Burton (314) Robert Bolling of Buckingham County, Virginia married 1763 Mary Burton. (257)(1052) The marriage bond was 3 Jun 1763 in Northampton County and the marriage was 5 Jun 1763. (847). Robert Bowling in 1763 married Mary Burton in Northampton County, Virginia. (1213) William Waters of Williamsburg, Surity; and consent of William Burton, Gent., father of Mary. (1052) Mary Burton was the daughter of William Burton in Northampton County, Virginia. (257)(183)(313)(75) In 1770 William Burton left all of his land in Old Plantation Neck, Northampton County, Virginia (he called it 1,600 acres) to his daughter Margaret, the wife of Littleton Savage, but if they had no heirs it was to pass to his granddaughter Mary Burton Bolling. In 1796 Robert Bolling of Petersburg (Fh502,widower of Mary Burton Bolling) sold (subject to the life estate of Littleton Savage, widower) to John Stratton, saying he had bought from Mary B. Bolling by a General Court deed. (1433) Robert Bolling Jr. (sic) married 1763 Mary Burton. (183)(313) Robert Bolling who married Mary Burton has never been identified. He is probably the son of Robert Bolling and Anne Merriweather. The record of his marriage to Mary Burton named him as Col. Robert Bolling of Buckingham County, Virginia. (7) In 1763 he married Mary Burton. (75) Mary (Burton) Bolling died at "Jordan's" 1764 two days after the birth of her daughter Mary Burton Bolling. (75) Mary (Burton) Bolling died before 1 November 1769. William Burton's will dated 1 November 1769 mentions his granddaughter Mary Burton Bolling who was a young child. The will further states "I have already given to my son-in-law Robert Bolling after his marriage with my daughter Mary, deceased, 600 pounds and upwards, and have also devised to his daughter, my said granddaughter if she should live to the age of 17 years, the sum of 5000 pounds, and have also in the meantime for her maintenance and support, I hope my said son-in-law will be content without any legacy in this my will" (556) Col. Robert Bolling of "Challowe" had only daughter Mary Burton Bolling who married 1781 Robert Bolling of "Centre Hill". (137) Robert and Mary (Burton) Bolling had a daughter Mary Burton Bolling. (550) Robert Bolling first wife died leaving one child, only two days old. (313) They had child:

     
a.  Mary Burton Bolling who was born 1764, married 1781 Robert Bolling of the "Stith Bollings". (313) Mary Burton Bolling, their only child, was born 1764, at "Jordans", Prince George County, the home of Robert Bolling's stepfather, Richard Bland. (847) Mary Burton Bolling married 1781 Robert Bolling (Fh502). (550)

Robert Bolling married second Susan Watson. (45)(64)(314)(889) Robert Bolling married Susan Watson. (889) Robert Bolling Jr., bachelor, and Susanna Watson, spinster married 1765 in Amherst County, Virginia, John Fraser, surety. (128) The Robert Bolling (see Fh510 and Fh511) who married Susan Watson is not the same man who married Mary Burton as proved by their marriage bonds. The Robert Bolling who married Susan Watson 1765 in Amherst County, Virginia, was Robert Bolling Junior meaning his father would have to be Robert Bolling and not a John Bolling. (7)(373) John Watson died in Henrico County, Virginia about 1750 and left two daughters under 21-Susanna and Elizabeth; a widow Martha Hinds Watson; and a step-daughter Mary Watson Hinds, who was born October 23, 1744. (This birthdate information came from Susanna Allen Burton's family Bible which was published in "Virginia Family Bibles.") John Watson's will can be found in abstract form on page 40-41 of Benjamin B. Weisiger III's book entitled "Colonial Wills of Henrico County, Virginia, Part Two 1737-1781." In John Watson's will, Susanna Watson got a nice inheritance of 400 acres next to Robert Sharp, called "Samsons" and personal property. Nathaniel Bacon was the guardian for Susannah and Elizabeth Watson in 1760 court in Henrico County. (page 63, same book) In 1764 John Ware was their guardian. (page 69 same book) Susanna married in Amherst, Robert Bolling, born August 17, 1738, they lived in Buckingham county. They, along with John Watson's widow Martha (who married thirdly Elisha Miller, and became a widow for the third time) sold their inheritance from John Watson to Thomas Prosser in Henrico County. (Henrico Deeds 1771 or 1772 at courthouse) This included the 541 acres of land that John Watson bought in 1716, left to his widow in his will, and that fact made this land traceable. (1414) Robert Bolling married second, Susan Watson and had issue (313) John Watson died in Henrico County, Virginia about 1750 and left two daughters under 21-Susanna Watson and Elizabeth Watson; a widow Martha Hinds Watson; and a step-daughter Mary Watson Hinds, who was born October 23, 1744. (This birthdate information came from Susanna Allen Burton's family Bible which was published in "Virginia Family Bibles.") Susanna Watson, daughter of said John Watson, married in Amherst, Robert Bolling, born August 17, 1738, a well-to-do fellow, and they lived in Buckingham County, Virginia. They, along with John Watson's widow Martha (who married thirdly Elisha Miller, and became a widow for the third time) sold their inheritance from John Watson to Thomas Prosser in Henrico County. (Henrico Deeds 1771 or 1772 at courthouse) This included the 541 acres of land that John Watson bought in 1716, left to his widow in his will, and that fact made this land traceable.) Robert Bolling died in 1775. His first wife had been Mary Burton. (Records of Buckingham County by Whitley.) (1414) 

     
a.  Pocahontas Rebecca who married 1782 Col. Joseph Cabell, (313) Pocahontas Rebecca 1765-1803. (333) Joseph Cabell Jr. (1762-1831) married 1783 as his first wife Pocahontas Rebecca Bolling at the Bollingbroke House, Petersburg, Virginia. She was the daughter of Col. Robert Bolling of Buckingham County, Virginia by his wife Susan Watson of Henrico County, Virginia. Joseph Cabell later married his first wife's (Pocahontas) first cousin, Mrs. Anne E. (Bolling) Duval, daughter of Archibald Bolling. (386)  Col. Robert Bolling and his wife Susan Watson had a daughter Pocahontas who married Joseph Cabell, Jr. (889) Joseph Cabell Jr. (1762-1831) married 1783 as his first wife Pocahontas Rebecca Bolling at the Bollingbroke House, Petersburg, Virginia. She was the daughter of Col. Robert Bolling of Buckingham County, Virginia (by his wife Susan Watson of Henrico County, Virginia. Joseph Cabell later married his first wife's (Pocahontas) first cousin, Mrs. Anne E. (Bolling) Duval, daughter of Archibald Bolling. (386)


b.  Powhatan 1767-1802. (313) Powhatan 1767-1803--unmarried. A character and a fine dresser. (333)


c.  Edward 1769-c1783/4--died at William & Mary College.


d.  Elizabeth Blair who married Major Thomas West, (313) Elizabeth Blair 1770/1-married Thomas West of Campbell County, Virginia. (333) Elizabeth Blair Bolling married Major Thomas West XE "West"  of Campbell County, Virginia. They had two daughters. (36)

     
e.  Linnaeus (Fh463), (313) Robert and Susanna (Watson) Bolling had 4 children including Leneaus (1773-July 7, 1849). (847) Linaeus 1773-1836.


f.  Infant daughter (?). (333)

Robert Bolling's children were Powhatan and Lumagus. (45) Robert Bolling had three sons. (64) Robert Bolling had five children. (219)  Robert Bolling was educated at Wakefield, England, by the celebrated Dr.  Clark.  His classmates were Theoderick Bland and Richard Henry Lee, with others from the colony. He wrote the "Bolling Memoirs". He returned to Virginia in 1756, studied law at Williamsburg, and later was elected a member of the House of Burgesses. (313) J. Bolling wrote his son Robert (Bob) Bolling, Rec'd 10 Oct 1755, when son was in Wakefield, England. Said to give greeting to Mrs. Beverly, The Bland, Mr. Clerk and the Usher, also my "Cousin Bolling". Can't send you a bird or monkey, why would you want one? Your mother is better now. (1266)  Robert Bolling of Chesterfield County, Virginia, was educated in Great Britain at Wakefield, 1756. (917) Robert Bolling lived with his mother at "Cobbs" from 1758 to mid-1760.  (847) In 1760 Robert Bolling lived at "Cobbs" in Chesterfield County, Virginia. (847) In mid-1760 he built a home at his plantation in Albermarle County, in an area that soon became Buckingham County.  Robert Bolling named his Buckingham County home, built in 1760, "Chellow", after his cousin Elizabeth Bolling's land in England. (847) Robert Bolling was in Buckingham County, Virginia, in the summer of 1761. (847) Robert Bolling, member of the House of Burgesses at the 1765 memorable session when Patrich Henry offered his resolution against the Stamp Act. (137) Robert Bolling was a "Colonel". (257)(45)(313)(219) Robert Bolling was of "Chillowe".  (313)(219) Robert Bolling was of "Chellow".  (379) Robert Bolling was a Member of House of Burgess. (219) Robert Bolling and Joseph Cabell were Representative to Assembly from Buckingham County, Virginia. (108) Col. Robert Bolling had land 1773 in Buckingham County, Virginia.  Col Robert Bolling Jr.  (sic) had land 1774 in Buckingham County, Virginia. (44) Willis Mountain is said to be the site of the "Chellowe" Plantation where they grew the grapes for the chellowe wines, the plantation and winery of Robert Bolling. (7) Robert Bolling wrote in 1773 about vineyards and their establishment in Virginia. (379) Robert Bolling died 1769. (45) Robert Pleasants wrote a letter to Robert Bolling of Buckingham County, Virginia, 10 January 1775 and 16 January 1775. (979)  

Col. Robert Bolling one of the delegates from Buckingham County, Virginia, died suddenly last Friday in Richmond (VGPu 28 Jul 75, VG 29 Jul 75); Thomas Fleming adv. that claims are to be brought to Col. William Fleming or Archibald Bolling Esq. (VG 6 Apr 76). (381). This is Col. Robert Bolling who was a member of the Virginia House of Burgess. The newspaper notices of his death were dated July 28 (VGPu) and July 29, 1775 (VG). A notice to file claims with Col. William Flemming or Archibald Bolling came April 6, 1776 (VG). (7)(381) Robert Bolling of "Chellowe", Buckingham County, Virginia, died in the flower of his age some time before the revolution. His executor was Col. Theoderick Bland of "Cawsons".  (75) Robert Bolling died in 1775. (64)(379) The estate of Robert Bolling was a taxpayer 1782 in Buckingham County, Virginia. (347) Col.  Robert Bolling Jr., late of Buckingham County, Virginia died in 1794 (sic) and Powhattan Bolling placed an ad in the newspaper (VGRMA 10 July 1794) requesting that persons who borrowed books return them. (7)(381) Robert Bolling Jr. had a Fayette County, Virginia (now Kentucky) land grant of 5,000 acres, no watercourse mentioned, 23 December 1785, Book 4, page 247. (13) Robert Bolling had a Fayette County, Virginia (now Kentucky) land grant of 5,000 acres, no watercourse mentioned, 21 November 1786, Book 4, page 309. (13) Lt. Robert Bolling was an officer in the Revolutionary War. He received a land bounty from Virginia for land in Kentucky. (130) The State of Virginia in 1782 issued the first land warrant (land in present day Kentucky) for Revolutionary War service. Acreage was determined by rank. From 1782 to 1792 (when Kentucky became a state), the government of Virginia issued approximately 10,000 patents. (1502) Land survey 1787 made for Robert Boling in Bourbon County, Kentucky. (7) Robert Bolling Jr. in 1799 was granted 5,000 acres in Bourbon County, Kentucky. Survey #3422 was dated 1797. (98) Robert Bolling had a Lincoln County, Virginia (now Kentucky) land grant of 5,000 acres on the Laurel River XE "River:Laurel" , 18 July 1782, Book 1, page 285. (13) R. Bolling had a Lincoln County, Virginia (now Kentucky) land grant of 5,000 acres on the Laurel River XE "River:Laurel" . He is listed as “Prior Assignee” in these tax records:


1806 Owner 
Forbus 
5000 acres
Laurel River
Knox


1807 Owner 
Forbus 
5000 acres
Laurel River
Knox


1808 Owner 
Ely 
5000 acres
Laurel River
Knox


1809 Owner 
Ely 
5000 acres
Laurel River
Knox


1811 Owner 
Ely 
5000 acres
Racoon Creek
------

Various name spelling:

Bolen/Bolling/Boulin/Bowling

Forbus/Forbis

Craig and King also listed as join taxpayer.


In 1809 the land was in Knox County, Kentucky. This source also has 5,000 acres on Racoon Creek XE "Creek:Racon" , county unknown, which may or may not be the same property. (450) Robert Bolling's estate was on two 1787 tax lists of Buckingham County, Virginia, with 8 blacks over 16 and 8 blacks under 16, some horses and some cattle. The plantation overseer was William Newton. (7) Robert Bolling, estate, was on the 1787 tax list of Buckingham County, Virginia, with 19 slaves, 5 horses, and 24 head of cattle. (551) Bolling Cemetery on the "Chellowe" Plantation, Dillwyn, Buckingham County, Virginia has on the south side "To the Memory of Col. Robert Bolling and to Susanna, his wife.  Powhatan Bolling, Esq.  (511c), Pocahontas Cabell (511a) and Edward Bolling (511f)".  Others in the cemetery are Lenaeus Bolling (Fh463) and his wife Mary, Anne Bolling, Jane Bolling, Mary Cobbs (463a) and Bolling Cobbs (probably son of 463a).  Also there James T. Hubbard M.D. and Susannah his wife who died 1829, age 45. Also there John Eppes Bolling 1810-1810 son of Phillip A. and Mary M.  Bolling (463c).  Also Pocahontas Bolling (1825-1858) (513b) wife of Rev. William C. Meredith and daughter of Robert and Sarah (Hobson) Bolling (Fh513) and her son Robert Bolling Meredith. (315) Col. Robert (1738-1775) of "Chellow(e)", Buckingham County, Virginia, wrote anonymous article concerning the bailment of Col. Chiswell. Several facts from his essay were he had personal relationship with John Blair (his uncle) and he (Robert Bolling) lived in Northamption or Buckingham counties. (905)  Robert Bolling was the son of John Bolling (1700-1757) of "Cobbs". Robert Bolling (1738-1775) of "Chellowe", Buckingham County, was born at "Varinia", Henrico County. Col. Robert Bolling married first Mary Burton and second 1765 Susannah Watson. (62)  Robert Boling (estate) is listed as head of household (9 white people, 60 black people) 1783 in Amherst County, Virginia. (43) Robert Bowling, estate, is listed as having a claim for property impressed or taken for public service 1782. (181) This could be the estate of Robert Boling, son of John Bolling, Gentleman and Elizabeth Blair, especially if he was the Robert Boling who was executor of his brother Edward's 1769/70 will in Amherst County, Virginia. (7) Robert Bowling was on the 1787 tax list of Amherst County, Virginia, with 60 slaves, 6 horses, and 75 head of cattle. (551) Robert Bolling Jr., bachelor, and Susanna Watson, spinster married 1765 in Amherst County, Virginia, John Fraser, surety. (128) After Robert Bolling died his wife Susanna (Watson) Bolling married Dr. Edmund Wilcox and in addition to her six children by Robert Bolling, she and Dr. Wilcox had a daughter, Susan Wilcox (1784-1829) who married 1st in 1805 to Dr. James Thurston Hubard. Their son Robert Thurston Hubard (1808-1871) married 1834 to Susan Pocahontas Bolling (1815-1849) the daughter of Linnaeus Bolling (1773-1836) the half brother of Susan Wilcox Hubard. What a tangled web of relationships!! (333) The Robert Bolling (see Fh510 and Fh511) who married Susan Watson is not the same man who married Mary Burton as proved by their marriage bonds. (7) Robert Bolling married Susannah Watson 1765 in Amherst County, Virginia. The marriage record of the Robert who married Susannah Watson clearly shows he was Robert Jr. and that he was a single man and she was a single woman. (7)(175) Robert Bolling, Jr. of "Chellowe", Buckingham County, Virginia, had correspondence 1765-1770 with Robert Pleasants, a later owner of "Curles", the Virginia plantation of Col. Richard and Jane (Bolling) Randolph. (7) The Court of Appeals in Virginia, 1801 had a case Fleming vs. Bolling. It involved the will of Edward Bolling who died in Aug 1770.  Mentions sister Tazewell, and brothers Robert who died in 1775 (Fh510), Thomas (Fh700), John (Fh390) and Archibald (Fh050). (979) (Also see source 398 & 118)

1R  513.
Robert Markham 1795-1876/1/w m1821 Sarah Hobson--His father was Leneaus #463


a
Dr. Lenaeus 1822-1893/m      Amanda Harris      


a
Sarah Pocahontas 1825-1858/Rev. William C. Meredith (1823-1875)



2/w Mary  A. E. Watkins (1811-1840)



3/w Frances P. Brackett (bc1810-d>1850)


a
Robert bc1846



a
Susan Peyton 1851-dc1911/m1879 1/h Henry Legare Cobbs, 2/h Richard Dowdy


a
Children per Source #333

1R
Fh513 
Robert Bolling was the son of Linnaeus (Fh463) and Mary (Markham) Bolling who married 1793. Robert Bolling had 5 sons and one daughter who now is Mrs. L.H. Randolph of Nelson County, Virginia. (909) I would either delete or qualify the information provided by Source #909.  Mrs. L.H. Randolph was NOT a daughter of Robert Bolling. She was Louisa “Lou” Hubard, daughter of Robert T. Hubard (Robert Bolling's cousin) and Susan Bolling (Robert Bolling's sister -- see R Fh463).  Louisa Hubard married L. C. Randolph, M.D. (1378) See children in Family record. (333) Daughter Susan's full name was Susan Peyton Bolling. She was born in 1851, not 1848. This is supported by numerous censuses and marriage records. Susan was married twice, and on both marriage registers she claimed "Frances" as her mom. Son Robert seems to have been born ca. 1846, not 1850, at least according to the 1850-1870 censuses. "Frances" was probably his mother as well. Frances' first and last appearance -at least in the household of Robert M. Bolling -- is in the 1850 census. Our guess is that she died either giving birth to Susan or shortly thereafter. (1378) Thanks to an alert Brackett family researcher (Shirley Adair), an enduring mystery pertaining to the Bolling family of Buckingham County, Virginia may have been cleared up. (1378) Robert Markham Bolling (1795-1876), son of Lenaeus Bolling and Mary Markham, grandson of Col. Robert Bolling and Susan Watson, was reputed to have been married three times: to Sarah Hobson of Cumberland Co.; to Mary Watkins of Powhatan Co., and finally to Martha (sic) Brackett of Cumberland Co. Children by the first wife were Pocahontas Bolling Meredith and Dr. Lenaeus Bolling; children by the third wife were Robert, Jr. and Susan Peyton Bolling. (1378) A mystery has centered on the 1850 census, which enumerates a 40-year-old woman named Frances living with Robert Bolling along with a 4-year-old boy named Robert. In 1851 Susan Peyton Bolling (my wife's gggrandmother) would be born and Frances would disappear altogether, only to reappear in her daughter's 1879 and 1890 marriage registers as "Frances P. Bolling." A working hypothesis of researchers has been that Robert married a fourth time in the early 1840s to someone named Frances. The search for Frances' identity has been ongoing for years. (1378) It now appears, however, that an erroneous identification of Robert M. Bolling's third wife might have been created by or given to Wyndham Robertson for publication in “Pocahontas and her Descendants” in 1887. The lady in question seems not to have been Martha Brackett, but her sister, Frances. (1378) The volume “Historical Genealogy of the Woodsons and their Connections” compiled by Henry Morton Woodson and published by the author in 1915 has the following passages on page 311: "Martha Brackett, born in Cumberland County, Virginia, was married to Rev. _____ Chesley, a Presbyterian minister, and lived awhile in Fluvanna County, but her health was so poor that they moved to Buckingham County to be near her sister, Frances.  Here she died about 1843. Her husband went to Iowa and died there before 1850."  [Note: Rev. Chesley's given name was George.] "Frances Brackett, born and raised in Cumberland County, Virginia, was married to Robert Bolling. They settled in Buckingham county where they spent the rest of their lives." According to the author, this information was based on a letter written by a nephew of the Brackett sisters to his brother in 1850, after traveling to Virginia from Texas to visit with Brackett relatives and chronicle the family history. (1378) Unless this identification of Frances Brackett Bolling as the wife of Robert M. Bolling is incorrect, or is NOT news to researchers interested in the Bollings of Buckingham County, Virginia, it would appear that an error has gone unchallenged and uncorrected (except in the possibly unnoticed Woodson volume) for at least 113 years (since the original publication of the Wyndham Robertson book). (1378) Bolling Cemetery on the "Chellowe" Plantation, Dillwyn, Buckingham County, Virginia has on the south side "To the Memory of Col. Robert Bolling and to Susanna, his wife. Powhatan Bolling, Esq. (511c), Pocahontas Cabell (511a) and Edward Bolling (511f)".  Others in the cemetery are Lenaeus Bolling (Fh463) and his wife Mary, Anne Bolling, Jane Bolling, Mary Cobbs (463a) and Bolling Cobbs (probably son of 463a).  Also there James T. Hubbard M.D. and Susannah his wife who died 1829, age 45. Also there John Eppes Bolling 1810-1810 son of Phillip A. and Mary M.  Bolling (463c).  Also Pocahontas Bolling (1825-1858) (513b) wife of Rev. William C. Meredith and daughter of Robert and Sarah (Hobson) Bolling (Fh513) and her son Robert Bolling Meredith. (315) Sarah Pocahontas Bolling, wife of Rev. William C. Meredith, was the daughter of Robert Bolling, Esq. (Fh513), of Buckingham County, Virginia. She died 1858, age 34 years, at her uncle P.A. Bolling, Esq. (Fh4675) home in Farmville, Virginia. (1718) The College of Hampden Sidney Dictionary of Biography 1776-1825 gives Robert Markham Bolling's year of death as 1876. (1378)

1W 520.
Robert 1751-1791/1/w m1772 Frances "Franky" Green (d1773)--His father was Alexander #10


ab
John 1773-17?? probably 1774, might be 1817


  b
Stith 1773-1817



2/w m1779 Widow Clara (Yates) Bland


ab
Elizabeth Yates d<1790


 *
Robert Jr. b<1789-d>1855


 *
Susanna P. 1783-1855/m1801 Samuel Gilliam


*
Named in their father's 1790 will.


a
Children per "Cocke and Cousins"


b
Childred per Source #1106

1W  
Fh520  
Robert Bolling was born 1751 O.S. (old style) in Virginia the second child of Alexander and Susanna (Bolling) Bolling.  He married first 1772 Francis "Franky" Green.  They had a son John 1773-1817.  Francis died 1773 five days after giving birth.  Robert Bolling married second 1779 Widow Clara Bland.  They had a daughter Elizabeth Yates. (61)(62)(368)  Robert Bolling, son of Alexander and Susannah Bolling, was born and baptized 1751.  This per the Bristol Parish Register, Virginia. This would be in Henrico or Prince George Counties, Virginia.  (7)(110)(112)(224) Robert Bolling married Clara Bland 1779 Amelia County, Virginia. (231)(970) Robert Bolling married Miss Clara Bland, 1770, in Amelia County, Virginia, Surety John F. Peachey. (1270) Robert Bolling was born 1751 (old style), the son of Alexander and Susanna (-----) Bolling.  Robert Bolling married 1772 Franky Green who died 1773 five days after the birth of their son John Bolling.  Robert Bolling married December 18, 1779 widow Clara Bland.  They had daughter Elizabeth Yates.  (258)  Robert Bolling was recommended as a 1st Lt.  in 1777.  He served in the Revolutionary War as a 1st Lt. in the Navy of Virginia.  Robert Bolling married Clara -----1780 Amelia County, Virginia (now Nottoway County).  They had children: Robert Jr.  and Susan who married Samuel Gilliam.  Robert Sr.  died about 1790 in Dinwiddie County, Virginia leaving his children infants in the care of their mother.  He had a will dated 1789 witnessed by Alexander Bolling and a 1790 codicil witnessed by Alexander and Stith Bolling.  The children in 1850 in Brunswick County, Virginia applied for a pension R.19363 for their father's military service. (91)(658) Robert Bolling was a taxpayer 1782 in Dinwiddie County, Virginia. (347) Susanna Bolling was a daughter of Robert and Clara (Yates) Bolling.  She was born in Amelia County, Virginia, and she married Samuel Gilliam. (362)  On 16 October 1776 a warrant was issued to Robert Bolling for two pounds, six shillings and three pence for necessaries furnished the schooner Flat, "Peace and Plenty".  Robert Bolling Sr. at the commencement of the Revolution went into the Navy of the U.S.  in the year 1776 as a Lt. and shortly afterwards was promoted to 1st Lt.  Robert Bolling remained in the Navy until the end of the war.  "Allowed for the war as a Lt" and that no paper in the case indicates in any manner the Robert Bolling was a Lt in the Continental Line, but on the contrary, the evidence expressly proves as filed, that he was in the Navy.  Abstract of will of Robert Bolling of Dinwiddie County.  "I desire that two lots of land lying at Broadway, Prince George County, and five acres of land adjoining that to Theoderick Bland and William Gilliam be sold; my wife Clara Bolling; my children; my son Robert and my daughter Susanna".  He appointed his wife as sole Extrx.  Signed 7 September 1789. Witnesses, Susanna Meritor, Alexander Bolling and Robert Walker, Jr.  In a codicil he gave further directions as to the sale of land for the benefit of his son Robert.  This was signed 10 November 1790, in the presence of Robert Bolling, Jr, Alexander Bolling and Stith Bolling.  The will was recorded at Dinwiddie County court house 21 February 1791.  The Extx. was granted certificate of administration, her securities Alexander Bolling and Richard Pryor. (552) Robert Bolling was on the 1787 tax list of Prince George County, Virginia, with 24 slaves, 8 horses, and 13 head of cattle. (551) Robert Bolling was on the 1787 tax list of Petersburg, Dinwiddie County, Virginia, with 18 slaves, 8 horses, and 9 head of cattle. (551) Robert Bolling was a Lieutenant in the Virginia State Navy.  He was appointed as a Lt. aboard the "Manley" galley.  He was the son of John (sic) Bolling Senior of "Mitchell's", Prince George County, Virginia.  Robert Bolling of Dinwiddie County, Virginia, died 10 November 1790.  He left widow Clard (Yates) Bolling and two issue:  Robert Bolling Jr. who lived in Brunswick County, Virginia, in 1855 and Susanna wife of ----- Gilliam who lived in Dinwiddie County, Virginia.  (933)  Robert Bolling, prior to Oct 16, 1776, was commander of the vessel “Peace and Plenty”.  He married Mrs. Clara (Yates) Bland.  Robert Bolling of Dinwiddie had a will proved 24 Feb 1791.  He named his wife Clara and two children: Robert and Susanna. (1118) Robert Bolling had a Dinwiddie County, Virginia, will 1789, proved 1791. Names wife Clara. Children Robert and Susanna. Witnesses: Alexander and Stith Bolling. Also mentions   

“Susanna Gilliam formerly Susanna Bolling”. (2064, page 26)

1W 525.
Robert (See Robert Fh520)

1R 540.
Robert 1776-<1805/m1800 Jane S. Payne (d1806)--His father was John W. #390



1. Daughter



2. Daughter

1R  
Fh540  Robert Bolling was born 1776 in Virginia, the son of John William and Mary (Jefferson) Bolling. (30)  He married Jane Payne and had at least two daughters. (?)  Robert Bolling was one of the 11 children of John and Mary (Jefferson) Bolling.  His father John was of "Chestnut Hill".  Robert Bolling married Jane Payne.  They had two daughters.  Robert Bolling died and his wife Jane S. married 1805 James B. Ferguson. (208) (7)  Robert Bolling was born about 1776, "Chestnut Grove", Goochland County, Virginia, the son of John and Mary (Jefferson) Bolling.  He married 1800 Jane Payne. (204)  Robert Bolling married Jane Payne.  (313)(369)(710) Robert Bolling married Jane Payne 1800 in Goochland County, Virginia. (30)

1W 552.
Robert 1781-<1829/m1805 Lucy Bass b1781--His father was Stith #660


ab
Charlotte b1807--never married


ab
John Stith 1808-1888/m1830 Mary Thomas Irby


ab
Robert bc1810/1/w m1829 Mary A. E. Stokes & 2/w m1868 Pattie P. Mann


 b
Pocahontus 


 b
Virginia  


 b
Henry  


 b
Thomas 


 b
Martha 


 b
child 9 infant


 b
child 10 infant 


a
Childred per Source #1106


b
Childred per Source #1216

1W
Fh552
Robert Bolling was born 1781.  He married 1805 Lucy Bass.  There is some doubt whether the Robert Bolling who married Lucy Bass was the son of Stith and Charlotte (Edmonds) Bolling (Fh660).  The meager evidence seems to favor that hypothesis; and it seems reasonably certain that he was a son of one or the other of the brothers Stith, Robert, John and Alexander Bolling, sons of Alexander and Susanna (Bolling) Bolling (Fh010).  Robert and Lucy (Bass) Bolling had children: Charlotte born 1807 who never married; Robert born about 1810 who married first 1829 Mary A. E. Stokes in Lunenburg County, Virginia (consent to his marriage was given by Armistead Bruce, his guardian?), and who married second 1868 Pattie P. Mann (he was listed as a 57 year old widower from Nottoway County, Virginia)(62)(368)(675); and John Stith 1808-1888 who married 1830 Mary Thomas Irby. (368)(675)  Robert Bolling married Lucy Bass and they had a son John Stith Bolling who was born 1808.  (892)

1W
502e
Robert Buckner Bolling of "Center Hill", Petersburg, probably Dinwiddie County, Virginia married Sarah Minge. (36) Robert Buckner Bolling of Petersburg, Virginia, born there 1820, died there, graduated Princeton College and prominent lawyer married 1831 Mrs. Sarah (Minge) Melville, only daughter of John and Sarah S. Minge of "Sandy Point", Charles County, Virginia.  (174)

1W
520c
Robert Bolling was the son of Robert Bolling, Sr (Fh520).  Robert Bolling was of Brunswick County, Virginia, when he requested in 1850 a warrant due for "the Military services of my father in the Revolutionary War".  In 1856 there was more legal efforts on the warrant but in Richmond, Virginia.  (552)  Robert Bolling was the son of Robert Bolling (Fh520) who died in 1790.  Robert Bolling Jr. (520c) lived in Brunswick County, Virginia, in 1855. (933)

1W
660c
Robert Bolling was named in a 1797 will of Stith Bolling in Nottoway County, Virginia. (30)  Robert Bolling was in the 1810 Census of Nottoway County, Virginia. (349)  Robert Bolling was in the 1820 Census of Nottoway County, Virginia, on page 53A.  (348)

ROLFE 

1R
380o
Rolfe Bolling was born 1744 in Dinwiddie County, Virginia, to John and Elizabeth (Blair) Bolling. (30) Rolfe Bolling born 1744.  His father was Major John Bolling.  All were descendants of Pocahonas. (45)(64)

1W 625.
Samuel Pryor bc1785-d<1837/m1807 Nancy Willis Elliott--His father was Alexander #011 or perhaps 
John #390


a
Richard Elliott bc1816-1876--never married


a
Henrietta "Belle"/1/h Dr. Field, 2/h Thomas Thweatt Jones


a
Mildred M. Maclin (?) b1815-d<1870/m1833 Dr. William B. Smith


a
John Alexander (1808-1900)/m1828 1/w Lucy Burwell Turnbull Randolph m1859 2/w Harriet E. 



McDowell



Samuel P. Payne(?) 1819-1840, died in Va.


a
Children per source #1695

1W  
Fh625  
Samuel Pryor Bolling was born about 1782 to Alexander and Mary (Pryor) Bolling (Fh011). Samuel Pryor Bolling married Nancy Willis Elliott.  (885) Samuel Bolling (Fh625) was born about 1785 in Virginia. (366) The Samuel Bolling (Fh625) who married Nancy Elliott is the son of Alexander Bolling (Fh011).  (885)  Samuel Bolling married 1807 Burnswick County, Virginia, Nancy Willis Elliott. (7)(756)(1213)  She was the daughter of John Elliott.  (7) Samuel Pryor Bolling married  Nancy Willis Elliot on 12 Aug 1807 in Virginia. Children were: John Alexander Bolling, Richard Elliot Bolling, Harriet Bolling, and Mildred Bolling. (1695) Samuel P. Bolling attended the College of William and Mary, 1804. (1439) Samuel P. Bolling was in the 1810 Census of Dinwiddie County, Virginia. (349)

Samuel Bolling of Brunswick County, Virginia married Nancy Elliott who was born 1794.  They had children: Henriette "Belle" who married Doctor Field, and John of Petersburg who had several children.  (114) Samuel Bolling was born about 1785 in Virginia. (366) Samuel Bolling married about 1810 Nancy Elliott in Brunswick County, Virginia.  They had children: Richard E., Henrietta who married Dr. -----Field, Mildred M. (perhaps M.  for Maclin) born 1815 in Brunswick County, Virginia, she married about 1834 Dr. William B.  Smith.  She died before 1870 in Texas, John A. who was married to ----- -----, and Samuel P. born 1819 and died 1840 in Virginia.  Children Richard, Mildred, and John were ages 20-30 in the 1840 Census of Warren County, Mississippi. Samuel Bolling died prior to 1837.  (366) Mildred M. Bolling married 1833 William Smith in Brunswick County, Virginia. Mildred was married with the consent of Ann Bolling. (756) After Samuel and Nancy (called Ann) were married they went to live on Bolling Hill in Dinwiddie County, Virginia, on the North side of Notoway River. Samuel Pryor Bolling died Aug 1833 in Dinwiddie County, Virginia. Samuel's will was probated Aug 12, 1833. (1695) Things that don't seem right. Samuel Bolling was the son of John Bolling III (Fh390), of "Chestnut Grove" (1737-179?) and his wife Martha (sic) Jefferson, a sister of Thomas Jefferson. (366) Samuel Bolling was son of John Bolling III (Fh390) who married Martha (sic) Jefferson.  Samuel moved from Virginia to South Carolina in the late 1700s or early 1800. (979) I don't believe Samuel belongs in this family. (i.e. John Bolling III who married Martha (sic) Jefferson). (886)

STITH
1W 650.
Stith 1686-1727/ m1714 Mrs. Elizabeth (Rogers) Hartwell--His father was Robert #480


*
Stith bc1719-d>1727-d<1734


*abc
Alexander 1721-1761/6/m1745/7 Susannah Bolling--See Family Group #10


*abc
John b<1727-w1744


*a
Robert d>1727-d<1734



might be his sisters

    b
Jane d>1734


    bc
Ann d>1744/m<1744 John Edloe


*
Mentioned in their father's will (also two un-named sisters, probaby Jane and Ann) proved 16 


Aug 1727, Surry County, Virginia.


a
Childred per Source #1106


b
Mentioned in their step-fathers, Henry Browne's, 1734 will.  


c
Named in brother John’s 1744 will.

1W  
Fh650  
Stith Bolling was born 1686. (62)(368)(320)(392)(929) Stith Bolling was born in Charles City County, Virginia. (?) Stith Bolling was the son of Robert Bolling (Fh480) and Anne (Stith) Bolling.  (62)(320) Stith Bolling was the son of Col.  Robert Bolling by his second marriage in 1681 to Anne Stith.  (392) Stith Bolling married 1716 Mrs.  Elizabeth (Rogers) Hartwell, the widow of John Hartwell. (62)  Stith Bolling married Elizabeth Hartwell (a widow) who husband died in 1714. (62) Stith Bolling probably of Surry County, Virginia married Mrs.  Elizabeth (Rogers) Hartwell. (36) Stith Bolling married 1714 Elizabeth Hartwell.  (320) Stith Bolling married after 1714 Mrs. Elizabeth Hartwell, widow of John Hartwell, whose will was proved in Surry County, Virginia, in 1714. (368) Stith Bolling married Elizabeth Hartwell, widow of John Hartwell.  (392)(970)  They had the following children:

    
a.  Jane (36)(320)  Daughter mentioned in father's 1727 will.  (811) Alive in 1734 when mentioned in step-father’s will. (1414) 

    
b.  Ann (36)(320) Daughter mentioned in father's 1727 will.  (811) Alive in 1734 when mentioned in step-father’s will. (1414)


c.  Alexander (Fh010)(36)(41)  The second child of Stith and Elizabeth (Hartwell) Bolling was Alexander who was born 1721 and married 1745 Susanna Bolling, his first cousin.  (61)(62) Stith Bolling and Elizabeth Ann (Meriwither) Bolling (sic) had a male child Alexander Bolling born 1721 in Culpeper County, Virginia.  (30) Alexander (Fh010) born 1721 who married Susannah Bowling his 1st cousin (320) Alexander Bolling born 1721, who married 1747, his first cousin Susanna Bolling. (392)  Alexander died after father's 1727 will. (675)(811)(62)(970) Alive in 1734 when mentioned in step-father’s will. (1414)


d.  John Bolling (36)(41)(320)(368) John died after father's 1727 will. (675)(811)(62)(970) Alive in 1734 when mentioned in step-father’s will. (1414)


e.  Robert (320)(368) Robert died after father's 1727 will.  (675)(811)(62)(970)


f.  Stith Jr.(320)(368) Stith died after father's 1727 will.  (675)(811)(62)(970)

Stith Bolling was a Justice of the Peace 1714 in Prince George County, Virginia.  (38)(7)  Stith Bolling of Surry County, Virginia was involved in a 1717 Prince George County, Virginia land transaction where he surveyed 165 acres from Robert Bolling.  (7) Stith Bolling was Sheriff 1717 in Surry County, Virginia.  (752)  Stith Bolling of Surry County, Virginia was involved in a 1722 land transaction in Prince George County, Virginia.  (41)(725)  "Mitchell" was originally 300 acres on the south side of the Appromattox River bounded on the east by Cawson's Field Creek and bounded on the west upon a great Creek (Citie Creek or Bull Hill Creek on the western edge of Hopewell).  The eastern 100 acres in 1723 was deeded to Stith Bolling from Robert Mitchell and his sons Robert Mitchell Jr. and Henry Mitchell.  (929)  Stith and Elizabeth Bolling were the administrators of the 1725 estate of John Hartwell in Surry County, Virginia.  (7) Stith Bolling was a Justice of the Peace 1726 in Surry County, Virginia.  (752)(38) Stith Bolling had a will dated 1727 in Surry County, Virginia. (35)(970) Stith Bowling/Bolling died 1727.  (320)(392)(65) Stith died in Prince George County, Virginia.  (65) Stith Bolling's will was probated in Prince George County, Virginia, August 16, 1727.  (62)(675) Stith Bolling's will was proved in Surry County, Virginia, August 16, 1727. (811) Stith Bolling died prior to when Elizabeth Bolling remarried in 1727.  (36) Stith Bolling's wife Elizabeth then married Henry Browne.  (811) Stith's widow Elizabeth married third Henry Browne. (970) Henry Browne's will dated 23 Sept 1734 (Surry Co., VA Wills and Administrations, 1671-1750) states that his wife, Elizabeth, was the widow of Stith Bolling. He names her children: Jane, Ann, Alexander, John. (1414) Browne researchers say that her maiden name was Rogers. (1414) The will of Stith Bolling (Fh650,W), of Surry County; not dated; but probated Surry County Court, Virginia, August 16, 1727, names sons Stith Bolling (650a), Alexander Bolling (650b,Fh010), John Bolling (650c) and Robert Bolling (650d); makes provision for two daughters ( though does not give their names); wife Elizabeth Bolling and brother Robert Bolling (Fh490,Fh495), executors (Surry County records, Wills and Deeds 1715-30,  page 75I). (1494) Mortgage Deed dated the 7th day of November,1734, from Drury Stith of Brunswick County to Robert Bolling (Fh490 or Fh495) of Prince George County, for 86 pounds,4 shillings and 3 pence, secured by 6 Negroes. Witnessed by Stephen Dewey, George Walton, and Moses Dunkley. Presented in Court on November 7,1734. (Deeds and Wills Book 1,page 132). Mortgage Deed dated the 7th day of November,1734 from Drury Stith to Robert Bolling (Fh490 or Fh495), Administrator of the Estate of Drury Bolling (Fh650), late of the County of Prince George, dec'd., for 38 pounds,11 shillings,9 pence and half penny, secured by 3 Negroes. Witnessed by Stephen Dewey, George Walton, and Moses Dunkley. Presented in Court on November 7,1734. (Deeds and Wills Book 1, page 133). (1414) Henry Browne of Southwark Parish, Surry County, Virginia, Will.  Dated 23 September 1734.  Recorded  19th February 1734.  William Browne, Jr., Executor.  Wife:  Elizabeth.  Son:  Henry.  Daughters:  Jane, Elizabeth, and Ann Browne.  Child in esse.  Brother:  William.  Brother: Henry Edloe.  Sister:  Ann Browne. Wife's children [Elizabeth Bolling]:

Jane Bolling

Ann Bolling

Alexander Bolling

John Bolling

Mentions land in Brunswick County; wife to pay legacies due from Stith Bolling's (Fh650) Estate; Witnesses:  Henry Eelbeck, Christopher Clinch, Charles White, and Richard Cocke. (1527)(1552) It appears to me that the Elizabeth Clinch mentioned above was the mother of a John Bolling and that she might be the same person as this Elizabeth [Hartwell?] Bolling Brown who remarried Henry Browne after Stith Bolling died.  It appears she was married about three times.  One time to Stith Bolling father of a John who was underaged in 1742 therefore born bef. abt. 1722. (1527)  
1W 650x
Alexander Bolling who was born prior to 1707. Alexander and John Bolling, sons of Stith Bolling (Fh650, 1W), of Surry County, Virginia were involved in a 1728 land transaction in Brunswick County, Virginia. (41)(725) Alexander Bolling was involved in a 1730 land transaction in Surry County, Virginia. (41)(264) If Alexander Bolling (Fh010) were born 1721 as most records suggest then he would have been too young to be involved in land transactions in 1729 or 1730. Colonial laws were very strict on the buying or selling of real estate to or from children. (7) Alexander Bolling had a land patent 28 Sept 1730, 250 acres on the north side of Nottaway River. Beginning and extending on the north west side of Cross Branch a corner of Captain Robert Wynns land, Virginia. (1315)(1453)(1475)

1W
650d
Robert Bolling was alive when his father's will (Stith Bolling, Fh650) was probated August 16, 1727, in Prince George County, Virginia. (675) The will of Stith Bolling (Fh650,W), of Surry County; not dated; but probated Surry County Court, Virginia, August 16, 1727, names sons Stith Bolling (650a), Alexander Bolling (650b,Fh010), John Bolling (650c) and Robert Bolling (650d); makes provision for two daughters ( though does not give their names); wife Elizabeth Bolling and brother Robert Bolling (Fh490,Fh495), executors (Surry County records, Wills and Deeds 1715-30,  page 75I). (1494) Surry County Virginia Deed Apr. 1734:  John Mitchell and wife, Katherine Mitchell to Israel Pickins...300 acres in two tracts on the north side of Notoway River.  One tract of 200 acres is part of a tract of 440 acres granted said John Mitchell on 5 Sept. 1733 and is bounded by Maj. Robert Bolling (650d?), Lewis Green, Isaac Hall, Deceased, Briery Marsh Bridge and John Spain, Jr.  The other 100 acres is bounded by the river and Isaac Hall.  Wit:  Thomas Avent and Thomas Eldridge. (1527)(1551) 

1W 660.
Stith 1753-1797/m1776 Charolotte Edmunds--His father was Alexander #10,


Source #1088 has father as Robert Fh520 


 b*  d
Edmund b>1776-d>1811-<1817


ab*cd
Rebecca Browne 1778-1835/m1794 Melchijah Edmunds Spragins 1774-1812


ab*cd
Robert 1781-1823/m1805 Lucy Bass--See Family Group #552


 b*   d
Stith b>1776-d1821/m1805 Elizabeth Perkinson--See Family Group #661


 b*   d
Thomas b>1776-d>1821d<1831/m1811 Elizabeth Williams


a    c
Alexander


*
Children in father's 1797 will, 4 sons were not of age, daughter was married.


a
Children per "Cocke and Cousins"


b
Children in mother's 1806 will


c
Childred per Source #1106


d
Childred per Source #1719
1W  
Fh660 
Stith Bolling who in 1776 married Charlotte Edmunds was the third child of Alexander and Susannah (Bolling) Bolling, born 1753 new style.  Stith and Charlotte's only daughter was Rebecca B. who married Melchijah Spragins.  (61)(62)(293)(368) They had sons: Alexander and Robert who was born 1781 and married 1805 Lucy Bass. (368)  Stith Bolling married Charlotte Edmunds 1776 in Sussex County, Virginia. (34)(1213)  Stith Bolling 1778 took oath as Vestrymen of Nottoway Parish, Virginia. (22)(717)  Stith Bolling had will dated 1797 in Nottoway County, Virginia.  In it were named Edmund, Rebecca, Robert, Stith and Thomas Bolling. (30)(35) Stith Bolling married Charlotte Edmunds 1776 Sussex County, Virginia.  She was the daughter of John Edmunds, deceased. (7)  Stith Bolling was born 1753.  He performed Patriotic Service during the Revolutionary War in Virginia.  He married Charlotte Edmunds.  Stith Bolling died 1797. (198)  Stith Bolling was born 1753 the son of Alexander and Susannah (-----) Bolling.  Stith married 1776 Charlotte Edmunds.  They had daughter Rebecca B. Bolling born 1778 who married Melchijah Spragins.  Stith and Charlotte Bolling had a son Alexander. (258) Stith Bolling was a census taker 1782 in Amelia County, Virginia. (43) They had a daughter Rebecca Brown Bolling who was born 1778 in that part of Amelia County, Virginia which became Nottoway County, Virginia in 1788. (293)  Stith Bolling of Prince George County, Virginia, conveyed to William Pope Buse of Amelia County, Virginia, 131 acres of land in Amelia County, Virginia, by deed 1782. (386)  Stith Bolling was born 1753 to Alexander and Susanna Bolling.  Stith Bolling married 1776 Charlotte Edmunds.  They had a daughter Rebecca B. Bolling born 1778 in Nottoway County, Virginia, who married 1794, Melchijah Edmunds. (392)  Rebecca B. Bolling married 1794 Melcijah Spragins in Nottoway County, Virginia. (400) Son Thomas Bolling married 1811 Elizabeth Williams in Lunenburg County, Virginia. (62)(400)(1213)  Stith Bolling was on the 1787 census of Amelia County, Virginia, with 35 slaves, 13 horses, and 46 head of cattle. (551)  The will of Stith Bolling was written 1797, proved 1797, and is in Will Book #1, page 271 of Nottoway County, Virginia. (7)  Stith Bolling in 1778 was ordered to provide necessaries for Lucy Fergusson and Betty Ware whose husbands were soldiers on service in the Continental Army.  (717) Stith Bolling was born 11 May 1753. Stith Bolling married 8 Oct 1776 in Sussex County, Virginia, Charlotte Edmunds. Stith Bolling was dead by 7 Sept 1797 in Nottoway County, Virginia. (1719)

1W   
660a   
Edmund Bolling was named in a 1797 will of Stith Bolling in Nottoway County, Virginia. (30) Edmund Bolling was in the 1810 Census of Charlotte County, Virginia. (349)

1W 661.
Stith d1821/m1805 Elizabeth Perkinson or Parkinson (She remarried 1822 Micajah Mason)-His father 
was Stith #660.



Thomas E. bc1811



Sarah Elizabeth bc1815

1W  
Fh661 
Stith Bolling was the son of Stith Bolling Sr. (Fh660).  He married 1805 Elizabeth Perkinson.  They had children: Thomas E. born about 1811 and Sarah Elizabeth born about 1815. (?) Stith  Bolling was in the 1810 Census of Nottoway County, Virginia. (349) Stith Bolling married 1805 Eliza Perkinson in Prince Edward County, Virginia. (1213)  Stith Bolling married Eliza Parkinson, daughter of John Parkinson who consented, 1805 in Prince Edwards County, Virginia. (949)  Stith Bolling was the son of Stith and Charlotte (Edmunds) Bolling. He married 1805, Elizabeth Perkinson.  They had two children: Thomas E. and Sarah Elizabeth.  They moved with his brother Thomas in about 1821 to Madison County, Alabama.  Stith Bolling died there in 1821. (293) After Stith’s death his widow Elizabeth (Perkinson or Parkinson) Bolling married Micajah Mason. (698)  Recently I came across a record in Valley Leaves by Helen McKnight, my first cousin, once removed, regarding Stith Bolling (Fh661) who moved to Madison County, Alabama before his death in 1821(?).  Madison County, Alabama is where my Alexander (Fh025) moved in 1811 from Lincoln County, Tennessee.  Stith had a brother Thomas, 660e, who according to Helen's reprint of court documents was the executor of Stith's estate and was sued by Macajah Mason and Eliza, his wife, in Madison County, Alabama 12/22/1827.  In a court document of April 1831 (The court record is Madison County, Alabama Circuit Court in Chancery, Book E, pages 442-446, Micajah Mason and Eliza his wife vs Thomas Bolling, admr, estate of Stith Bolling dec'd.  Original bill filed 12/22/1827 requesting settlement of estate.), "the death of said Thomas Bolling having been suggested, the judgement is maintained".  Thus indicating that this Thomas Bolling is deceased by 1831.  So, is this the same Thomas of Haywood County, Tennessee, who died by 1831 and was a non-resident? It appears he (Thomas Bowling, brother to Stith Fh661) died in Limestone or Madison County, Alabama between 1828-1831. (698) Probate Minutes of Madison County, Alabama, December 7, 1821, page 13. Stith Bolling (Fh661) died without will.  Thomas Bollin applies for letters of administration, with widow having relinquished her rights.  Securities Stith Spraggins, Michijah Spraggins (would be his brother-in-law). Appraisers:  Charles Betts, John Clark, John B. Bruce, James Bibb, James Fitzhugh (1532) Stith Bolling married, in Prince Edward County, Virginia, 20 Nov 1805, Eliza Perkinson. Stith Bolling was dead by 7 December 1821, in Madison County, Alabama. (1719)

1W  
650a  
Stith Bolling was alive when his father's will was probated August 16, 1727, in Prince George County, Virginia.  (675) The will of Stith Bolling (Fh650,W), of Surry County; not dated; but probated Surry County Court, Virginia, August 16, 1727, names sons Stith Bolling (650a), Alexander Bolling (650b,Fh010), John Bolling (650c) and Robert Bolling (650d); makes provision for two daughters (though does not give their names); wife Elizabeth Bolling and brother Robert Bolling (Fh490,Fh495), executors (Surry County records, Wills and Deeds 1715-30,  page 75I). (1494) Surry County, Virginia, Deed, 10 April 1744...Theodorick Bland, Gent. of Prince George County and his wife, Frances [Bolling?] Bland, to Edward Broadnax, Gent. of Charles City Co., for 125 pounds current money...600 acres bounded by James Munford, and the land of Stith Bolling (650a) near a place called "Stoney Creek." (1527)(1551) There is a town called Stoney Creek in Virginia today. There is a Bolling Swamp near by. (1527)

1R 700.
Thomas 1735-1804/m1755 Elizabeth "Betty" Gay 1738-1813--His father was John #380,370b

Her mother was Elizabeth Bolling 370c. So his father and her mother were brother and sister.



abcd
Elizabeth 1758-1830/m1775 William Robertson (1750-1829)



Nancy b1760/William Manlove-Nancy not in most lists


  bcd
John 1761-1782/3-deaf mute-unmarried


abcd
Rebecca 1763-1826/m1779 William Murray


abcd
Mary "Polly" 1765-1826-never married, deaf mute


abcd
Thomas 1766-1836-never married, deaf mute--died at "Gaymont"


  bc
William Gay 1769-1771


    c
Archibald Blair died before 1796-not on some lists


  bc
Susanna 1771-1773


  bc
Sarah 1772-1773 twin


  bc
Ann 1772-1773 twin


abcd
William 1777-1845/8/9/m1798 Mary Randolph--See Family Group #800--First of "Cobbs" and 



later "Bolling Hall"


a
Children per source #253


b
Children per source #393


c
Children per source #1106


d
Children per source #1225

1R  
Fh700  
Thomas Bolling was born 1735. (1)(7)(30)(62)(64)(75)(219)(255)(320)(393) Thomas Bolling had 3 brothers and 1 sister but 3 would died within a year and the 4th in 1749.  He was the eldest of 5 brothers and 3 sisters who survived their father when he died in 1757.  His parents were John and Elizabeth (Blair) Bolling. (393)  Thomas Bolling was born in 1739.  (45) Major Thomas Bolling of "Cobbs" was born at "Varina", Virginia.  (255) Thomas Bolling was born at "Varina". (75) Thomas Bolling was born in Dinwiddie County, Virginia. (30) Thomas Bolling was the son of John and Elizabeth (Blair) Bolling. (7)(30)(64)(219) Thomas Bowling was son of John (Fh380) and Elizabeth (Blair) Bowling.  (320) Thomas Bolling married Elizabeth Gay. (45)(64)(219)  Thomas Bolling of "Cobbs" married Elizabeth Gay.  (62) Thomas Bolling married his first cousin 1757 Elizabeth Gay.  (393) Thomas Bowling married Elizabeth Gay his 1st cousin the daughter of Dr.  William and Elizabeth (Bowling) Gay.  (320) Elizabeth Gay was Thomas Bolling's his cousin. (219) Thomas Bolling and his wife were 1st cousins. (393) Elizabeth Gay was the daughter of William and Elizabeth (Bolling, 370c) Gay. (219) Thomas Bolling of "Cobbs" married Elizabeth "Betty" Gay the daughter of William and Elizabeth (Bolling, 370c) Gay.  Elizabeth (Bolling) Gay had a 1766 will, Chesterfield County, Virginia, that named her daughter Elizabeth "Betty" (Gay) Bolling and son- in-law Thomas Bolling of "Cobbs".  (62) Thomas Bolling married 1761 Elizabeth "Betty" Gay, St.  James Northan Parish.  (970) Thomas Bolling lived with his father until John's death in 1757, except when he studied law at Williamsburg.  Thomas married his cousin, Betty Gay, daughter of Dr. Gay. (75) Thomas Bowling married Elizabeth Gay, the daughter of Dr.  William and Elizabeth (Bolling) Gay. (219) Elizabeth Gay had a 1764 Will and Codicil, Chesterfield County, Virginia, naming her daughter Elizabeth "Betty" Bolling, son-in-law Thomas Bolling and granddaughter Elizabeth Bolling.  Witnesses were John and Edward Bolling. (263) They had six children.  (219)  Thomas Bolling and Elizabeth (Gay) Bolling five sons.  (64) Thomas Bolling had three deaf children. (93) They had children;


a.  John Bolling (700a) was born 1758. (320) John Bolling was born 1761.  (320)(393) John Bolling was born a deaf-mute. (7) John Bolling was born in Goochland County, Virginia.  (61)(63) John Bolling never married.  (320)(393) John Bolling died 1782. (320) John Bolling died 1783. (320)(393)


b.  Elizabeth Bolling was born 1760.  (320)  Elizabeth Bolling died 1785. (320) Elizabeth Bolling married William Robertson. (320)(362) Elizabeth Bolling was the eldest daughter of Thomas Bolling, of "Cobbs", in Chesterfield County and "Bolling Hall" in Goochland County, Virginia.  Elizabeth Bolling married 1775 William Robertson (1750-1829).  She died 1830.  The couple both were buried at "Cobbs". (7)(365) Daughter Elizabeth was born 17xx and she married William Robertson. (362) Elizabeth Bolling was born 17??.  (362) Elizabeth 1758-1830 who married 1775 William Robertson.  (393)


c.  Rebecca Bolling was born 1763.  (61)(63)(320)(393)(970) Rebecca Bolling was born in Goochland County, Virginia.  (61)(63) Rebecca Bolling married William Murray.  (320)(393) Miss Bolling of Chesterfield County, Virginia, married 1779 Capt.  William Murray. (381) Rebecca Bolling died in 1826. (393)


d.  Mary Bolling was born 1764.  (61)(63)(970) Mary Bolling was born in 1765.  (393) Born deaf-mute.  (7)  Mary Bolling was born in Goochland County, Virginia.  (61)(63) Mary Bolling was unmarried.  (320) Mary Bolling died in 1826.  (393)


e.  Thomas Bolling Jr. (see 700e) was born in 1766. (393) Thomas Bolling was born a deaf-mute.  (7) Thomas Bolling died in 1836. (393)


f.  William Gay Bolling 1769-1771. (393)


g.  Susanna Bolling (Twin) 1771-1773.  (393)


h.  Sarah Bolling (Twin) 1771-1773.  (393)


i.  Ann Bolling (twin) 1772-1773.  (393)

j. William Bolling (see Fh800).  (45)(320)(393) William was born 1777.  (7)(320)(393) William married Mary Randolph. (7)(320)(393) William married 1798. (393) William Bolling had a son William Albert who was born deaf. (93) William Bolling died in 1845.  (7)(393) William died 1849.  (320)


Thomas Bolling and Elizabeth Gay had the following children baptized in the church at St James Parish  Goochland County, Virginia: John, born 1/31/1761,  Rebekah, born 8/19/1763 and  Mary, born 1/27/1765. (135)

***********************

Thomas Bolling attended the College of William and Mary, about 1752. (1439) Thomas Bolling attended William and Mary College and studied law in Williamsburg with Robert Carter Nicholas. (847) Thomas was educated at William and Mary College. (393)  Major Thomas Bolling studied law at Williamsburg, Virginia, under Robert Carter Nicholas.  He established at "Cobbs" the first institution for teaching deaf mutes in the United States.  (255) Thomas Bolling was named an executor in the 1749 will  of his father John Bolling, Gent. (Fh380). (7)(1487)  The will of John Bolling provided Thomas Bolling 3/4 of "Licking Hole Plantation" and "Bolling's Island". (62) Father John Bolling’s (Fh380) 1749 will provided “I Give and devise unto my Son Thomas Bolling and his heirs and afsign (sic, assign) forever all that part of my Land in the County of Goochland called Licking Hole that is above Licking Hole Creek and two acres on the Fork of the said Creek below Alexander Logans be the same more or less which said Two Acres of Land I intended to have bounded by Marked Trees in the presence of several of the Neighbours (sic, neighbors).” The will continues later “And Whereas my said Son Thomas Bolling may Claim a Legacy given by the last Will and Testament of his Aunt the said Anne Whiting deceased to him. I do declare my Will to be that whatsoever I have given and devised to him by this my Will is upon this Condition that he my said Son Thomas do as soon as he comes to Age Release to my Executor and the Executors of the said Anne all his Right and Title to the said Legacy and the Legacys given by her to his Brothers therein mentioned now Dead or any of them and if he shall refuse so to do then I do Subject all my Estate hereby given him with the paiment (sic, payment) of so much Money as he shall be entitled to by Virtue of the Will of the said Whiting to be raised and paid to my Executor towards Discharging to Legacys hereby given to my Daughters.” (1487) Thomas and Elizabeth Bolling began their married life in Goochland County, Virginia.  They lived there until he purchased "Cobbs" from his brother Edward in 1767. (393) Thomas Bolling witnessed a 1769 will in Chesterfield County, Virginia.  (979) Thomas Bolling, of Dale Parish, Chesterfield County, Virginia, in 1771 was grantee to 700 acres of land in Cumberland County, Virginia.  Grantor was Thomas and Jane Randolph of Goochland County, Virginia. (124)(7) Mr.  J.D. Goddard of "Cobbs", one of the old seats of the Bolling Family in Chesterfield County gave the Virginia Historical Society a wine- bottle marked "T.  Bolling, Cobbs, 1772". (708)  Thomas Bolling is listed as Major Bolling, 4 Jan 1777, Chesterfield County, Virginia. (1098)  Thomas Bolling was a taxpayer 1782 with 48 slaves in Goochland County, Virginia. (347) Thomas Bolling is listed as head of household (4 people) 1783 in Chesterfield County, Virginia. (43) Thomas Bolling is on the 1783 Tax list of Chesterfield County, Virginia with one white and 34 slaves.  (7)(365) Thomas Bolling was on the 1787 census of Chesterfield County, Virginia, with 27 slaves, 8 horses, and 7 head of cattle.  Thomas Bolling Esqr "of Chesterfield County, Virginia" was on the 1787 census of Goochland County, Virginia, with 67 slaves, 34 horses, and 152 head of cattle. (551) Thomas Bolling resided 1785 in Chesterfield County, Virginia, according to Order Book 7, page 261. (1190) Thomas Bolling began a diary which began at age 52 on January 1, 1787, and kept until June 14, 1804 only a few weeks before his death. (393) Major Thomas Bolling and Betty, his wife, of Chesterfield County, Virginia, sold land in Goochland County, Virginia, north side of James River, 1790. (1190) Thomas Bolling and family moved  to Richmond City, Virginia in 1795 and returned to "Cobbs" in 1797.  Thomas Jefferson, then Vice President of the United States, visited them at "Cobbs" on May 22, 1800. (393) Thomas Bolling of Chesterfield County, Virginia, sold 113 1/2 acres in Goochland County, Virginia, 1798. (1190) Thomas Bolling, father of William Bolling (Fh800) was surety when William Bolling of Chesterfield County, Virginia, married 1798 Miss Mary Randolph of Henrico County, Virginia. (1190) The Court of Appeals in Virginia, 1801 had a case Fleming vs. Bolling.  It involved the will of Edward Bolling who died in Aug 1770.  Mentions sister ----- Tazewell, and brothers Robert who died in 1775 (Fh510), Thomas (Fh700), John (Fh390) and Archibald (Fh050). (979) Thomas Bolling died at "Cobbs".  (393) A painted portrait of Thomas Bolling 1735-1804 and his wife Elizabeth Gay Bolling 1737-1813 are hung in the "Bolling Room" of the Muscarelle Museum of Art on the campus of the College of William and Mary in Williamsburg, Virginia. (7) Thomas Bolling died in 1764 (sic). (45) Thomas Bolling died in 1804.  (1)(62)(64)(320)(393) Major Thomas Bowling died 1804.  (320) 

1W 710.
Thomas Tabb 1763-1810/m1786 or 1787 Seignoria "Siggy" Peyton--His father was Robert #500


a*b
John Peyton 1788-1861/m1820 Anna Field Gilliam--See Family Group #364


ab
Robert bc1791-1812 died at age 21 unmarried


a*b
Frances Cooke d>1810/m1808 Richard "Everard" Meade


 *b
Rebecca b1792/3->1810, died unmarried


a*b
Yelverton or Volvert Demallett or DeMatthew 1795->1810/m1819 Sophia Sully


a*b
Warner Tabb 1800-1856/mc1820 Harriet E. Smith


a*b
Harriet Elizabeth 1800->1819/m1819 Charles Seager Eggleston


a*b
Thomas Radford or Redford or Readford 1797->1810/m1818 Mary Pleasants Carter--See Family 



Group #711



Martha 1808-1878/Spencer Elcan/Elkin (1802-1836) & William Clemments


a*b
William Smith d>1810/m1823 1/w Pocahontas Ann Robertson d1838 & 2/w Mrs. Mary (Dudley) 


Hill


a*b
Martha Tabb d>1810/1/h m1814 Thomas Tabb & 2/h Col. J.H. Ross or 1/h Spencer Elkin & 2/h 



William Clemmons



Carter (1807-1877)(?)


 *
Mary Marshall d>1810


a
Alletta


*
Mentioned in their father's 21 Sept 1810 will, proved December 1810


a
Children per "Cocke and Cousins"


b
Childred per Source #1106

1W  
Fh710  
Thomas T. Bolling served in Capt. Robert Bolling's (Fh502) Cavalry in the Revolutionary War 1779-1781.  (22)(672)(1099) Thomas Tabb Bolling married Miss S. Peyton 1786 in Amelia County, Virginia.  (1213)  Thomas Tabb Bolling married Miss Seigniora Peyton, daughter of John Peyton, 1786 in Amelia County, Virginia. (1270)  Thomas Tabb Bolling married S. Peyton 1786 in Amelia County, Virginia.  He was probably the son of Robert and Mary Marshall (Tabb) Bolling. (34)  Thomas Tabb Bolling married 1786 in Amelia County, Virginia, Seigniora Peyton, daughter of J. Peyton. (970) Thomas Tabb Bolling was born 1763 the son of Robert and Mary (Cocke) Bolling and grandson of Robert and Ann (Stith) Bolling. He married Seignors -----(1767-1810).  (?) Thomas Tabb Bolling was born 1763 the son of Robert Bolling III and Mary Marshall Tabb.  He married Seignoria Peyton, daughter of Sir John Peyton. They had children (572):

a.  John Peyton who married Anna Gilliam. (73)(294)(572) John Peyton 1788-1861. (110)

b.  Robert. (73)(294)(110) 

c.  Rebecca. (110)

d.  Francis Cooke who married Richard Everard Meade. (73)(294) Frances who married Everard Meade M.D. (110)  Frances Bolling married 1808 Richard E. Meade in Amelia County, Virginia, Surety John R. Archer.  (889)(970)(1270) 

e.  Yelverton Demallett who married Sophia Sully. (73)(294) Yelverton D.  who married Sophia Sully. (110)

f.  Warner who married Harriet Smith. (73)(294)  Warner T. (110) Warner Tabb Bolling was born 1800 in Petersburg, Virginia and married Harriet Smith in Nashville, Tennessee where he died in 1859. (674) 

g.  Harriet who married Charles Eggleston. (73)(294)(110)  Harriet C. (sic) Bolling married 1819, Charles Eggleston, in Amelia County, Virginia. (970) Miss Harriet E. Bolling married Charles Eggleston, 1819, in Amelia County, Virginig, Surety William H. Eggleston.(1270)

h.  Thomas Redford who married Mary Pleasants Carter. (73)(294) Thomas who married Mary Carter. (110) 

i.  Martha who married first Spencer Elkin and married second William Clemments. (73)(294)  Martha Tabb who married first Thomas Tabb and married second Col.  J.H.  Ross. (110)  Martha who married first Spencer Elkin and married second William Clements. (110)

j.  William Smith who married first Pocahontas Robertson, his cousin and married second Mary Dudley. (73)(294)  William S.  who married first Pocahontas Robertson and married second Mrs.  -----Hill.  (110)

Thomas Tabb Bolling was the son of Robert and Mary Marshall (Tabb) Bolling.  He married 1782 Seigniora Peyton, the daughter of Sir John Peyton, of Gloucester County, Virginia.  (136)(137) Thomas Tabb and Signora (Peyton) Bolling. (110) Thomas Tabb Bolling married Seigmiora Peyton 1786 Amelia County, Virginia.  (231) Thomas "descended from a distinguished family who settled in the colony of Virginia with the Randolphs, Madisons, Meades and Taylors in 1685. The Bollings are of English ancestry, and intermarried with the Bland and Randolph families. (234) The date listed for the arrival of this family is some 25 years later that ascribed to Col. Robert Bolling (Fh480) who came to Virginia in 1660. (7)  Thomas T.  Bolling was in the 1810 Census of Amelia County, Virginia. (349) Thomas Tabb Bolling died in 1814. (294) Thomas Radford Bolling (Fh711)(?) of Petersburg, Virginia, married 1818 (?) Mary Pleasant Carter (1807-1877).  (309) Thomas T.  Bolling was on the 1787 census of Dinwiddie County, Virginia, with 1 male between 17 and 20, 25 slaves, 11 horses, and 10 head of cattle.  Thomas T.  Bowling was on the 1787 census of Amelia County, Virginia, with 18 slaves, 9 horses, and 40 head of cattle. (551)  Dr. Volvert Bolling of South Carolina married 1819 Sophia Sully, Charleston, South Carolina. (592)  Thomas Tabb Bolling was born 1763.  He married Seignora "Siggy" Peyton who was born 1767.  Thomas Tabb Bolling died in 1810. (816) I extracted the will of Thomas Tabb Bolling from Will Book 7, page 596-598 of Amelia County, Virginia.  The will was dated 21 Sept.  1810 and proved at the December court 1810.  It mentions:  Wife (not named), slaves now vested in my mother (not named) and money (when suit against my mother settled).  Sons Yelverton, Thomas, Warner, William and John Peyton. Daughters Rebecca, Mary, Martha, Harriet (money when get it). To dau. Frances, a Negro girl.  Executors: Friends Dr.  Meade and Thomas Tabb, no Security required.  Executors to "continue suit against my mother." (179) You will also be interested in learning that the Robert Bolling (Fh500, my fourth great-grandfather) who married Mary Marshall Tabb had a daughter who was born about three years after he died. The Petersburg historian thinks that he knows who the father was, and that is a story in itself, because it explains why Mary Tabb Bollin's second son, Thomas Tabb Bolling (Fh710) directed in his will that the ongoing lawsuit he had against his mother should be continued. (739) (Also see sources 118, 489, & 572)

1W 711.
Thomas Radford 1797->1810/m1818 Mary Pleasant Carter (1807-1877)--His father was Thomas #710



Julia/m1848 William K. Thurber



Thomas Tabb--unmarried



William--unmarried



James Carter/Mary Cecelia Raynal



Robert/1/w Mollie Seawell, 2/w Roberta Yelverton



Sally Logan b1839/m1858 Thomas Cole Sheaurer



Mary Rebecca/ Col. Harrison



Charles Logan--unmarried



Peyton/Eleen Rutland



Mary Rebecca--died age 14

1W
Fh711 
Thomas Redford Bolling married Mary Pleasants Carter.  (73)(294)  Thomas Bolling married Mary Carter. (110) Thomas Radford Bolling of Petersburg, Virginia, married 1818 (?) Mary Pleasant Carter (1807-1877). (309)  Thomas Redford Bolling was the son of Thomas Tabb Bolling (Fh710) and Seignora (Peyton) Bolling.  Thomas Redford Bolling married Mary Pleasant Carter.  Their family is in the family group section.  They lived at "Mayfield". (848)  Their daughter Julia Bolling married 1848, William K. Thurber, in Mobile, Alabama. (?)

1R  
390b  
Thomas Bolling was born 1764 at "Chestnut Grove", in Goochland County, Virginia, the son of John William and Mary (Jefferson) Bolling. (30)(204)  Thomas Bolling married Mary Jefferson, the sister of the author of the Declaration of Independence, Thomas Jefferson. (39)

1W  
480g  
Thomas Bolling was born 1697 probably in Prince George County, Virginia.  His parents were Robert and Anne (Stith) Bolling (Fh480). (65) Thomas Bolling was born 1695 or 1697. (65)(73)(246)(247)  Thomas was born 1698. (320)  Thomas was born 1697/8 (old style/new style). (314)  Thomas was born 1697. (65)(73)(246)(247)(320)(368) Thomas Bolling was the youngest son of Col. Robert (Fh480) and Annie (Stith) Bolling.  He was a minor when his father died.  The Prince George County, Virginia, court appointed Major John Bolling (Fh370) as guardian, 1715, for Thomas Bolling, in a suit brought by Stith Bowling (Fh650).  So far as I know no historian or genealogist has traced the descendants of Thomas Bolling.  I believe that the Bollings of Albemarle County, Virginia, may be the descendants of Thomas but I have no proof. (7)  Thomas Bolling, son of Col. Robert and Annie (Stith) Bolling lived in Goochland County, Virginia.  Thomas Bolling was warden of a Parish Church in Goochland County, Virginia.  In 1734 John Bolling (Fh380), Gentleman, of Henrico County, Virginia, deeded to Thomas Bolling, Goochland County, Virginia, 400 acres on the south side of the James River above the Seven Islands for "love and affection".  (7)  Thomas Bolling was a church warden for the St. James, Northam Parish in Goochland County, Virginia.  The parish register lists the names of church wardens who were deceased by 1764--Thomas Bolling was listed.  The date of his death is not stated on this entry but can probably be located elsewhere in the St. James-Northam Parish Register. (7) Thomas Bolling, mariner, had a deed June 7, 1735, to Robert Poythress, of Prince George County, Virginia, a tract of land on Nottoway River, Surry County, Virginia. (709) From the will of Robert Poythress, Prince George County, Virginia, 1743, "To my son William Poythress and his heirs forever all my lands lying between Monkoes Neck and Nottoway which I bought of Capt. Thomas Bolling" (1414) Thomas Bolling had a 10 year older brother Edward who was a Captain who died in 1710. The maritime tradition of Captain Edward (Ned) Bolling was continued by his brother Thomas.  Thomas Bolling seems to have enjoyed the favor of Col. William Byrd of Westover.  Entries in William Byrd's secret diary during the summer of 1740 finds Captain Thomas Bolling in port with his ship, "The Dunkirk". Captain Bolling was a frequent visitor with Byrd at Westover, sometimes accompanied by his ship's doctor or another ship's captain.  Captain Bolling took Byrd's son to the races and often was a guest at dinner, sometimes staying the night.  Historians tell us that there has been confusion of Edward Bolling and younger brother Thomas Bolling and that the mention of a Captain Bolling's death in 1710 caused some writers to assume the early demise of both.  We can thank William Byrd's diary for a clear account of Captain Thomas Bolling, at age 43, during his visit to the James River in 1740.  We also find an earlier court record in the name of Thomas Bolling, 9 June 1723.  On 7 June 1735, Thomas Bolling, mariner, conveyed land on Nottoway River to Robert Poythress of Prince George County.  We know nothing about the progeny of Thomas Bolling, or indeed if there was a wife or children.  Even his own very existence had to be resurrected from oblivion since, as noted, some historians allowed him to be identified as the Captain Bolling who died in 1710. (339)  Excerpt from notes of Mary Meade.  Thomas Bowling, the name of a sailor mentioned in the "Adventures of Roderick Random", a book written by Tolias George Smollet in 1746, a novel of life at sea.  A song was written about the same person by Charles Dibden 1745-1814, who lived in Southamton, England, the writer of "Twas The Good Ship Rover", "Saturday Night At Sea" and others. (51) "... 100 acres being part of a larger tract purchased of Thomas Bolling by William Wells on July 10, 1733." [Source: Prince George County Deed Book 1787-1792, pgs 73 & 119].(1414)

1W  
660e  
Thomas Bolling was named in a 1797 will of Stith Bolling in Nottoway County, Virginia. (30)  Thomas Bolling was the son of Stith and Charlotte (Edmunds) Bolling. (Fh660)  (293)  Thomas Bolling married 1811, Lunenburg County, Virginia, Elizabeth Williams.  (293)(675)(1213)(1719)  They moved to Madison County, Alabama about 1821.  (293) Recently I came across a record in Valley Leaves by Helen McKnight, my first cousin, once removed, regarding Stith Bolling (Fh661) who moved to Madison County, Alabama before his death in 1821(?).  Madison County, Alabama is where my Alexander (Fh025) moved in 1811 from Lincoln County, Tennessee.  Stith had a brother Thomas Bolling, 660e, who according to Helen's reprint of court documents was the executor of Stith's estate and was sued by Macajah Mason and Eliza, his wife, in Madison County, Alabama 12/22/1827.  In a court document of April 1831 (The court record is Madison County, Alabama Circuit Court in Chancery, Book E, pages 442-446, Micajah Mason and Eliza his wife vs Thomas Bolling, admr, estate of Stith Bolling dec'd.  Original bill filed 12/22/1827 requesting settlement of estate.), "the death of said Thomas Bolling having been suggested, the judgement is maintained".  Thus indicating that this Thomas Bolling is deceased by 1831.  So, is this the same Thomas of Haywood County, Tennessee, who died by 1831 and was a non-resident? It appears he (Thomas Bowling, brother to Stith Fh661) died in Limestone or Madison County, Alabama between 1828-1831. (698)

1R  
700e  
Thomas Bolling was born deaf-mute the son of Thomas and Elizabeth (Gay) Bolling.  Thomas Bolling Jr. had an estate called "Gaymont" in Caroline County, Virginia where he lived.  It is unknown if he ever married or left any descendants.  He was seventy-six years of age at his death. (7)

1R 800.
William 1777-1845/8/9/m1798 Mary Randolph (1774-1863)--His father was Thomas #700



William Albert 1799-1884--deaf mute/m1833 1/w Eliza "Elvin" Hunt Christian, 2/w Elvira 



Arminda Bolling--See Family Group #801



Anne Meade 1803-1845/m1824 Joseph Kendall Weisiger (1801-1878)



Thomas 1807-1889/m1832 Mary "Louisa" Morris (     -1852)-5 children



Mary Randolph 1809-1870-never married-deaf mute



Jane Rolfe 1817-1867/m1847 Robert Skipwith and perhaps Michael Angelo Paquinet



3. Son



4. Son



4. Daughter



5. Daughter



6. Daughter

1R  
Fh800  
William Bolling was born circa 1760 and married Mary Randolph.  They had five sons.  William Bolling's father was Thomas Bolling (Fh700) born 1735 and died 1804 and his mother was Elizabeth Gay. (1)  William Bolling married 1798 in Henrico County, Virginia, Mary Randolph.  She was the daughter of Richard Randolph, deceased. Bondsman was Thomas Bolling the father of William. (7)(609)  William Bolling of Chesterfield County, Virginia, married 1798 Miss Mary Randolph of Henrico County, Virginia. Thomas Bolling, father of William Bolling was surety. (1190) William Bolling, of "Licking Hole", married Mary Randolph, daughter of Richard and Ann (Meade) Randolph.  Mary had a sister Jane who married Archibald Bolling (Fh50) of Buckingham County, Virginia. William Bolling was a member of the House of Delegates of Virginia. (79)  William Bolling had a son William Albert Bolling who was born deaf. (93) Col. William Bolling of "Bolling Hall" was born 1777 the son of Thomas Bolling, of "Cobbs", and Elizabeth Gay.  He married Mary Randolph the daughter of Richard Randolph Jr. and Anne Nancy Meade.  They had children: Ann Meade who married Joseph Weissiger, Albert, deaf-mute, who married Elvin Christian, Thomas born 1807, Virginia, who married Mary Louisa Morris, Mary Randolph, never married and Jane Rolfe who married Robert Skipwith.  Col.  William Bolling died 1845. (7)  William Bolling was born 1777 Chesterfield County, Virginia the son of Thomas and Elizabeth (Gay) Bolling.  William Bolling married 1798 Henrico County, Virginia, Mary Randolph, daughter of Richard and Ann (Meade) Randolph.  William was a Colonel in the War of 1812 and Member of House of Delegates. William Bolling died 1845/9 in Goochland County, Virginia.  William Bolling and Mary Randolph were cousins. (175)  William Bolling of "Bolling Hall" was born 1777.  He married Mary Randolph and they had children: Ann Meade, Albert, Thomas, Mary Randolph, and Jane Rolfe.  William Bolling died 1845. (255)  William Bolling built a homestead on the James River in Goochland County, Virginia called "Bolling Hall".  He had moved over from "Cobbs", in Chesterfield County.  He was a militia officer (Col.) in the War of 1812.  He was a direct descendant of the Indian Princess Pocahontas.  He had a son Thomas Bolling. (39)  William Bolling married Mary Randolph.  He inherited and first lived at "Cobbs", but later removed to "Bolling Hall", an estate on the James River in Goochland County, Virginia.  Col. Bolling won his commission as colonel in the War of 1812.  He represented his county in the Legislature a number of years. (313)  William Bolling served in the War of 1812, carried on at "Bolling Hall" (Licking Hole Plantation) and "Bolling Island", after his father's death about 1800.  He also had care of the plantation "Cobbs" in Chesterfield County, Virginia.  William moved to Kentucky 1796, made a stop at his brother's in Frederick County, Virginia, "Richard Kidder Meade".  He was in Lexington for a time, then moved to his home "Chaumerie des Prairies".  William was Captain and later commander of the cavalry. (286)  William Bolling had a son William "Albert" Bolling who was born 1799. (319)  William's son Thomas Bolling who married Mary Louisa Morris was of "Bolling Hall", Goochland County, Virginia. (292)(1261)  William Bolling who married Mary Randolph had a son Thomas Bolling who married Louisa Morris.  (309)  Jane Rolfe Bolling, inheritor of "Bolling Hall", married as his first wife Robert Skipwith. (278)  Col.  William Bolling of "Chellowe" married Mary R. Randolph daughter of Richard Randolph. They had a daughter Ismay Bolling who married William Robertson.  Mary R.  Randolph had a sister Jane R. Randolph who married Archibald Bolling (Fh050). (337) William Bolling was in the 1810 Census of Goochland County, Virginia. (349)  William Bolling 1777-1845 was the son of Thomas and Elizabeth (Gay) Bolling.  William married his second cousin 1798 Mary Randolph.  They lived at "Cobbs" when son William Albert Bolling was born in 1799, then moved to "Bolling Hall". They had 4 sons and 6 daughters.  Named children were: William Albert deaf mute who married Elizabeth Christian, Anne Meade who married Joseph K.  Weisiger, Thomas born 1807 who married Louisa Morris, Jane Rolfe who married Robert Skipwith and Mary a deaf mute. (393)  William Bolling is buried in the "Bolling Hall" Cemetery in Goochland County, Virginia.  His stone has date of birth as 26 May 1777 and date of death as 16 July 1845.  Also buried there are his wife, his son Thomas, and three daughter i.e. Mary R. Bolling, Jane Rolfe Skipwith and Ann Meade Weisiger. (782) William Bolling had a sister Polly who died in 1826.  In 1827 William Bolling had a dispute with his other sisters, Mrs. Robertson and Mrs. Murrays, about Miss Polly Bolling's estate.  His first cousin Blair Bolling (Fh155) was an attorney in the case. (807)  "By purchase the Society (Virginia Historical Society) acquired the register of William Bolling (1777-1849) wherein he recorded the births and death of slaves at his two estates, "Bolling Hall" and "Bolling Island" in Goochland, County, Virginia." (902) There is a diary of Col. William Bolling born 1777 of "Bolling Hall". (1292)  Col. William Bolling had homes "Bolling Hall" and "Bolling Island" in Goochland County, Virginia. Earlier he was from "Cobbs" in Chesterfield County, Virginia. (Also see source 118)

1R 801.
William Albert 1799-1883--deaf mute/m1833 1/w Eliza "Elvin" Hunt Christian, 2/w Elvira Arminda 
Bolling--His father was William #800


*
William bc1835/Louise "Jennie" Baker



Richard Morris 1841-1921 (?)


*
Thomas Albert 1852-1934--deaf mute piano tuner



3 Son


*
Mary Elizabeth "Lizzie" 1836-1909/1/h m1856 Powhantan F. Jones 2/h m1871 Robert Skipwith 



(1810-1904)-see 800e


*
Susan Christian bc1849-d>1900/George Henry King


*
Anne Meade bc1848/m1867 Sterling B. Claiborne


*
Children per Source #885
1R  
Fh801 
William "Albert" Bolling was the son of William and Mary (Randolph) Bolling (Fh800).  He was born 1799 a deaf mute.  He married 1835 Elizabeth "Elvin" Christian.  William had 3 sons and 2 daughter. One son was Thomas A. Bolling a deaf mute piano tuner. (319). The eldest grandson of Col. William Bolling (Fh800) was Richard M. Bolling who was still alive in 1900.  Mary Elizabeth "Lizzie" Bolling (Jones), daughter of William Albert Bolling married Robert Skipwith (his first wife was Jane Rolfe Bolling, inheritor of "Bolling Hall".  Lizzie Bolling Skipwith perished in a 1909 fire.  Thomas Albert Bolling, son of William Albert Bolling, lived in Goochland County Virginia in 1900.  Thomas Albert Bolling had a sister Mrs. Susan King who was alive in 1900. (278)(333)


[image: image1.emf]12/3/2013   Prepared by:     Todd Bolen         5950 Pelican Bay Blvd. #133       Naples, FL 34108       ToddBolen@AOL.Com          Lois (Bolen) Stange   500 Briarcliff Drive   Napoleon, OH 43545   d - lstange@centurylink.net     NOTICE:  This material may  be freely used by non - commercial entities for educational and/or research purposes as  long as this message remains on all copied material. These electronic pages cannot be reproduced in any format for  profit or other presentation without the permission of  either Todd Bolen or Lois (Bolen) Stange. © 1998       


_1449404456.doc
12/3/2013


Prepared by:


Todd Bolen





5950 Pelican Bay Blvd. #133




Naples, FL 34108




ToddBolen@AOL.Com     


Lois (Bolen) Stange

500 Briarcliff Drive

Napoleon, OH 43545


d-lstange@centurylink.net


NOTICE: This material may be freely used by non-commercial entities for educational and/or research purposes as long as this message remains on all copied material. These electronic pages cannot be reproduced in any format for profit or other presentation without the permission of either Todd Bolen or Lois (Bolen) Stange. © 1998 


